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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
RUECE ES

Results and Financial performances EBRUERE 2019 2018
Results E4
Revenue (HK dollar ‘000) WA (FETT) 2,310,842 2,298,609
Profit attributable to owners of the Company  ZNQ &% G A (G & T

(HK dollar '000) (F#T) 301,803 350,185
Basic earnings per share (HK dollar) FERERBF (BT 0.36 0.42
Proposed final dividend per share (HK dollar) ERERRERE (GET) 0.09 0.14
Gross profit margin EFIZE 28.9% 31.5%
Net profit margin I 2 13.1% 15.2%
Return on equity (Note 1) AR A Bl R = (M e 1) 25.3% 32.6%
Return on assets (Note 2) BELREK(Hit2) 13.0% 16.2%
Inventory turnover days (Note 3) FEEE RS (fE3) 83 76
Trade receivable turnover days (Note 4) B 5 W IE B R (A aE4) 49 48
Trade payable turnover days (Note 5) B 2 e R IA A R E(HaE5) 65 66
Financial position B AR R
Net current assets (HK dollar '000) mBEEEE(TAT) 619,628 766,529
Current ratio (Note 6) mB X (faT6) 170.1% 195.0%
Quick ratio (Note 7) RENLE K (faE7) 125.2% 152.4%
Gearing ratio* (Note 8) BEBBELX*(Hit8) 20.3% 31.8%
Net gearing ratio (Note 9) FEEBBELEAZI) 0% 0%

Notes:

(1) Return on equity ratio is calculated by dividing profit after tax by total equity and
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

(2)  Return on assets ratio is calculated by dividing profit after tax by total assets and
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

(3) Inventory turnover days are calculated based on the average balance of
inventories divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365
days.

(4) Trade receivable turnover days are calculated based on the average trade
receivables divided by the revenue for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

(5) Trade payable turnover days are calculated based on the average trade payables
divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

(6) Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities and
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

B (7) Quick ratio is calculated by dividing current assets less inventory by current
R = liabilities and ﬂult:plymg the resulting value by 100%.

k Geanng \r\a'tlo IS calguﬁa{ed by dividing total borrowings by total equity and
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Financial Highlights (continued)

~z oh (43S
MEHRE(E)
Five Year Revenue — by business segments
AFRA—REHK DI
HK$'000
FHET
2,500,000
2,000,000
1,500,000
1,000,000 ——
500,000 ]
0
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—ZT—RF —E—RF ZE—tF —E-N\F —T-NEF
Mold fabrication Plastic components manufacturing Total
R ABUE JEEBAR M Bl HEEt
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000
THET THAT TAT TAT TR

16924 590,786 |

1,720,056 |

2,310,842

RIEE (ZR) ARAR —F-NFFR




Li Pui Leung =i R
Chairman F /&




To All Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of TK Group (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company” and its subsidiaries together, the “TK Group” or the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year under
Review").

The year 2019 witnessed constant global trade frictions, such as
the rising trade barriers between China and the United States,
Brexit, the trade war between Japan and South Korea and
other geopolitical uncertainties, which adversely affected global
business confidence and economic activities, thus the global
economic growth slowed down. For the year ended 31 December
2019, total revenue of the Group amounted to HK$2,310.8 million
(2018: HK$2,298.6 million), up by 0.5% year-on-year; the profit
for the year attributable to the owners of the Company amounted
to HK$301.8 million (2018: HK$350.2 million), down by 13.8%
year-on-year. Despite the challenges in the peripheral market
and the fluctuation of orders during the Year under Review, the
Group's advantages of diversified customers reduced the impact
on the Group during the economic cycle. This, coupled with our
technological advantages, close relationship with customers and
consistent excellent quality of products makes the Group still
the preferred supplier of injection molding solutions for major
customers, which has consolidated our solid and stable position
and performance in the industry.

Also, the Group’s financial position remained sound and the Group
adhered to its commitment to distributing dividends of no less than
30% of profits to Shareholders. During the year, the Board decided
to recommend a dividend payout ratio of 38.7% and a payment
of final dividend of HK$0.09 per share for the Year under Review,
totaling HK$0.14 per share for the year when summing up with
the interim dividend, to thank Shareholders for their continued
support.
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Since the second half of 2018, under the threat of US import
tariffs, some customers advanced orders to the second half of
2018 and delayed the release of new products in 2019, resulting
in a slowdown in the overall order volume in the first half of 2019.
Against the backdrop of constrained consumer demand in the first
half of the Year under Review, the economic atmosphere improved
significantly in the second half of 2019. Some customers resumed
the release of new products, contributing abundant orders.
Injection molding production lines were basically at full capacity in
the second half of the Year under Review, reversing the downward
trend in sales in the first half of the Year under Review. In sum, the
order situation in 2019 remained at the ideal level, but there were
still uncertainties in the global economy, which made customers
more sensitive to prices. Therefore, the Group adopted flexible
pricing during the Year under Review to ensure the order volume.
Although gross profit margin declined in 2019, it remained at a
relatively high level compared with the industry.

During the Year under Review, the Group invested Euro1.75
million (equivalent to approximately HK$15,155,000) in MOTLLES |
MATRIUS FISAS NAVARRO S.L. (“FISAS NAVARRO"). We intend
to get deeply engaged in the southern European market by taking
a strategic stake in FISAS NAVARRO, which will enable us to
serve the European car factories in a short distance and offer more
quality and comprehensive mold solutions and after-sales service
to local customers, so as to maintain a long-term cooperation and
mitigate the impact of regional trade disputes.

Looking forward to 2020, the challenges are indeed no less than
those in 2019. According to the latest data released by the Ministry
of Industry and Information Technology in 2019, China is the world’s
largest producer, exporter and consumer of consumer electronic
products, in possession of the world’s richest industrial support,
technology application and industrial service capacity. However,
the trade war between China and the United States, which lasted
for more than one year, also dealt a blow to China’'s manufacturing,
export and technology industries, affecting the overall economic
growth of the country as well as weakening domestic consumer
demand. China’s electronic supply chain has a tendency to move
to Southeast Asia. In addition, in January 2020, the Chinese
government took strict national measures to prevent and control
the epidemic of COVID-19, including the extension of the Spring
Festival holiday and the postponement of the resumption of work
and production. Specially, Shenzhen also implemented community-
lockdown management. The Group has also taken active part in the
epidemic prevention:and control to ensure the health and safety
oflits employees, and poestponed the resumption of work of the
- Group's héac{qué‘ﬁers and production lines at TK Technology Park,
Guangming District, Shenzhen to 11 February 2020. Inevitably,
the governmeﬁ&ﬁrf’f’ ntion and f{ﬁ‘tml measures affected labor
recovery.and output ir I ]éfur_ing supply chain in the first
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Recently, the COVID-19 epidemic continues to spread across the
European and American regions, and WHO officially announced on
11 March 2020 that COVID-19 has become a worldwide epidemic
with continuously expanded scope of influence. As a result, many
European and American brand stores are temporarily closed, and
the retail market has been hit hard. The Group expects that the
epidemic will continue for a while in the European and American
countries. Being affected by the rapid development of epidemic,
new product launches and development projects of some
consumer electronics customers of the Group have also been
delayed, which is expected to have negative impact on the Group’s
business for the year. Given the above, the Group will postpone its
plan to build an overseas plant for plastic injection in Vietnam this
year, however, TK Group remains optimistic towards the long-term
layout of its overseas plants.

In any case, | believe that TK Group has its own unique advantages
and courage to face challenges, to strive for continuous reform
and optimization amid the market changes so as to enhance
its competitiveness. The Group has obtained the certification
of Industry 4.0 1i by the Hong Kong Productivity Council and
the Fraunhofer IPT in Germany in January 2020. Intelligent
manufacturing can save labor and other production costs for the
Group. Intelligentization and high automation will be an advantage
for us, which enables us to offer quality and fast solutions to
customers, and win more new customers and bulk orders, thus
ensuring the Group's profitability.

In addition, the Group keeps focusing on exploring the potential of
existing customers and developing new customers. After prudent
and cautious selection and screening, the Group has successfully
penetrated into the domestic market by developing customers
with powerful consumer brands. The COVID-19 epidemic has been
gradually alleviated in China, and it is expected that China will take
a shorter period to recover as compared to overseas regions. We
will invest more resources in the development of domestic market
in 2020. As always, we will continue monitoring the trend of high-
tech consumer goods closely, expand our high-end customer base
and develop product applications in emerging industries.
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Given that the epidemic is spreading worldwide with unlikeliness
to recover in short term, the Board decided to suspend the plan
of building plants in Vietnam in response to the changing trade
and geopolitical situation, in order to reserve capital and maintain
strengths of sound cash flow and finance to cope with intense
challenges arising from the upcoming global economic downturn.
Despite the delay of plant building in Vietnam this year, the
strategic layout in Vietnam remains unchanged. In the long run,
the overseas expansion of manufacturing bases can, on the one
hand, disperse the geographical risks brought by the concentration
of plants, and on the other hand, cater to the strategic transfer
of supply chains to Southeast Asia of some high-end electronic
technology customers to support their sustainable development
and growth. | am convinced that with TK Group's strengths and
preparation, we can overcome the crises and challenges we face
and remain fully confident in the long term development.

Having a corporate culture unanimously recognized and supported
by the public and all staff, every decision and every order of TK
Group are determined upon thorough consideration in terms of
customers, suppliers, staff, natural environment, the society and
TK Group itself to ensure all parties are treated in a fair and equal
manner, as well as profit maximization. Such culture is consistent
with TK Group's operating concept of “concerted development,
concerted growth"”. In addition, the Group places high emphasis
on integrity, and believes that the “Three Principles”, namely,
“Fairness, Equality and Transparency”, will facilitate our health
development and growth. Under the corporate culture of mutual
trust, all of our staff are able to concentrate on the creation of
corporate value and provision of better services to our customers,
thus protecting interests of the Group and the customers as a
whole.

| would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude
to the members of the Board, all staff and the management team
for their contribution, dedication and support, as well as our
business partners and customers for their long-term recognition
and encouragement. We will devote unremitting effort to earn
trust and support from each party, and strive to promote the
growth of the Group, so as to achieve excellent results and make
contributions to our shareholders and the society.
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In retrospect to 2019, the business environment of the industry
faced fierce competition amid the trade war between China and
the United States. However, given that the Group has provided
quality products and technical solutions to its customers as usual
and under the flexible pricing strategy, in 2019, the Group's
revenue for the year basically remained the same level and reached
HK$2,310.8 million (2018: HK$2,298.6 million), representing a
slight increase of 0.56% as compared to that of last year. The smart
home segment and the mobile phones and wearable devices
segment in the downstream industries maintained an upward
trend.

Industry
7%

Mobile phones and FHRAFERE
wearable devices

Automobiles AE

Smart home BEXE

Commercial telecommunications — EEBK
equipment

Medical and health care EEREARE

Household electrical appliances RE
Digital devices UFRE
Others Hfth

During the year, being affected by the trade war, most of the
enterprises remained prudent and the utilization rate of machines
of the Group decreased as some customers delayed their
production schedules. Gross profit of the Group decreased by
7.9% to HK$667.5 million (2018: HK$724.4 million), while gross
profit margin dropped by 2.6 percentage points to 28.9% (2018:
31.5%).

In light of the above effects, profit attributable to owners of
the Company for the year amounted to HK$301.8 million (2018:
HK$350.2 million), representing a decrease of 13.8% as compared
to that of last year. Net profit margin decreased by 2.1 percentage
points to 13.1% (2018: 15.2%). Basic earnings per share was
approximately HK$0.36 (2018: HK$0.42), representing a decrease
of 14.3% as compared to that of last year.
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2018 Change

HK$ million %  HKS$ million %
BEBT % BEST %
561.7 24.4 132.3 23.6
398.2 17.3 -13.0 -3.3
256.3 11.2 102.4 40.0
496.9 21.6 -169.8 -34.2
306.2 13.3 -0.4 -0.1
115.6 5.0 -42.2 -36.5
46.3 2.0 -1.1 -24
117.4 572 4.0 3.4
2,298.6 100.0 12.2 0.5
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Furthermore, the Group's trade receivable turnover days remained
stable at around 49 days, which was attributable to our effective
credit control policies. Meanwhile, such policies also enabled the
Group to maintain net cash of HK$493.2 million (2018: HK$533.1
million). The sound financial position enables the Group to engage
in merger and acquisition activities in a more active manner and
to adopt other necessary measures so as to stimulate business
growth. The Group has a considerable amount of orders on hand,
as at 31 December 2019, amounting to HK$883.2 million, which
represented an increase of 12.1% as compared with HK$788.0
million as at 31 December 2018. Such increase was mainly due to
the delay of orders delivered during the year.

Mold Fabrication Business

During the year, the revenue of the mold fabrication segment from
external customers amounted to approximately HK$590.8 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 14.7% as compared with
approximately HK$692.4 million in last year, and accounting for
approximately 25.6% of the Group's total revenue.

The Group has production lines for ultra-large standard molds and
high-precision molds. The major products of the Group's ultra-
large standard molds, being large molds with complex structure,
are automobiles components. The clients mainly include first-tier
component suppliers who manufacture automobile components
for renowned automobile brands in Europe, such as Mercedes-
Benz, BMW and Volkswagen. High-precision molds production
lines mainly produce high-precision molds with multi-cavity and
efficiency, covering the markets of high-end consumer electronics
product and commercial telecommunications equipment such
as smart home, mobile phones and wearable devices, medical
and health care. In addition to developing external customers,
the Group also provides convenient one-stop services with
high economic efficiency to our customers, coupled with the
downstream plastic components manufacturing business.

During the year, the revenue of this segment decreased due
to certain customers postponing the delivery date of products
to 2020. Being impacted by the US-China trade war, the Group
was also exposed to downward pressure on prices quoted to
customers. Therefore, the gross profit margin for the year slightly
decreased by 2.2 percentage points to 35.2% (2018: 37.4%).
Despite a decrease:in gross profit margin, the Group will still
‘ dontinuously improve process technology and strive to deliver
' molds and des@n solutions. Wlth high quality to customers, so
as to helpﬂ'ﬁe G gp enjoylng a dc inant advantage of quality

n ' y 85 or its plastic mold fabrication
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Plastic Components Manufacturing Business

Revenue from the plastic components manufacturing segment
amounted to approximately HK$1,720.0 million (2018: HK$1,606.2
million), representing an increase of 7.1% over last year, and
accounting for approximately 74.4% of the Group's total revenue.

The smart home segment sustained growth, up by 40.0% in
revenue over last year, which was mainly attributable to an
increase of the revenue from the whole segment driven by the
launch of new products by a major customer of smart home
segment in the second half of 2019. Meanwhile, the Group also
successfully developed and delivered products to another leading
smart home brand during the year. As the Group has obtained
the new customer’s recognition in its product quality, the new
customer has confirmed to place more orders with the Group in
2020. The Group was deeply encouraged by the recognition of the
leading brand customer and will continue to expand its exposure
in the smart home market and work together with customers to
develop new products.

The mobile phones and wearable devices segment achieved a
year-on-year growth of 23.6% in revenue, with a growing diversity
of customers. The orders from smartphone brand customers
maintained steady during the year; orders for smartphone
protective cases from a brand customer in the second half of the
year recorded a significant increase to support the launch of new
smartphones. In addition, the products from the popular audio
brand customer were also welcomed by the public, driving orders
to soar during the year.

Medical and health care segment remained stable over last
year, with a leading health care brand customer maintaining a
continuous growth momentum and recording a year-on-year
increase of approximately 13.2% in revenue. The products of
such customer were well received by the market, thus the Group
will continuously cooperate with its team in the research and
development of new products to meet the demand. Besides,
the revenue from commercial telecommunications equipment
segment decreased by 34.2% over last year, mainly due to the
fact that the Group expected that the growth of world’s leading
brand customers will slow down but still continuously bring orders
to the Group as their market have reached saturation to an extent.
As economic cycle varies among different industries, the Group
will actively maintain diversified customer portfolio to ensure the
stableness of business.
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With the excellent production technology and quality services, the
Group has always been committed to serving foreign customers.
However, in response to the impacts of the trade war, the Group
actively expanded its domestic market in 2018, in order to generate
more income sources and capture the development opportunities
in the PRC. During the year, with thanks to its good reputation
and track record in the industry, the Group was included into
the supply chain of a domestic leading wearable devices brand
to provide high-quality products and services. The Group also
continuously negotiated business with other domestic leading
brand of electronics consumer products, so as to expand the share
in relevant market.

In addition, confronting the rising labor costs, the Group will
continue to increase resource investment in intelligent and
automated aspects and to improve the digitization of operating
system with an aim to maintain the Group’s competitiveness in the
long term.

During the year, the gross profit margin of plastic business
decreased to 26.7% (2018: 29.0%), which was mainly attributable
to the increased idleness ratio of machines resulting from the
delayed production of several projects in the first half of the year.
However, the Group considered that gross profit margin was still
at a healthy level as a whole. Along with the relevant projects
carried out gradually, the utilization rate of machines has also been
improved to a relatively high level.

As at 31 December 2019, sales of the Group are mainly export
sales and our clients are mainly prestigious corporations and
brands in Europe and America. Clients of the Group cover a wide
range of industries, from automobile to household electrical
appliances to mobile phones and wearable devices as well as
medical and health care. As a key supplier of molds and plastics
of high-end electronic products, the Group's orders are widely
impacted by the launch time, popularity and life cycle of products
of its downstream industry clients. However, being engaged in
the molds and plastic injection industry for more than 30 years,
the Group always sticks to the strategy of client diversity in order
to manage and minimize risks efficiently. Currently, the Group
has been W|dely recogmzed as a trustworthy business partner of
various mternatmpally known brands of consumer goods, including
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Revenue

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019 was approximately
HK$2,310.8 million, representing an increase of approximately
HK$12.2 million or 0.5% when compared with the revenue of
approximately HK$2,298.6 million in 2018.

In 2019, the revenue from external customers of the mold
fabrication segment was approximately HK$590.8 million,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$101.6 million or
14.7% when compared with revenue of approximately HK$692.4
million in 2018. The Group’s major products of ultra-large standard
molds are automobile components. The Group's clients mainly
include first tier component suppliers which produce automobile
components to European automobiles brands such as Mercedes-
Benz, BMW and Volkswagen. During the year, the decrease in
revenue was due to the fact that some customers delayed the date
of product delivery to 2020.

In 2019, the revenue from external customers of the plastic
components manufacturing segment was approximately
HKS$1,720.0 million, representing an increase of approximately
HK$113.8 million or 7.1% when compared with the revenue of
approximately HK$1,606.2 million in 2018, which was mainly
attributable to the continuous upward trend in the segments
of smart home and mobile phones and wearable devices in the
downstream industries of the Group.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
approximately HK$667.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$56.9 million or 7.9% as compared with the
gross profit of approximately HK$724.4 million in 2018. Gross
profit margin dropped 2.6 percentage points to 28.9% (2018:
31.5%). The Group has commenced the capacity expansion in
2018, however, the utilization rate of machines decreased as some
customers delayed the production of their projects. Furthermore,
affected by the US-China trade war, gross profit margin of new
mold fabrication orders received by the Group during the year have
also declined.

WA

HE2019F12A3MBIEFERAL A
23108 B & BT © 2018 F By W A 4
2,298.6 B & BB MA 1228 8 H Tk
0.5% °

REBESIH019FIINAREWAL B
590.8H B8 L © B2018F W A#692.47H
BATRALLI101.6BEBTH14.7% ° &N
SERBARZEEANERNSEZTEMH
BE BEFEABMMIERENE =
B AREEARBEZHBH— R HE
e A ADBEHEERRT B
20204 - BEURABGFT TBE o

SEBBAAHRLE D EE2019FINABF AL &
1,720.0B & BT * 82018F WA 491,606.2
BEBTEMAI113.8EEEITHT. 1% ° %
EEFTEEHRAEE NS PITEEER
BEMFEEAFHEESRBFERFER

o #
REEL o

B

HZE2019F12 831 H LFEEF4L A667.5
BEBIL B2018FEFAT7244BFEB T
WP A6 9B BAILHT.9% © EFETE
2.6(EE D2 E28.9% (20184 :31.56%) ° &
EER2018FEFRBETER - BEHRITH
ERIEHEEEELE  FHENFERET
B oo BN RE|FEBFGEHNTE - AKH
RERNFEOEALZERE 2 EFEIERT
TR o



The gross profit margin for the mold fabrication segment
decreased from 37.4% in 2018 to 35.2% for the year. Mainly being
impacted by the US-China trade war, the Group was also exposed
to downward pressure on prices charged on customers, therefore
the gross profit margin slightly decreased by 2.2 percentage
points.

The gross profit margin for the plastic components manufacturing
segment decreased from 29.0% in 2018 to 26.7% for the year,
which was mainly attributable to the increased idleness ratio of
machines resulting from the delayed production of several projects
in the first half of the year. However, the Group considered that
gross profit margin was still at a healthy level as a whole. Along
with the relevant projects carried out gradually, the utilization rate
of machines has also been improved to a relatively high level.

Other Income

Other income for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
approximately HK$50.1 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$25.4 million or 102.8% when compared
with approximately HK$24.7 million in 2018, which was mainly
attributable to the increase in government grants income of the
Group for the year.

Other Losses — Net

Other losses, net for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
approximately HK$5.8 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$3.1 million when compared to the other losses,
net of approximately HK$2.7 million in 2018. The increase in other
losses was mainly attributable to the exchange loss arsing from
the rate revaluation of the Group's assets denominated in US dollar
due to the depreciation of US dollar against RMB at the end of the
period. Besides, in order to minimise the effect of fluctuation of
the Euro to the Group, the Group borrowed a Euro-denominated
bank loan equivalent to the amount of the Group’s existing orders
from Europe to effectively hedge the effects of fluctuations of the
exchange rates of Euro to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Selling Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the selling expenses
were approximately HK$80.7 million (2018: HK$88.3 million)
and the percentage to sales amounted to approximately 3.5%
(2018: 3.8%), representing a decrease of approximately HK$7.6
million or 8.7% when compared to 2018, and the percentage to
sales decreased by 0.3 percentage point. The decrease in selling
expenses was mainly due to the decrease in transportation
expenses brought by the decrease in sales of mold fabrication
business and the air cargo.

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the administrative
expenses were approximately HK$269.6 million (2018: HK$257.7
million) and the percentage to sales amounted to 11.7% (2018:
11.2%), representing an increase of approximately HK$11.9
million or 4.6% when compared to 2018, and the percentage
to sales increased by 0.5 percentage point. The increase in the
administrative expenses was mainly attributable to the increase in
research and development.

Finance (Cost)/Income — Net

Net finance cost for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
approximately HK$1.4 million, as compared to the net finance
income of approximately HK$6.8 million in 2018, which was
primarily due to the increase in interest expenses for the lease
liabilities of approximately HK$8.9 million upon the adoption of
HKFRS 16 “Leases” by the Group from 1 January 2019.

Share of Net Profit of an Associate Accounted for Using
the Equity Method

For the year ended 31 December 2019, share of net profit
of an associate accounted for using the equity method was
approximately HK$0.4 million, which represented the investment
income received from the Group's investment in MOTLLES |
MATRIUS FISAS NAVARRO S.L. for the year.

BB E AR (E)

HERX

HE2019F12A31HILFEHERZOA
80.7EE/B (20184 : 88.3HE B L) ' 1k
HENB DA AE3.5% (20184 : 3.8%) ©
HERIR2018F R HN76EEB TR
87% ' MHHEMB DL THROIERDE -
HEMYRLETERERARAZEDHEE
(K =EEERD  RMESEHEMAE

TR

HE2019F12 A3 B EFETHALY
52696 E BB L (20184 : 257.7 B &8
JC)  HEEMNBE S A11.7% (20184 -
11.2%) - TR X E2018FEIN411.98
EBAETHK46%  (HEEMNE DL EFA0.5(E
B - (THEASEMEZHNFAREA
HANFTER °

& (BA), A — B8

HE2019F12A31 B L FERME KA FEEL
B1ABEEIT > M2018FEMEE W AFEE
HesEEAL TEREHRAEEBH2019
FI1RATBREMB BT HRELERFE 1695
[HE] ENHEEENFEZHA8I9ES
PSTT

15 PR S VR AR 2 B A Bt i 1) B] AR A

HZE2019F12 A31 H L FEF AR E AR
B E RN E0AEERT 0 A
EBAFEANRMOTLLES | MATRIUS FISAS
NAVARRO S.L.#% & FrER{S HI1% & iz o

17



18

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BIRE R MO (&)

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
approximately HK$58.7 million (2018: HK$56.9 million) and the
effective tax rate was 16.3% (2018: 14.0%). Effective tax rate
increased by 2.3 percentage points as compared to 2018, which
was mainly attributable to the increase in PRC withholding income
tax arising from funding dividends with profits of PRC subsidiaries.

Profit for the Year Attributable to Owners of the Company

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019 was approximately HK$301.8 million, representing
a decrease of approximately HK$48.4 million or 13.8% from
approximately HK$350.2 million in 2018.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group maintained a sound financial position during the
year. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had net current
assets of approximately HK$619.6 million (31 December 2018:
HK$766.5 million). The Group had total cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$735.1 million (31 December 2018: HK$875.3
million), including cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$582.9 million (31 December 2018: HK$753.8 million) and
restricted cash and deposits of approximately HK$152.2 million (31
December 2018: HK$121.5 million). The current ratio of the Group
as at 31 December 2019 was approximately 170.1% (31 December
2018: 195.0%).

Total equity of the Group as at 31 December 2019 was
approximately HK$1,191.5 million (31 December 2018: HK$1,075.5
million). The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2019 was
approximately 20.3% (31 December 2018: 31.8%). Such decrease
was mainly attributed to the decrease in operating loans and the
increase in equity due to the profit recorded for the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

DEBT MATURITY PROFILE

The maturity profile of the Group’s borrowings is set out below:

B LT ()

B EE R

AEEEEDHARWT ¢

Within 1 year 1F AR
Between 1 and 2 years 122K
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F A

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
166,049 107,218
75,911 99,103
- 1.35,911
241,960 342,232

An analysis of the Group’'s key liquidity ratios as at 31 December
2019 is as follows:

MR2019F 128318 ' AEENETERHES
AT -

2019 2018

Inventory turnover days (Note 1) GERERE(MET) 83 76

Trade receivable turnover days (Note 2) ‘2B 5 e IAE#E XE(K22) 49 48

Trade payable turnover days (Note 3) B 5 SRR A RE(HE3) 65 66

Current ratio (Note 4) BN R (f17t4) 170.1% 195.0%
Notes: B -

1. Inventory turnover days are calculated based on the average balance of
inventories divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365
days.

2. Trade receivable turnover days are calculated based on the average trade
receivables divided by the revenue for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

3. Trade payable turnover days are calculated based on the average trade payables
divided by cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

4. Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities and
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BIRE R MO (&)

INVENTORY TURNOVER DAYS

During the year, the Group's inventory turnover days were 83 days,
representing an increase of 7 days when compared with that of
2018, which was primarily attributable to the increased inventory
to meet the increase in orders on hand.

TRADE RECEIVABLE TURNOVER DAYS

During the year, the Group's trade receivable turnover days were
49 days, which was approximate to that of 2018.

TRADE PAYABLE TURNOVER DAYS

During the year, the Group’s trade payable turnover days were 65
days, which was approximate to that of 2018.

CURRENT RATIO

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's current ratio was 170.1%,
representing a decrease of 24.9 percentage points when compared
with that of 2018, which was primarily attributable to the decrease
in the Group’s net current assets.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group mainly operated in the PRC and is exposed to foreign
currency risks arising from various currency exposures, mainly with
respect to HK dollar, US dollar, Euro and RMB. The conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.
Exchange rate fluctuations and market trends have always been
a main concern of the Group. Foreign currency hedging of the
Group has been managed by the Group's chief financial officer,
and overseen by the Group's chief executive officer. In accordance
with the Group’s hedging needs and the then foreign exchange
situation, the Group’s chief financial officer would collect and
analyze information regarding various hedging instruments and
determine stop-loss thresholds. The Group's chief financial officer
would then collect quotations from various banks as to the financial
instrument and present such quotations to the Group's chief
executive officer, who would then evaluate and make a decision as
to whether to enter into the relevant hedging agreement.

The Group’s cash and bank balances were primarily denominated
in US dollar, RMB and HK dollar. Its operating cash inflows and
outflows were primarily denominated in RMB, US dollar, Euro
and HK dollar. The Group will closely monitor the exchange rate
movements and regularly review its gearing structure so as to
mitigate the expected exchange rate risk.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

RMB EXCHANGE RATE RISK

The Group's major revenue is principally denominated in US
dollar, Euro, HK dollar and RMB, and the Group’s major expenses
are denominated in RMB. The Group has not entered into any
agreement for RMB hedging purpose.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There was no change in the capital structure of the Company
during the year, and the Company’s capital included ordinary
shares and other reserves.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY'S
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 20 December 2013. Net
proceeds from the initial public offering totaled approximately
HK$268.0 million (including the net proceeds from the exercise of
the over-allotment option which took place on 15 January 2014).

The table below sets out the use of net proceeds from the initial
public offering. As of 31 December 2019, all proceeds have been
utilised as the intended use set out in the Company’'s prospectus
dated 11 December 2013 (the “Prospectus”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BEE WL ()

Use of proceeds Fri8FRIE A%
Till 31 December 2019
EZ2019%12A318
% of total Net Utilised Unutilised
amount proceeds amounts amounts
BN FEmE EBA A
BOk R ME NE

(HKS million) (HK$ million) (HKS$ million)
(BE#TT) (BEE#TT) (BE%T)

Establishing a new business iva
unit specialising in ultra-large 3

iz

standard molds

Upgrading mold fabrication FHRIE B BIVERE S
capabilities

Expanding Shenzhen plastic BRI E B AN REE
components manufacturing B2
capacity

Expanding Suzhou plastic BN B AN EEE
components manufacturing gE
capacity

Strategic acquisitions of other — SRES Y EE H /18 B Sl py
mold fabricators

Research and development IR A
General working capital —REEED

100% 268.0* 268.0

*  On 15 January 2014, China Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited, the sole *  R2014F1H15H + EHBEZERZHBHAA (1€

global coordinator (on behalf of the international underwriters) of the global KER E1 85 ) BB B 5 (BB ) BR A RIEE A 1T 124
offering, partially exercised the over-allotment option, pursuant to which the BEILARHE o Ut - AR AIARIEB AR 1.25)8 T %
Company issued 26,600,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at the subscription 7726,600,0004% & A ETE0. 18 7T 2 E#AK ° FTiE
price of HK$1.25 per share. The allocation of the net proceeds of HK$32.4 H)FEE32. 48 BB T IR BRER [ st BA % | —
million was adjusted on a pro rata basis as set out in the section headed “Use BT AL P B S AL - Bt - s sl B F &
of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. As a result, the net aggregate proceeds were ABEE{X235.6 5 BB T I1ZE268.0 5 E/ET °

increased from HK$235.6 million to HK$268.0 million.

The use of proceeds shown above is in line with the intended use e RIERREERERFRENRERSE —
as set out in the Prospectus. 2 o

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

PLANS FOR MATERIAL CAPITAL INVESTMENTS

The Group have invested in capacity expansion and investment
projects to capitalize the potential growth of the Group's business
in the coming years in the manner set out in the section headed
"Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus.

STAFF POLICY

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 4,072 full-time employees
(31 December 2018: 3,564) and 632 workers dispatched to us from
third party staffing companies (31 December 2018: 665).

The Group’'s remuneration policy aims to offer competitive
remuneration packages to recruit, retain and motivate competent
directors and employees. The Group believes the remuneration
packages are reasonable and competitive and in line with market
trends. The Group has put in place a share option scheme and a
share award scheme for its directors and employees in a bid to
provide a competitive package for the Group’s long-term growth
and development. The Group also provides appropriate training and
development programmes to its employees to enhance the staff’s
work ability and personal performance.

The Group has implemented training programmes for the
employees to meet different job requirements. The Group believes
that these initiatives have contributed to increasing employee
productivity.

As required by PRC regulations, the Group makes contributions
to mandatory social security funds for the benefits of its PRC
employees which provide pension insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance, maternity
insurance and housing funds.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has made no
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.
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Looking forward to 2020, the PRC and the United States signed the
phase | trade agreement. Though tariffs and boycott have not been
fully revoked yet, the signal to ease reflected by the agreement
that has been reached on certain tariff measures and trade-related
policies. However, the outbreak of novel coronavirus pneumonia
dealt the recovering global economy another major blow. As the
PRC is the second largest economy and the largest exporter in
the world, such outbreak and its containment measures, including
blockading cities and delay in resumption of work, have not only
cause impact on the manufacturing sector in the PRC, but also
posed a threat to global commodity supply chains and even to
global consumer demand. Recently, the epidemic has spread
more rapidly to all countries in the world, including many major
economies in Europe and the United States. Many regions have
implemented epidemic prevention measures such as blockading
cities, shutdown in work and suspension of flights. Physical stores
of many consumer brands in Europe and the United States have
been temporarily closed, severely damaging the global retail
market and consumer confidence. It is expected that the epidemic
will continue for a period of time, and many consumer electronics
brands have postponed the release of new products and the
development of new projects. As an upstream supplier, the Group
is inevitably affected, and the order sales volume of European and
American customers will be negatively affected to some extent.
Given the above, the Group will adopt practicable and prudent
approach towards to possible downward risks in economy in calm
manner and timely adjust its strategies, the Group will continue to
enhance its own competitiveness, striving to mitigate the shock
brought by external environment.

At present, the epidemic situation in China is showing signs of
easing. In order to revive the domestic economy, the central
government has introduced a number of monetary and fiscal
easing measures to stimulate domestic demand. The Group
will strengthen the expansion of China’s consumer product
market, continue to actively seek cooperation with more high-
tech consumer electronics products, medical products and other
brands, and adhere to the strategy of customer diversification so
as to stabilize risks caused by fluctuations in different sectors.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

It is expected that the global epidemic situation will be difficult to
become controlable in a short term. Additionally, as deglobalization
of several countries brought about political and economic risks,
various uncertainties will continue to affect the global trading and
consumer sentiment, which will bring fluctuation and challenges
to the macro-economy in 2020. To this end, the Board of Directors
has decided to temporarily put aside the plan to build overseas
factories and remained more prudent about all capital expenses,
in order to retain capital strength and maintain financial stability.
In addition, it maintains an efficient credit and trade receivables
turnover policy, stabilizes cash flow and financial position, and
prepares for long-term business development. At the same time,
the Group also continues to improve the intelligent automation
level and technological research and development of the existing
production lines in order to maintain its competitiveness and
profitability.

In the face of difficult business environment, the Group will
forge ahead with optimism and actively try to enhance its
competitiveness, maintain business and financial stability, and
cautiously cope with the volatile and challenging economic
environment in the coming year.

Developments as to Defects to Land Title with Respect to
the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants

Reference is made to the Prospectus and the announcement of the
Company dated 20 March 2014. Unless otherwise defined herein,
capitalized terms used in this sub-section shall have the same
meanings as those defined in the Prospectus.
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The Company has received a notice from TK Technology
(Shenzhen) Ltd. (“TK Technology (Shenzhen)”), the landlord of the
Shenzhen Tangjia Plants of the Company, that according to the
approval issued by Guangming District Branch under Shenzhen
Municipal Bureau of Planning and Natural Resources (ZYIT#R
ZFIEAERBHEEED) and Shenzhen Guangming District
Industrial and Informatization Bureau (RIIITHYEAE T EF{E B4t
/&) to TK Technology (Shenzhen), TK Technology (Shenzhen) has
obtained the permission to increase the existing plot ratio of the
land to have more room for the industrial development. The land
to be increased in the plot ratio has the same land parcel number
with the land disclosed in the property ownership certificate of
the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants of the Company. According to the
approval, the Company's internal legal advisers analyse that, in
order to promote the intensive and economical use of industrial
land at high-tech zones, Guangming District Branch under
Shenzhen Municipal Bureau of Planning and Natural Resources is
not likely to impose any penalty for leasing of the Shenzhen Tangjia
Land for high-technology project purposes without obtaining prior
approval and paying the land premium, such as confiscation of
the land or the eviction of the tenant. Given the above, the risks
related to Shenzhen Tangjia Plants and the leased properties no
longer exist, and the Company will continue its operation in the
existing properties. As such, the Company's relevant contingency
arrangements, including the pre-lease agreements entered into
with the landlord of the backup plants will no longer be required,
and the Company has also been expanding the existing capacity.
The Company has rented factories with red-type property
ownership certificate in Huizhou, Guangdong and Suzhou, Jiangsu
so far to avoid the risks of leased properties.

BREARBRYERBEZETRIIRROR
YDBBRRF(TRITEECRIN 1) e@a -
REFRNTRETNERAEBRBIAEERRHA
AYIm LR TEME B BERITIRZOR
YD - TR (RN E R EEKERE
THETERAEMERERZEBOA -
BV TR R B+ 3 8 B AT AR BRIIE
FHMEZFERZ L HWAR— R £
o ARBABERBEMBRBEA DN -
RIEESTEREXABENGSONA - &
YJMREMERERRARAEERETSY
AEFE A RAR M BEROIBER T H
HRYIER L = #Hira B B fEE(A
BRE - PlarR Rt SER B HES - RYIE
RXEELHEMERRTERE - ARED
BERIEEES - HLARRBEBERL
BE - B YRR BRI 3 X B0 E S AT i 05 S
THRZE - -[AE ARBAN-—HEBARE
ERE - BILEBR  CREERBM  THE
MEMBEAAFERLERE AR LHEE
MERR o



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Pui Leung, aged 60, is the chairman of the Group. Mr.
Li is one of the founders of the Group and was appointed as an
executive director on 28 March 2013. He is also the chairman
of the Board and the chairman of the Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Li is responsible for the overall management
and strategic planning of the Group. He has accumulated
more than 36 years of professional experience in plastic mold
fabrication and plastic injection molding and also experience
in business management in the manufacturing industry. Mr. Li
together with Mr. Lee Leung Yiu, a substantial shareholder and
an executive director of the Company, established Tung Kong
Machinery Moulding FTY in Hong Kong in 1983, and have since
expanded the Group’s mold fabrication business into the PRC
in 1992 and moved the operations to Shenzhen, the PRC. Mr. Li
was elected the “Winner of Young Industrialist Awards of Hong
Kong” in 2003 and “Outstanding Person of Shenzhen Machinery
Industry” in 2004, and awarded “Shenzhen Person of the Year”
by Southern Metropolitan Daily in 2013. Mr. Li holds several
social titles, including serving as a committee member and the
convenor of Hong Kong of Shenzhen Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, the President of Guang Ming General
Chamber of Commerce (Industry and Commerce), a committee
member and honorary president of Hong Kong Young Industrialists
Council Foundation, the Chairman of Kowloon City District Road
Safety Campaign Committee, the vice chairman of Federation
of Hong Kong Shenzhen Association Limited, the vice president
of Shenzhen Overseas Chinese International Association, the
executive director of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce,
the vice chairman of charity committee of Shenzhen Guangming
District and the president of Rotary Club, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong
in 2000. In July 1974, Mr. Li graduated from Yuanzhou Gongshe
Lulan Primary School in Boluo, Guangdong in China, and obtained
a middle school graduation certificate. Mr. Li is also the controlling
shareholder and director of both Eastern Mix Company Limited
(a controlling shareholder of the Company) and Lead Smart
Development Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company),
and the elder brother of Mr. Lee Leung Yiu.
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Mr. Yung Kin Cheung, Michael, aged 58, is an executive director
and the chief executive officer of the Group. He is also a member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Yung has
approximately 31 years of experience in plastic mold fabrication
and plastic injection molding. He was appointed as an executive
director of the Group on 28 March 2013. Mr. Yung is responsible
for formulation and implementation of the business plans of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yung acted as a buyer in
National Semiconductor Hong Kong Ltd. from May 1985 to August
1987. He was promoted to Component Engineer in May 1987.
From August 1987 to February 1989, Mr. Yung served at AST
Research (Far East) Ltd. as a procurement engineer. Mr. Yung
joined the Group in 1989 as the general manager and was primarily
responsible for operation management for the molding business.
He has been serving as the managing director of the Group since
2000, and is mainly responsible for business development and
the daily operations of the Group’s business. Mr. Yung graduated
from the Department of Industrial Engineering of the University of
Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree of Science in Engineering in
November 1983. He also graduated from the Centre of Buddhist
Studies of the Faculty of Social Sciences of the University of Hong
Kong with a Master’'s Degree in Buddhist Studies in November
2008. Mr. Yung is also the shareholder and director of Eastern
Mix Company Limited (a controlling shareholder of the Company),
and the controlling shareholder and director of Cheer Union
Development Ltd. (a substantial shareholder of the Company).

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu, aged 59, is an executive director of the Group.
He is one of the founders of the Group and was appointed as an
executive director of the Group on 28 March 2013. Mr. Lee has
approximately 36 years of experience in plastic mold fabrication
and plastic injection molding. Mr. Lee together with Mr. Li Pui
Leung (a controlling shareholder, the Chairman and an executive
director of the Company) established Tung Kong Machinery
Moulding FTY, in 1983. He has been holding the position of
manager, mainly responsible for procurement for the Group. From
August 2009 to October 2010, Mr. Lee completed the EMBA
training classes of Graduate School of Tsinghua University, China,
and obtained a certificate of completion. In June 2013, Mr. Lee
obtained a degree of master of business administration from
the University of Wales, the United Kingdom. Mr. Lee is also
the shareholder and director of Eastern Mix Company Limited
(a controlling shareholder of the Company), the controlling
shareholder and director of Normal Times International Limited (a
substantial shareholder of the Company), and the younger brother
of Mr. Li Pui Leung.
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Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, aged 57, was appointed as an executive
director and the chief financial officer of the Group on 27
November 2013. Mr. Cheung joined the Group in July 2002, as
a corporate financial controller and was mainly responsible for
the finance, taxation, audit and investment of the Group. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung had served at Deloitte Ross
Tohmatsu (currently known as “Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu”) and
served as a financial controller for a FORTUNE 500 manufacture
company, and manufacturing companies listed in Hong Kong
and the U.S.. He has accumulated 32 years of experience in the
field of auditing, accounting and corporate finance. Mr. Cheung
graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (the predecessor of Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) in November 1987 with a major in
accounting, and is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants since January 1996 and a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
September 1990.

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy, GBS B8S Jr, aged 67, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company on 27
November 2013. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, and a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Dr. Chung obtained a doctoral degree in engineering from the
University of Warwick, the United Kingdom in May 2010 and a
Doctor of Business Administration Degree from City University
of Macau in September 2012. He was re-appointed as an
Industrial Professor by the University of Warwick, the United
Kingdom in December 2015. He was awarded a doctorate of
business administration honoris causa by the University of
Macau in November 2019, an honorary doctorate of science by
the University of Warwick, the United Kingdom, in July 2019, an
honorary doctorate of business administration by the Lingnan
University in November 2015, an honorary doctorate of business
administration by the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
December 2007 and an honorary degree, Doctor of the University,
by the University of Newcastle, Australia in July 2006 respectively.
He was awarded by the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Government (“HKSAR Government”) the Gold Bauhinia Star (GBS)
Medal on 30 June 2017, the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) Medal on 1
July 2011, and was appointed as Justice of Peace on 1 July 2005.
Dr. Chung won the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Award in 1997,
and was further awarded the Industrialist of the Year in November
2014.
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Dr. Chung is highly dedicated to the advancement of Hong Kong
industry. He was the Chairman of the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries from July 2011 to July 2013 and has been serving as the
Honorary President of the Federation since 5 July 2013. In addition,
Dr. Chung has served on various HKSAR Government advisory
committees and is an active member of many social committees
and associations. Dr. Chung was appointed as the Chairman of
the Vocational Training Council from January 2018 until December
2019. He is also the Founder and Chairman of Bright Future
Charitable Foundation.

Dr. Chung is a co-founder and currently a non-executive director
of Techtronic Industries Company Limited (stock code: 669),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He has also been an
independent non-executive director of Fujikon Industrial Holdings
Limited (stock code: 927), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, since 1 April 2014; and an independent non-executive
director of Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (stock code: 345),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since 24 June 2017.

Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung, aged 39, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company on 20
December 2019. She is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company.

Ms. Leung has practiced as a Barrister in Hong Kong for nearly 13
years. Ms. Leung obtained her PCLL from the University of Hong
Kong in 2005. She was called to the Bar in Hong Kong in 2006.

Ms. Leung has a broad-based civil practice, undertaking work in
all aspects of contractual and commercial disputes, personal injury
and family law. From 2007 to 2012, Ms. Leung has been a part-
time Lecturer of Company Law for the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountant (HKICPA) Practising Certificate Law
Examination and a part-time Lecturer of Corporate and Business
Law for the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Ms.
Leung is also a contributing editor of Archbold Hong Kong and
Company Law in Hong Kong - Insolvency.
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Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, aged 67, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 27
November 2013. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of both the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Tsang is a former
partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers in Hong Kong and China and
has over 30 years of experience in auditing and providing support
for initial public offerings and acquisition transactions. Mr. Tsang
received a bachelor's degree in business administration from
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants.

Currently, Mr. Tsang is an independent non-executive director of
the following companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange: China Merchants China Direct Investments Limited
(stock code: 133), Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
(stock code: 460), China Animation Characters Company Limited
(stock code: 1566). Mr. Tsang was an independent director of Agria
Corporation (formerly listed on the New York Stock Exchange and
delisted in January 2017) from August 2011 to October 2017, a
director of PGG Wrightson Limited (a company listed on the New
Zealand Stock Exchange, stock code: PGW) from November 2014
to October 2017 and an independent non-executive director of Ping
An Securities Group (Holdings) Limited (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 231) from February 2016 to March
2020.

Mr. Yue Yiu Chung, aged 53, joined the Group in July 2014 as
corporate financial controller, and is responsible for the Group and
plants finance operation. Prior to joining the Group, he worked for
a company listed in the U.S. and was responsible for the entire
Asia Pacific region finance affair. He has approximately 28 years
of experience in auditing and finance. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in accountancy from City University of Hong Kong. He
has also been a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants since August 2000.
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Mr. Lu Gong Shan, aged 40, is the general manager of the mold
fabrication segment of the Group. Mr. Lu joined the Group in
May 2002, and was appointed as the deputy general manager
of the Group in January 2009, responsible for the development
of the mold fabrication business, project management and the
management of affairs in respect of technology, quality and
sourcing management. In October 2013, Mr. Lu was appointed
as the general manager of the standard mold business units of
the Group, he is responsible for the overall management of the
standard mold business units. Mr. Lu graduated from Zhengzhou
University of Light Industry in July 2000 with a diploma of high
molecular material machining specialised in mold design and
manufacturing. In May 2013, Mr. Lu obtained a degree of master of
Business Administration in Executive Management from the Royal
Roads University.

Mr. Yim Cham Sum, aged 54, joined the Group and was
appointed as the Operations Director of the plastic components
manufacturing division of the Group in December 2017,
responsible for the operation management of the plastic
components manufacturing division. He was appointed as the
general manager of the plastic components manufacturing
division of the Group in January 2019, responsible for the overall
management of the plastic components manufacturing division.
Mr. Yim obtained the Degree of Master of Business Administration
(MBA) from the University of Strathclyde in the U.K. in July 2002.
He had worked in the manufacturing operation management for
over ten years and has worked of Nypro Plastics & Metal Products
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

Mr. Lok See Yuen Samuel, aged 43, is the chief marketing
director of the plastic components manufacturing division of the
Group. Mr. Lok joined the Group in August 2009 and was appointed
as the chief marketing director of the plastic components
manufacturing division of the Group. He was mainly responsible
for sales and marketing affairs of the plastics components
manufacturing division. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lok had
approximately eight years of experience in Plastics industry. Mr.
Lok previously served as the application development manager
of GE Plastics Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lok graduated from The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a bachelor’s
degree in mechanical engineering in November 1998.
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Mr. Joerg Wehling, aged 53, Mr. Joerg Wehling onboard on 4 May
2017 as the marketing director of precision mold business unit of
the Group, and will take charge of all the management work for
precision mold business unit. Mr. Joerg Wehling graduated from
Fachhochschule Wiener Neustadt of a College degree in 1985,
and has more than 30 years of work experience in the tooling and
molding industry. Mr. Joerg Wehling has previously worked for
famous companies, such as Jabil, Molex Automotive, KTW, Husky
IMS, etc.

Mr. Xing Fu Zhi, aged 44, is the internal audit manager of the
Group. Mr. Xing joined the Group in November 2011, and was
appointed as the internal audit manager of the Group, responsible
for the internal audit of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Xing had approximately 13 years of experience in finance and audit.
Mr. Xing has held positions such as assistant accountant in a Wal-
Mart China company, senior internal control consultant in an IBM
joint venture in China, finance manager and internal audit manager
in Hitachi GST China. During his service in IBM and Hitachi, he was
involved in a number of projects including ERP implementation and
SOX compliance. Mr. Xing became a member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a certified internal auditor
of The Institute of Internal Auditors in November 2009. Mr. Xing
graduated in June 1998 form Sun Yat-sen University in the PRC
with a bachelor’'s degree in economics, majoring in auditing. He
also obtained the Degree of Master of Business Administration
(MBA) from The University of Manchester in November 2013.

Ms. Zeng Xie Qin, aged 45, joined the Group on 1 March 2016
as Human Resources Director and is responsible for the Group’s
and plant’'s Human Resources management work. Prior to joining
the Group, she worked for several enterprises of the FORTUNE
Top 500, such as Jabil, Philips and Mars. She graduated in Jiangxi
Nanchang university and obtained human resource management
division intermediate certificate. During “2017 Shenzhen influential
HR" competition activity, she won the Chief Talent Officer award
in Shenzhen, which issued by Shenzhen human resources services
association.

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, aged 57 is the company secretary of the
Company. Please refer to “Directors and Senior Management
— Executive Directors — Mr. Cheung Fong Wa" for further
information.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRE

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company believes that good corporate governance practices
are very important for maintaining and promoting investors’
confidence and for the sustainable growth of the Group. The Board
sets appropriate policies and implements corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of the Group's
business. The Board is committed to strengthening the Group's
corporate governance practices and ensuring transparency and
accountability of the Company's operations.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”). The Company regularly reviews its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with
all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the year
ended 31 December 2019. Key corporate governance principles
and practices of the Company are summarized below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “"Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding directors’ dealing in the Company's securities.

Having made specific enquiry of the directors, all the directors

have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

COMPLIANCE WITH THE WRITTEN GUIDELINES
FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY THE
RELEVANT EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines"”), governing securities transactions by employees
(including directors or employees of a subsidiary or holding
company of the Company) who are likely to possess inside
information of the Company and/or its securities. No incident
of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company.

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted period for
dealings in the Company's securities, the Company will notify its
directors and relevant employees in advance.

THE BOARD
Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 7 members, consisting of 4
executive directors and 3 independent non-executive directors.

Executive directors

Mr. Li Pui Leung (Chairman)

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy

Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time
pursuant to the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive
directors are expressly identified in all corporate communications
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set
out under “Directors and Senior Management” section in this
annual report. Save as Mr. Li Pui Leung and Mr. Lee Leung Yiu
are brothers, none of the members of the Board is related to one
another.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

ALI;/v

EERAME(E)

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer
to ensure a balance of power and authority. The positions of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are currently held by Mr.
Li Pui Leung and Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael respectively.
Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in
writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the overall
management and strategic planning of the Group and the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate
governance practices, whereas the Chief Executive Officer
focuses on the day-to-day management of the Group's business
and implementing objectives, policies, strategies and business
plan of the Group approved and delegated by the Board.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board has at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of
having three independent non-executive directors (representing at
least one-third of the Board) with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide
spectrum of business and financial expertise, experience and
independent judgment to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. They are invited to serve on the Board Committees
of the Company. Through active participation at Board and
Board Committees meetings, taking the lead in managing
issues involving potential conflict of interests, all independent
non-executive directors have made various contributions to the
effective direction of the Company and provided adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of both the Group and the
shareholders.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive directors of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive directors to be
independent in light of the independence guidelines set out in the
said Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All directors of the Company are appointed for a specific term,
subject to renewal upon expiry of the existing term. Each executive
director is engaged on a service agreement for a term of 3 years,
which may be terminated by either party by not less than 3
months’ written notice. Each of the independent non-executive
directors of the Company is appointed for a term of 3 years.

The procedure and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Company's Articles
of Association (the “Articles”). The Nomination Committee
is responsible for reviewing Board composition, monitoring
the appointment of directors and assessing the independent
non-executive directors.

According to the Articles, one-third of the directors for the time
being (if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at
each annual general meeting provided that every director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once
every three years. In addition, any new director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board shall hold office only until
the first general meeting after appointment, and any new director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board shall hold office
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company.
The retiring directors are eligible for re-election by the shareholders
at the respective general meetings.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
PEERME(E)

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The Board is also responsible for implementing
policies in relation to financial matters, which include risk
management and internal controls and compliance, if applicable.
In addition, the Board reviews the financial performance of the
Group, approves investment proposals, nomination of directors
to the Board and appointment of key management personnel.
These functions are carried out either directly by the Board or
through Board committees such as Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee.

All directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the shareholders of the Company, the duties
to act honestly and in good faith, in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times and to avoid conflicts of interests.

All directors have timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management, with a view to ensuring compliance with Board
procedures and all applicable laws and regulations. Any director
may request for independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company's expenses, upon reasonable
request made to the Board.

Delegation of corporate governance duties

The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee the responsibility
for performing corporate governance functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the Year under Review, the Audit Committee has reviewed
and monitored the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance with the Model Code and the Employees Written
Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Delegation of management functions

The Board gives clear directions as to the powers delegated to the
management for the management and administration functions of
the Group, in particular, with respect to the circumstances where
management should report back and obtain prior approval from the
Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments
on behalf of the Group. Matters which are specifically reserved to
the full Board for decision are those involving a conflict of interest
of a substantial shareholder or a director, material acquisitions
and disposal of assets, corporate or financial restructuring, share
issuance and distribution of dividend, and approval of financial
results and corporate strategies. The Board will review those
issues on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to
the needs of the Group.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed director shall receive induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment to ensure he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
he/she is fully aware of director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The existing
directors are continually updated on changes and developments
to the Group’'s business and on the latest developments in
the laws, rules and regulations relating to directors’ duties and
responsibilities. Directors’ training is an ongoing process. All
directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at
the Company’s expenses. Directors are requested to provide their
training records to the Company for records.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
PEERME(E)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the directors have HZE2019F12A31BILFE - EF—HET
complied with the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on PEEEATRZ TS EA6.5E - REA
participation in continuous professional training as follows: THEEHEERE -

Mode of participation

S B
Name of director a b c d
= o
Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Li Pui Leung MR A v v 4 v
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael SEDLEE v/ 7 v/ v/
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TREBEE v v/ 4 v
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa R ELA v v/ v v/
Independent non-executive directors: BUIHITESF -
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy EETIELT v/ v/ v v
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung REBR LT (R2019F v v 4 v
(appointed with effect from 12820 5 EZ(F)
20 December 2019)
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong WIS v/ v v/ v
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung (resigned fAlRR B A (R20194F v v v 7
with effect from 20 December 2019) 12H20H B F)
a: Directors attended a training session conducted by the Company relating to a: EBFLNTHAQARMEBHEIIRE  NFEEE
directors’ duties and responsibilities under Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, EREBLARNEE - EEANREMERERENA
the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations. HTHBENMEE -

b:  Directors received regular briefings and updates from the Company Secretary/ b: EBEEEITARME AFAAREEEBEEHEASEE
the Company’s management on the Group's business, operations and corporate B BERCEEAREENTHEREEHELR -
governance matters.

c:  Directors attended seminars/forums, which are relevant to their duties and c. ERHETHIEERR WEMBKABREEZH
responsibilities, organised by professional firms/institutions. BERETHBOTNE, HE -

d:  Directors read technical bulletins, periodicals and other publications on subjects d: ESEMETEIEERAEBREER ETHERKEAE
relevant to the Group and on their responsibilities and obligations under the BEHRIBTEEMEBORM AR - H TR E A
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. hi#7)
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS

The attendance records of each director at the Board and Board
committees meetings and the general meeting of the Company
held during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out below:

TEERRE(E)

EEHERLE
BEENHZE2019F12A31 B I EERNETT
NARNBEFENEFELEHURK
RAREe 2 B RELHETIMT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE/ EERE

Annual

Audit Remuneration  Nomination General

Name of director Board  Committee = Committee ~ Committee Meeting

el

EEng £ BREES ¥HMZES REZEE BEAE

Executive directors: HITEE -

Mr. Li Pui Leung FHRAE 6/6 N/ARE N/ARER A n

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael SEALE 6/6 NATER 202 N/ATER 1”1

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TRBELE 6/6 NATER NATER N/ATER mn

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa REERE 6/6 NATER N/ARER N/ATER 1
Independent non-executive directors: BUHHTEE

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy EETEL 6/6 3/3 212 171 17

Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung (Note 1) Z&EHZL(##1) /1 11 101 0/0 0/0

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong DEFEE 6/6 33 202 171 171

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung (Note 2) AR EHE2) 5/5 22 1" mn 1

Note 1: Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung was appointed as an independent Htat1 : REBHELZTN2019F12 8208 EZ T AR QR

Note 2:

non-executive director and a member of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company with
effect from 20 December 2019. Subsequent to her appointment, there
were 1 Board meeting, 1 Audit Committee meeting and 1 Remuneration
Committee meeting during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung resigned as an independent non-executive director
and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company with effect from 20 December
2019. Before his resignation, there were 5 Board meetings, 2 Audit
Committee meetings, 1 Remuneration Committee meeting, 1 Nomination
Committee meeting and 1 Annual General Meeting were held during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

In addition, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting with the
independent non-executive directors without the presence of the
other directors during the Year under Review.
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The Board established three committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The terms of
reference of the Board committees are posted on the Company's
website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to
shareholders upon request. All the Board committees should
report to the Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises 4 members,
namely, Mr. Li Pui Leung (Chairman), Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy,
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, the
majority of which are independent non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee is responsible to review the structure,
size and composition (including skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board at least once in any financial year and to make
recommendation on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed
without undue disruption, the Company has adopted a Director
Nomination Policy. The Policy includes a formal, considered
and transparent procedure for selection, appointment and
reappointment of Directors, as well as plans in place for orderly
succession (if necessary), including periodical review of such
plans.
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During the identification of suitable individuals, to ensure the
effective carrying out of the responsibilities by the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider criteria set out as below,
including but not limited to:

the integrity, experience, skills and professional knowledge;

a balance of skills, experience and diversity appropriate to the
requirements of the Company's business;

adequate amount of time and effort devoted to the Company;

contribution to the diversity of the Board;

participating in Board meetings to bring an independent
judgment on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of
conducts;

taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

bringing a range of business and financial experience to
the Board, giving the Board and any Committees on which
he or she serves the benefit of his or her skills, expertise,
varied backgrounds and qualifications and diversity through
attendance and participation in the Board/Committee
meetings; and

scrutinising the Company's performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance.

The Committee identifies suitable individual qualified to become
Board members and makes recommendation to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment of a new Director
(to be an additional Director or fill a casual vacancy as and when
it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors. External recruitment
professionals might be engaged to carry out selection process
when necessary.
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The Company believes that diversity underpins the successful
operation on an effective Board and embraces diversity as a
means of attaining its strategic objectives. According to the
diversity policy of the Board adopted by the Company, the
Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the policy,
developing and reviewing measurable objectives (including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service)
for implementing the policy, and monitoring the progress on
achieving the measurable objectives set to ensure the continued
effectiveness of the Board. To ensure the effectiveness of this
Policy, the Nomination Committee will, as appropriate, review the
Nomination Policy, discuss any revisions that may be required and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval. The Company believes that greater diversity of directors
is good for corporate governance and is committed to attract and
retain candidate(s) for Board with a combination of competencies
from the widest possible pool of available talents; and to increase
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in maintaining
the Company’s competitive advantage.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination
Committee has been focused on increasing the number of female
members, Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director, a member of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company with effect from 20 December 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination
Committee has held 1 meeting (the attendance records of
each Committee member are set out in above section headed
“Directors’ Attendance Records”) and performed the following
major works:

— Review of the policy for the nomination of directors;
— Review of the structure, size and composition of the Board to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience

appropriate to the requirements for the business of the Group;

— Recommendation of the re-election of the retiring directors
standing for re-election at the 2019 annual general meeting;

— Assessment of the independence of all the Company’s
independent non-executive directors; and

— Recommendation of the appointment of independent
non-executive director of the Company during the year.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises 4 members,
namely, Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy (Chairman), Mr. Yung Kin Cheung
Michael, Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung and Mr. Tsang Wah
Kwong, the majority of which are independent non-executive
directors.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. The
primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure and reviewing and approving remuneration
proposals of all directors and the senior management. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance
of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration
Committee has held 2 meetings (the attendance records of
each Committee member are set out in above section headed
“Directors’ Attendance Records”) and performed the following
major works:

— Review of the remuneration policy and structure of the Group;
— Assessment of the performance of executive directors;

— Review of the remuneration package of directors and senior
management;

— Consideration of the bonus payable to directors and senior
management for the year 2018 and the proposed salary
increment for the year 2019; and

— Recommendation of the remuneration package of the
newly appointed independent non-executive director of the
Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
PEERME(E)

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual BB 24T TAEXEBI15E &
remuneration of the members of the senior management, including MEBEKE (BIEREETFRTEENSN
those members of senior management who are also executive EIEERKE)NEH Z2019F12A31HIEFE
directors, by band for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out L EEFHMEARN S BMAT

below:
Remuneration band (HK$) Number of individual
48 Bl (B T) AE
500,001-1,000,000 1
1,000,001-1,500,000 2
1,500,001-2,000,000 _
2,000,001-2,500,000 2
2,500,001-3,000,000 -
3,000,001-3,500,000 1
3,500,001-4,000,000 8

4,000,001-4,500,000 e
4,500,001-5,000,000 -

5,000,001-5,500,000 1
5,500,001-6,000,000 -
6,000,001-6,500,000 1

Details of the remuneration of each director of the Company for AABEEEREZE2019F12A31BHIEFE
the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 37 to the ZHMFBEHR P SRR EIT -
financial statements.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises 3 members, namely, Mr.
Tsang Wah Kwong (Chairman), Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy and Ms.
Christine Wan Chong Leung, all are independent non-executive
directors.

The responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual terms raised by the external auditor
before submission to the Board.

To review the relationship with external auditor by reference
to the work performed by the auditor, their fees and terms of
engagement and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor.

To review and supervise the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit plan.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee
has held 3 meetings (the attendance records of each Committee
member are set out in above section headed “Directors’
Attendance Records”) and performed the following major works:

Review and discussion of the annual audited financial
statements, results announcement and report for the year
ended 31 December 2018, the related accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and the relevant audit
findings, the report from the management on the Company's
review of the risk management and internal control systems,
and recommendation of the re-appointment of the external
auditor;

Review of the Group’s continuing connected transactions and
the compliance of the non-competition undertaking provided
by the Company’s controlling shareholders;
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Review of and monitoring the Company's corporate
governance policies and practices, the training and
continuous professional development of directors and
senior management, the Company's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and the Employees Written
Guidelines, and the Company's compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report;

Review and discussion of the interim financial statements,
results announcement and report for the six months ended 30
June 2019, and the related accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group;

Review of the annual audit plan of PricewaterhouseCoopers,
including the nature and scope of the audit, the fee payable to
them, their reporting obligations and their work plan; and

Review of the effectiveness and performance of the
Company's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit plan.

The external auditor attended all the above meetings to discuss
with the Audit Committee members on issues arising from the
audit and financial reporting matters.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the appointment of external auditor.

The Company Secretary is Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, who fulfils
the qualification requirements laid down in the Listing Rules.
Biographical details of Mr. Cheung are set out under “Directors and
Senior Management"” section in this annual report. During the year
ended 31 December 2019, Mr. Cheung has taken not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 109 to 115.

The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s
auditor, in respect of audit and non-audit services for the year

ended 31 December 2019 are analysed below:

Type of services provided by the external auditor

SN BT RS E R

CEEARE(E)

SMNEE A B AT I X B AT A

RARMIINEZBMRESEHARAHE
2019F 12 AN B ILFEMBMENEME T
BB AFBHNE109E 1168 0B L Z A
WER o

HZE2019F12A31BILEE BN/ ERAAK
DEZEANE RGBS AT B ATA AR E
MIEZEREBRSTAOT ¢

Fees paid/payable

e, ENEH
HK$'000
FET
Audit services — audit fee for ZE R —EZE2019%12A31H

the year ended 31 December 2019 IEFEMZEER 3,486

Non-audit services — interim review fee for I B BRTS — B =20199F6 A30H
the six months ended 30 June 2019 IENA R R+ EiER & A 501
Total: RET 3,987

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements for each financial year, which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group and of the results and cash flows of the Group for that year
and in compliance with relevant law and disclosure provisions
of the Listing Rules. In preparing the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2019, the directors have selected
appropriate accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable,
and have prepared disclosure of the financial position of the Group
with reasonable accuracy at any time.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board believes that sound risk management and internal
control systems are essential to the achievement of the strategic
goals of the Group, and confirmed that the Board is responsible
to set up, maintain and review the effectiveness of such systems.
Management is responsible for the design and implementation
of the Group’'s risk management and internal control systems
to manage the risk. Good risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance.

The Group’s risk management framework

In order to improve the risk management and internal control
systems, as well as enhance the level of management and risk
prevention capabilities, the Group established its risk management
framework in 2016. The risk management framework includes
the Board and its Audit Committee, senior management and
subsidiary managements, in three levels (details refer to the below
framework).

B 3 e A BB R 4

EXeRn BEEREEMAMEZER
SUERAEBENEBESEHEER @ Wi
REFGAAENRE  HEIRTZER
BOARE EEEAEAERRATEASE
ERREENABEERRUNEERR - R
FRRBREEMANEZERGEEEEMIF
HERAREERXKBEMRER - BRERH
BEMIFEHORE -

REBENEREERE

ATERREERANEZERS  BAERE
IKERE R HEE S - AERBR2016F 2L
TEEBREERE BEREEREAEZEN
HEZZES SREEE WEARER
E-AEEAXK(ARFBEL2RIATREER)

Risk management framework

E i EEEEE
3 Top Decision Making Level Board
i BEREE Bxg

Sl g

: Risk Management Senior Management

Facilitating Committee

==
AREEREEES BREEE

(Including CEO/CFO/Division GM etc.)

(BFECEO/CFO/EXEGMESRERAE)

Internal Audit Department
AEDE = ED

N—/

Risk Management Position
B E IR FE

N/

| e N\ N\ N\ N\ N\ i
| Mold Fabrication Plastic Components l
: THER JEEER l
! e Marketing e Marketing |
; B B |
! e Project ® Project 3 |
1 HE EE e =
! Risk Management RE E_'B . Tech:ical o 3 N z 5|
! Implementing Level * Quality Al ER g I m =12 g El| |
1 44 /= (\“L Al =+ 0
! R EETE AR « Material S § M3 & IEEAR
i e Technical ateria ok 3 2 @ = 5 & 0
: AT YR O | wS || [k ]
' . 3 [e] = |
: * Procurement * Quality 1 > 8 |
: BELMRBE B 3 el
: * Supply Chain ¢ Production Material :
| fpEsE Control etc. :
| BHEFIZ :
| e Production Material ERMAHEHS :
: Control etc. :
| EERHESIE ‘
: J \\ J \\ J \ J . J . J

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019



The Group has commissioned a professional risk advisory body
to help build risk management framework, develop the Risk
Assessment Manual, and conduct risk assessments to determine
the nature and extent of the risk. In the risk assessment process,
the management and the Internal Audit Department, have
identified the major risks faced by the Group and ranked these
risks according to the likelihood and the severity of the impact on
the Group, as well as further development of risk management
measures to maintain the risks at an acceptable level.

The Company also has an Internal Audit Department, which is
responsible for performing independent review of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems.

The management and the Internal Audit Department would
report to the Audit Committee and the Board on all findings and
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems,
and makes recommendations. The Audit Committee also ensures
that an overall review of the effectiveness of such systems is
conducted at least annually and put forward to the Board for
consideration.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives; and acknowledges
its responsibility for the risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing their effectiveness.

The Company has also developed its disclosure policy which
provides a general guide to the Company’s directors, officers,
senior management and relevant employees in handling
confidential information, monitoring information disclosure and
responding to enquiries.
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Review of risk management and internal control system

The Board and its Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness
of the Company’'s risk management and internal control systems
for the year 2019, as well as taking into account the resource,
adequacy of staff qualifications, training and experience of the
Company's accounting and financial reporting and internal audit
functions. Based on the reports submitted by the Internal Audit
Department and the management, the Board considered that the
Company's risk management and internal control systems are
effective and adequate.

The Group has its risk management and internal control policies
and procedures reviewed, to ensure compliance with the new
requirements, and explore opportunities for improvement.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more members
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meeting of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary at the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition, and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the
written requisition.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

If a shareholder wishes to put forward proposals at a shareholders’
meeting, the shareholder, who has satisfied the shareholding
requirements set out in the above paragraph headed “Procedures
for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting”,
may follow the same procedures by sending a written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong. The shareholder should
state his/her proposals in the written requisition and submit the
written requisition as early as practicable to enable the Company
Secretary to make necessary arrangement.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director of the Company at a general
meeting, pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles, the shareholder
(other than the person to be proposed) should prepare a written
notice duly signed by him/her of his/her intention to propose a
person for the election and a notice duly signed by the person to
be proposed of his/her willingness to be elected. These notices
should be lodged at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong or its share registrar at least 7 days prior to the date
of the general meeting. Where the notices are submitted after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting, the period for the
lodgment of the notices should commence on the day after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting and end not later than
7 days prior to the date of the general meeting.

Procedure for sending enquiries to the Board

Shareholders are welcome to send enquiries to the Board to the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Workshop
No. 19, 9th Floor, Block B, Hi-Tech Industrial Centre, No. 491-501
Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

The annual general meetings and twice-yearly business
performance conference of the Company provide a platform for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or,
in their absence, other members of the respective committees,
and, where applicable, the chairman of the independent Board
committee are available to answer questions at shareholders’
meeting.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.tkmold.com where up-to-date information and
updates on the Company’'s business operations and development,
financial information and other information are available for public
access.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the Year under Review, the Company has not made any

changes to its Articles. An up-to-date version of the Articles is
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019
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ABOUT THE REPORT

This is the fourth Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (the “Report”) issued by the Group. It aims to fulfill the
Group’s commitments and better acquaints each stakeholder
with the development direction of the Group by reporting the
Group's latest policies, measures and effectiveness in terms
of environment, society and governance. The Report is in
Chinese and English, and has been published on the websites
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and the Group (www.tkmold.com).

REPORTING SCOPE

The Report covers the Group’s environmental, social and
governance ("ESG") performance for the year from 1
January 2019 to 31 December 2019 (the “year”). In addition
to covering as before the Group’s manufacturing base in
Shenzhen headquarters and the manufacture of plastic
injection components and mould making in the manufacturing
base in Suzhou, the reporting scopes also include the Group's
manufacturing base in Huizhou due to capacity expansion.

Moreover, the Group’s offices in Hong Kong and Germany are
excluded in the Report due to their relative small turnover as
a percentage of the Group’s total turnover. In the future, the
Group will cautiously consider the gradual expansion of the
disclosure scope in order to give a full view of the Group’'s
ESG performance.

REPORTING STANDARDS

The Report is prepared in accordance with the "ESG Reporting
Guide” set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Guide"”) and on the basis of the four principles of
Materiality, Quantitative, Balance and Consistency. For better
completing the reporting contents, the Group also chooses to
report by using the contents recommended to be disclosed by
the Guide on top of complying with the “comply or explain”
provisions in the Guide.
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Reporting Principles

BEE 3% R AU

Materiality
BEM

Definition &%

The reporting will be focused on the ESG
issues which have material effects on the
Group and stakeholders.
BHEREAEARSEROHEELEZTEVEDN

R HEREREE

Response [Ef&

As there was no material change in the nature and
size of its business during the year, the Group will
continue to report on materiality issues chosen in
last year.

AEERAFEAEBEERREW REESRE
bt Bt EELR F—FEMERNEELREHE
TEHER -

Quantitative

21

The KPI data should be measureable and
comparable when appropriate.
FREMEIRAR T8 WEEE B TET
LEES -

The Group's social KPIs are sourced from

the statistics of the relevant departments. In
addition, in order to ensure the accuracy of the
environmental KPls, the Group has commissioned
Carbon Care Asia, a professional consulting
company, to perform carbon assessment with
criteria required by the Guideline of the Greenhouse
Gas Emissions Accounting and Reporting for
Machinery Manufacturing Enterprises (Trial) and
national and international standards including
ISO14064-1.

REEEE D ORBRRE SRR RRN BRI 5E
TSN ARRIRRERERUEEMERYE - K&
BB ZEEEREEQ MR METTHREE - el h
IRERE (MR ERECRREREBYNZES
EERE R (F17)) &IS014064-15 B A & B B iZ
AT o

Balance
T

An issuer shall report on its ESG performance
during the year in an objective and truthful
manner.

BOOANERE  AEHMERAFENIRR  HE
RERTHNKRE -

In the preparation of the Report, the Group not
only focused on describing its achievements in
ESG, but also introduced difficulties occurred and
corresponding solutions.

RAMERSHBIED - AEERISEMIRE 1
gREANKR - N E R R & RERTA

Consistency

—Bft

The disclosures in the Report should use
consistent disclosing methodologies to allow
for comparisons of KPIs in relation to ESG for
understanding corporate performance.
WMERBERRA-—BOBRBES 7L SHER
5 e RERE AN BRESEEE R AL
BN TREERR -

In the Report, the Group has adopted methods the
same as the previous years and compared some
ESG data for the year with data for the previous
years. For details, please refer to the section
headed “Overview of Key Performance Indicators”.
RAREFR - AEBDIRARTFERNST L -
WHEARFERDIRE 4 ERE BB ETFHEE
LEER o B2 [BRENETAE |Z8 -
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RECOGNITION AND APPROVAL BRI E

The Group has established the internal monitoring and formal REBECDKINAEEREXEERRTF @ 18
review procedures in order to guarantee the accuracy and NIERARENB 2B E R ERER] 5 -
reliability of all the materials presented in the Report. The RABRECR - BE-_EFE=-"A-_++HEESE
Report was recognized and approved by the Board on 27 SRERBNMILE -

March 2020.

COMMENTS AND FEEDBACK ERKtE

Comments or recommendations of stakeholders in aspects of REBENDEZMHERAEFNIEE  H&
the Group's ESG performance are greatly valued by the Group. LEARATEMKREREAMNERNEZ - &
Please feel free to contact us by the following means: BRATHABEARER -

Headquarters in PRC H £ 30

it : FERYITAPEREREEEREERINRIXE

Add: TKTechnology Park, Tangjia Community, Fenghuang Sub-district office,
Guangming District, Shenzhen City, the PRC

Tel: &5 | +86-755-2369 0328

Hong Kong Office &HENHEE

Myt . BHEFREZEEFLEA91-50155F 0 TEHOBEIE195E

Add: Workshop No.19, 9th Floor, Block B, Hi-Tech Industrial Centre, 491-501
Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, N.T., Hong Kong

Tel: E 55 | +86-852-2411 3628

T— —
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MESSAGE OF DIRECTORS

Due to trade disputes among countries, geopolitical risks and
a slowing down global economy, certainties and fluctuations
in market are increasing continuously. As environmental
problems and threats with different levels are happening at
the same time across the world, the climate change issues are
getting great attention which was never seen before. Under
this background, the importance of corporate sustainability is
evermore highlighted.

Stakeholders are becoming more and more demanding for
corporate governance, and regulators are also tightening the
requirements on ESG reporting. In view of these changes,
the Group will continue to improve its communication with
internal and external stakeholders, listen for more advices
and pursue the link between sustainability performance and
corporate operation in order to allocate more resources to
social and environmental aspects.

As a responsible manufacturer, TK Group has always been
committed to product quality by following its operation
approach of “customer first, quality first, pursuit of innovation
and excellence”. During the year, we selected emissions,
health and safety, and development and training as material
sustainability issues, signifying our attention on environmental
protection and care for employees.

Adhering to the environmental approach of “strengthening
the source management, producing environment-friendly
products, operating green enterprise and protecting the
earth’'s environment”, the Group strives to mitigate our
impact on the environment and natural resources during the
manufacturing and production process, in a bid to balance
interests among the society, the market and the environment.
In terms of social responsibilities, we uphold the concept of
joint development and common enhancement by treating all
employees fairly and striving to achieve joint development
with them.

In the future, the Group will consider the addition of
disclosures on climate change in to the report, so as to
improve reporting quality in line with international standards.
We will also take the expansion of reporting scope as our
goal, maintain close communication and cooperation with
stakeholders, and gradually improve the performance of
corporate sustainability.

Li Pui Leung
Chairman
TK Group (Holdings) Limited
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ENVIRONMENT, SOCIETY AND GOVERNANCE

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Group attaches great importance to the management
in aspect of environment, society and governance and
endeavors to enhance its performance in this aspect by
improving governance structure. The Group assigns the Board
to be responsible for full supervision over the relevant ESG
works, and authorize the Audit Committee to formulate the
relevant development strategies, objectives and measures.
The Audit Committee shall report on the progress in aspects
of environment, society and governance to the Board on a
regular basis.

For the contemplated establishment of an ESG working group
under the leadership of senior management as referred to
in the report for last year, the Group is conducting internal
communication in order to build the relevant structure in the
future.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management is an important part of the Group's daily
management. In this regard, the Group has established
risk management structure composing of the Board and
its audit committee, senior management and management
from subsidiaries in order to help the Group effectively
identify and manage risks during daily operation. The Group
has also established the Internal Audit Department, which
is responsible for performing independent review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system.

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

TK Group always attaches great importance to the
communication with stakeholders’. During the year, it
organized various activities to understand stakeholders’
advices and recommendations in relation to the Group's ESG.
The Group is of the view that the engagement of stakeholders
can help the Group identify risks and challenges in different
ESG aspects, and procure the Group to formulate greater
management policies and measures.

! “Stakeholders”, otherwise known as “interested parties” or “right
owners”, refer to groups and individuals that have significant impacts on
the enterprise business, or affected by the business, including the Board,

management, administrative and general employees, as well as external
shareholders, business partners, customers, governments, regulatory
authorities, banks, investors and communities etc.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

¥ 11 : 24 ? . @ b .4 A
£ v O o 0o @ X {5y

During the year, there was no material change in the business RNEE  NEBEBEBRIRE HeNEARH
and ESG approaches of the Group. Therefore, we carried I ARBEATRE RS EBeEERBY
forward the mode of communication with stakeholders in the EoEBRAN BT

past as follows:

Internal stakeholders A &pi%F5 & External stakeholders #2837 &

Employees Investors and shareholders, suppliers, customers, general
BT public and communities, education and research partners,
professional associations, government departments and
other public bodies
BEERRKRE - HEN - BT AREME - BERHARE
o BERE  BUEHPFIREMAREE

Mode of communication with stakeholders 3 & B&E A

Daily conferences, questionnaires, Intranet, online platforms, emails, general meetings, site visits, public consultations,
internship, industrial meetings, community activities, etc.
HE®Z MERAT B8 @8Fe T84 RREZ BENER  ARFER  BEEFE - TESaMREDS

Since there was no material change in its business nature and ENAEEEBEERERFHARBEEXR
management approaches, the Group determined to choose past - EEAREBRFERER F—FERS
issues the same as those of last year's report as reporting HEMNEE  (EAANRENERES - =18
focuses. The three issues are emissions, health and safety, ZESRABERY) - BFEELY S RIEEEE
and development and training, respectively. gl o

Materiality issues Reasons for selection Corresponding section

EEMRE BEERRE HEEEH

Emissions Due to its business nature, the Group produce some emissions “Environmental

BER during daily production process, causing certain impacts on the Management”
environment. [RIFEE]

HAEBIEE AEERBERLEEBRETEELOBRY - ¥R
BER—ETE -

Health and safety Employees are subject to different health and safety risks during ~ “Our Employees”
BRERZE their work in workshop. Therefore, the Group aims to build a [BmES |
healthy and safe working environment.
BTIREMEXARSEITREERZ2ER Bt @R ERER
2N ITESMREASRENEE -

Development and Trainings on employees’ abilities are a guarantee for corporate “Qur Employees”
training development and a propelling force for their career. [FHMmEE ]
R EIE SITERNINEEZCEFRNEZRE - TEETREBEN

BhHE -

60

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019



’ CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT

In the future, the Group will expand the size and model of
communication with stakeholders when appropriate in order
to improve the effects of the communication between the
Group and stakeholders and establish a healthy relationship
featuring mutual benefits and win-win.

OUR EMPLOYEES

TK Group believes that a good employment environment
is a key factor for the Group's sustainability. The Group is
committed to providing a safe and comfortable working
environment for its employees and provides them with a
sound career development system in order to respect and
inspire all employees.

HEALTH AND SAFETY OF EMPLOYEES

Protecting employees’ health and safety is one of the
priorities for the Group. The Group enhanced its management
efficiency through systematic working process in order to
reduce occupational risks faced by employees during daily
work. At present, the Group has developed a number of
health and safety-related management systems including the
Operation Standards on the Safety Inspection System, the
Emergency Preparation and Response Procedures and the
Accident Reporting, Investigation and Handling Procedures.
Furthermore, during the year, the Group had also updated
the Treatment Procedures for Employees with Work-related
Injuries and Occupational Diseases based on actual situations.
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EHS Management Committee

The Group has established the EHS? Management Committee
with our CEO assuming the chairman, under whom there
are roles such as vice chairman, EHS supervision and
management leader, and standing committee member. They

EHSEEZES

AEMDEIEHSERES® - BmIKA
BETFEEE  ABTREZEE  EHSE
BEBRARAREKZESMN - HRIAS
RREFEH L -

are in charge of different works, respectively.

Position Bifz Responsibilities B =

Chairman

Z8FR

carry out and implement national policies and approaches on work safety, and in combination with
the Group’s actual situations, organize and formulate internal safety policies, objectives and annual
safety plan; and

EREERREWIIEFLEZMBERFH - WESTEBBERBER
ZaErE R

AEBTNBMLZ2HE - BRERFE

provide employees with necessary funds and other recourses for ensuring their safety.

RETR2MNRERHEMENEEREMER -

Vice chairman

BZEER

hold EHS work meetings regularly, discuss material EHS issues including environmental
assessment of waste water treatment process, environmental inspection of renovated projects and
statistical analysis of EHS accidents;

TFHARMEHSTESE © A EREHSHERE @ ME/KER T HRRNE - B2E B RRBKLREHSE R
BT DITE

be responsible for directing and coordinating the evacuation of employees in case of emergencies; and

BEZZIERAN  BREERBAERTHATE &

supervise safety inspection and eliminate safety hazards during work in a timely manner.
EERREIE  REBERIFBEFHZERE -

EHS supervision
and management
leader
EHSEEERE
8EA

establish various safety management systems and documents like work safety documents;
BUSHER2EREERZ2TEEREXH

regularly inspect safety situation in each plant and give rectification opinions on identified safety
hazards; and
FHBREEHABL M  HUHERNLZ2REREBRER &

assist vice chairman in holding regular safety production meetings.
BOHBREZEREMHEFEZEEESH o

Standing
committee
member

EBZEE8

implement national and our internal safety laws or policies;

HITER R AEENEE BT 2EREIEE

organize and promote safe techniques and management methods; and

ABMERES RN L2 RMRERTE R

be responsible for organizing self-salvation activities for employees from all plants in case of
emergencies.

BEZEIIERE AREEEBFEETRABKES

2 EHS represents environment, health and safety. 2

EHSIEIRE - @RE%T 2 -
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Safety Accident Investigation and Handling Procedures

In accordance with the Accident Reporting, Investigation and
Handling Procedures of the Group, in case of casualties during
production, the grades of accidents shall be categorized by
three grades with each grade being assigned with different
treatments based on actual situations. The casualties shall
be sent to hospitals with the escort of designated personnel
in accordance with the relevant requirements under the
Treatment Procedures for Employees with Work-related
Injuries and Occupational Diseases
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AEBECEMHRE - BHERBIEREFIRTE -
FEESHEETREBTEN  BREE
BIERABEHERD /=K SRYETR
MBIET % WIRR(THERBEREER
RERIEHIE) R EAERRE - BBTABRX
Bt R BRI BHETTRE & -

Reporting Method iﬁ%j‘]—;\i

Grade | e death or rest for recovery from injuries for
—#& more than 105 days.
BHEABHTHZIGIRERBIO5H -

Grade Il e rest for recovery from injuries for more than
—_#K seven working days and less than 105 days;
and

ZERECEIERNLE 1068 &

e toxic symptoms.

BERBIEMR o

The Group's safety officer shall be responsible
for investigating the accident and establishing
dedicated accident investigation team; and
SEZ2FEEERATEN  URIEEEHA
ENE R

Compile accident report, the reporting content
of which shall cover the process of the
accident, causes, casualties, economic loss,
person held to account for, precautions and
recommendations.

BREEHATHRE  BMENDEREFHELEN
BRR - REA - ABEBT - EEBX-ETA B
I RERE -

Grade Il e rest for recovery from injuries for less than
=4 seven working days; and

RERBECEIERIAT &

® Near accidents®

B REENS

safety commissioner of each plant is
responsible for organizing the investigation on
the accident; and

EHMBLZEZEAEEMEFAETE &

The department where the accident occurred
shall complete the accident reporting form
within two days to describe the process

and treatment outcome of the accident, and
submit such form to safety commissioner and
the Group's safety officer for filing.
EHREEBFIERMNBRNTKEFATRER
HMEGHRENCARERER  IRHAEZEE
BREEZEFEFE -

3 Near accidents represent accidents without causing outcome due to timely
identification and treatment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Safety training for employees

To ensure that our employees have the necessary skills
for safe work, the Group arranges appropriate training
courses for employees in accordance with the latest
national requirements and based on the nature of individual
employees’ work each year. All training records and
assessment results are filed by the EHS Management
Committee.

BT =253

RERBTIZEELNENTETHERE A%
EBFREERSHNBRRETTFEE
RETLZHEENTZIANER - AEEIIR
BREZERYZAEHSERZEGHETH

1& o

Nature of work T{EME Contents of safety training ZZ&ZH| AR

Training on identifying and evaluating hazards, occupational health risks and environmental

Management EHS awareness training and management ability development
EEE EHSE#IFI M E e Higs
Technology
T factors
fERRIR - B RE R KRR A = R T E
Operation Safety training for special equipment operators
BEE FRREREAEZ2E

Treatment of work-related injuries

We have added the treatment methods for activity work-
related injuries to the updated version of the Treatment
Procedures for Employees with Work-related Injuries and
Occupational Diseases. Activity work-related injuries refer to
accidents that occur to employees during activities organized
by the Group. In the event of an activity work-related injury,
relevant personnel must report to the Group's labour union or
activity organizing department within 48 hours. If the injury is
determined to be caused by these activities, it will be handled
in accordance with the treatment process of the work-related
injuries.

A total of 15 employees of the Group suffered work-related
injuries during the year, and all these work-related injuries
had been handled in accordance with relevant requirements
of the Treatment Procedures for Employees with Work-
related Injuries and Occupational Diseases. All these injured
employees have now returned to work.

As for health and safety, the Group has complied with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group, such as the Safe Production Law of the People’'s
Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Prevention and Control of Occupational Disease and the
Fire Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China. During
the year, the Group was not aware of any violation on health
and safety.
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’ DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING FOR EMPLOYEES

The Group understands the importance of improving
employees’ working skills to the expansion of their
future careers. To this end, the Group has formulated the
Training and Development System and partly updated the
Management Regulations on Promotion and Cultivation,
committed itself to improving its training system.

Training inspection

To ensure the effectiveness of training for employees, the
Group has adopted the Training and Development System to
explain the inspection mechanism that should be adopted at
different stages of training for the purpose of ensuring the
comprehension of the training content by employees.

Stage P ER Measures & HE

® maumany
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Before training
FEHI AT the training focus.

The department heads should test the trainees to understand their blind spots, so as to clarify

MPIBEAREIEIABETABA T HEMZBEH - WMAEEISEE -

In training Trainers should make objective evaluations of trainees based on their classroom performance

&l and training assessment.

SR IR A B RE KA RSN LR

After training

HEHEHEEE -

The department heads should give an objective evaluation of the performance of trainees

1Z3#& within three to six months after the training is completed, so as to understand the training

effectiveness.
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Training contents

During the year, the Group carried out various types of internal
and external training in accordance with industry development
and employees’ needs. The training details are as follows:

Training name %8| &%

BIRE

REF AEERBTEERREIFR
FRE T &REANINBIEINTE - B EN
-

A

Training contents ZIAR

Training for new
employees
FaTHE

Mentoring

BEE

On-the-job training
=R

Skill certification training

BEEREE

Training for special posts

HERR (3 I

Employee promotion

In order to improve employees’ enthusiasm for work and
improve the talent structure, the Group has updated the
Promotion and Cultivation Management Regulations this year.
We include “no disciplinary violations or major operational
errors within one year” as one of the promotion conditions,
and encourage employees to pay attention to business
ethics and production safety in order to actively promote

Training for employees on safety, corporate culture and computer operations, etc.
BETEIR:  BEXERBHMRESZHTENFI -

Assisting relevant staff to understand the department structure, work contents and work skills, etc.

CEWHEMET TREMRE  TIFRTRTIERITEF T EOAM -

Die steel, heat treatment and coating process applications;

Application of diffusion welding and 3D printing technology in the field of mold temperature
control; and

Training on Industry 4.0 and injection mold development, etc.

REMM  REBRZEBTEER : EAURE MIDIIENEMERRIZEGIRENER : &

T 4083 P18 AR EH -

Training on skill certifications in Lean Six Sigma and scientific injection molding, etc.
PARMBB S NIRRT 2 E T ENRAEREE -

Providing training on special equipment operation and forklift drivers’ driving skills, etc for
special positions.

EHERRELET T HERBRERRERARERROEDENE

REABTTHEREEBERTEAT &R - K
SECRAFEEHR T(EHEBREER
E) I —FRERLCRERRIERR A
ANETHEM 2 —  SBETERHEBEM
HERE  AERHES RS E A 8%
R’ AEEEBABEANEEIHALE
REAR - BB BERhABEA -

the sustainable development of the Group. The human
resources department is responsible for matters related
to the promotion within the Group, including notification,
examination and interview arrangement.




’ IMPROVING THE EMPLOYMENT SYSTEM

For the Group, a sound employment system is not only the
key to attracting talents, but also an important guarantee
for the rights and interests of employees. The Group has
formulated the Enrolment and Appointment System and the
Social Responsibility Management System, and updated
the Recruitment Management System and the Complaint
Management System this year to incorporate contents
related to employment diversity, in a bid to enhancing the
management efficiency of the Group in different areas of
employment.

In the Recruitment Management System, the Group proposes
the commitment to establishing an inclusive, equal and fair
working environment, respects and promotes employee
diversity, and encourages the employment of employees of
different nationalities, nationalities, skin colors or educational
backgrounds. At the same time, employees will not be
discriminated against based on factors such as race, region,
disability, pregnancy or political affiliation.

If discovering or experiencing any misconduct in the
workplace, our employees can contact the human resources
department in accordance with the Complaint Management
System. The director of the human resources department
will determine the type of complaint and refer it to the
corresponding person in charge for follow-up. After the
investigation, the person in charge should prepare an Internal
Investigation Report and copy it to the Complaint Handling
Committee composed of our executive directors.

The Group promises to pay wages on time every month. If
the payment date needs to be postponed, it must seek the
signature for approval by the representatives of labour union
or all employees. In addition, the Group also commits not to
allow employees’ wages to be deducted for any reasons.

During the year, the Group has complied with employment-
related laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group, including but not limited to, the Labour Law of the
People's Republic of China, the Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’'s Republic
of China on the Protection of Women's Rights and Interests
and the Social Insurance Law of the People's Republic of
China. The Group was not aware of any violations related to
employment during the year.
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’ LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group respects the basic human rights of employees. It
is strictly forbidden to employ child labour and forced labour in
the workplace. We have formulated the Social Responsibility
Management System, the Recruitment Management System
and the Child Labour Remedial Management Regulations to
regulate related matters.

Category ZilE Management measures &2 ig

R ]

¥

AEEBEETHWEANAE - BER TS
FriEEET RBHIST WO HRI(EEE
EEEHE) (HEEEGE) MCETH
RERRE) HEEEREMAEE

Child labour e The human resources department is responsible for establishing internal reporting channels
BT about child labour to encourage employees to report the use of child labour; and

ANERAMEERTAMETERRE  ZHETRRETHER - R

e Any child labour discovered should be immediately sent to the hospital for a medical
examination. The Group will bear the entire cost for any health problem that may be found
to be suffered by the child labour until it is cured.

BHRETR  BZAXEERETER - ERREFERE  AaAEEREEMEREEZAM -

Forced labour e The Group promises that when recruiting employees, it will never restrict employees’
BEIBT freedom by means of withholding their ID cards, passports or deposits; and
AEEAEREEIR  @TERAEASHEMN  ERIFEOFARIEIEH &

e |f employees wish to leave office, they can freely terminate the employment contract after

a reasonable notice period.

EETEHR  TRAEANPREHRIERER -

The Group has complied with relevant laws and regulations
such as the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China and
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection
of Juveniles, and it was not aware of any violations related to
child labour or forced labour during the year.

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

The Group values the management of environmental issues
related to its operation process and strives to reduce the
negative environmental impact of its business. To this end,
the Group has formulated the Waste Gas Control Procedures,
the Wastewater and Liquid Waste Control Procedures and the
Hazardous Waste Disposal Regulations. In order to further
improve the Group’s environmental management system,

the Group has also formulated the Greenhouse Gas Emission
Management Procedures and updated the Resources and
Energy Control Procedures during the year.
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Greenhouse gas emissions

The Group’s operations involve burning fossil fuels and using
electricity, thus generating greenhouse gas emissions. In
order to effectively manage greenhouse gases and reduce the
impact on the environment, the Group has clearly stated the
management responsibilities of each department in the GHG
Emissions Management Procedures.

Department/position Duties

EBPI, AL BE

HH]

REHK

s
*
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Bt

A

MEES MR OMHEERE
MESREREHR - REWERR
CORAOHRENEE  AEECAE
MEIRIEF) B E R RS AP

A B & B
Hﬁﬁ%iﬂ

General manager

Coordinating the management of the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions, including but not

ey s limited to formulating greenhouse gas emissions management policies, selecting management
representatives, and coordinating and providing necessary resources.

SEAEERERBHRELRIE  SEETRNHIEERBHERERRE RETEERREK

wRH N EEIR

Management
representatives

EEEAR

Organizing greenhouse gas inventory and determining emission reduction plans and targets.
In addition, the management representatives will make rational suggestions to the general
manager based on the actual situation of the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions.

HERERERETIE  YRERAERBR - Wi ERERREREAEERERBHNE

BRISRABEIRIR T AIRER -

Injection Molding Quality Assisting various departments in collecting, summarizing and verifying greenhouse gas data.
Department HEE MBI TAEREBEBRKE BERRIELE -

EEmRER

Responsible departments Responsible for implementing greenhouse gas emission control measures in actual operations

HEHEEEHM
BERERBRETRITRER

The Group continued to entrust the independent consulting
company Carbon Care Asia with the carbon evaluation
during the year to quantify the greenhouse gas emissions
(or “carbon emission”) in the operation in accordance with
the Guide* promulgated by the National Development and
Reform Commission of the People’s Republic of China and
international standards such as 1SO14064-1 and Greenhouse
Gas Protocol.

4 Guideline of the Greenhouse Gas Emissions Accounting and Reporting for

Machinery Manufacturing Enterprises (Trial)

and recording relevant data according to actual conditions.
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During the year, the Group’s total carbon emissions were
45,974.1 tons, which were mainly generated using purchased
electricity with Scope Il, accounting for 98.8% of the total
emissions. In addition, although the refrigerant R-22 used
in air-conditioning equipment is not included in the six
greenhouse gases covered by the Kyoto Protocol®, in order
to more fully disclose the performance of greenhouse gas
emissions, the Group included 302 tonnes of CO2 equivalent
emitted by air-conditioning equipment in Scope 1.

Emission quantity for the
current year

LN e

KEEF - NEBMBIREENA45,974.11F -
TEMEHE— Z&\\ﬁ%%mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi 48
PEERI98.8% © LI - BEEARBEPE
ARRALEIR-22KBEE(REZEE ST
/@5%/\%@/ ﬁ ZW 1E%TE7«%£@
M RAEREBEHMAEMNERIER  AEBEK
RGBT AI302ME —E/L i E =
BERHE—F -

Emission quantity for 2018

(tonnes of CO, equivalent) (tonnes of CO; equivalent)
- EkE

Emission of greenhouse gases $¢F§FH§
BERBHER (=S mE

Scope | — Direct emissions #i[E1 — HEBZEREEHNR

Fossil fuel combustion — stationary sources 0.4

e R RER g — BIEIR

Fossil fuel combustion — mobile sources 44.8

e R REREE — BEIR

Greenhouse gases emitted during the 302.0
operation of equment and systems

HE R FGEFRENARE R

Scope Il = Energy indirect emissions

HE2 — EREEREREBIIN

Purchased electricity 45,406.1
HNEE )

Scope lll-emissions® # &3 — BEjke

Aircraft business travel 220.8
B IS IRTT
Total greenhouse gas emissions 45,9741
BERBHERAE
Greenhouse gas emission density (based on 19.9

revenue per million Hong Kong dollars)

RERBHNEE (KEBESETRAET)

A As the calculation of greenhouse gas emissions during the operation
of equipment and systems this year includes the fugitive emissions of
refrigerant R-22 involved in greenhouse gas emissions, the greenhouse gas
emissions emitted by equipment and systems during the previous year has
been recalculated for a fair comparison.

The calculation of electricity greenhouse gas emissions in the current year
has changed to the average emission factors of China's national power
grid’, and therefore, the indirect energy greenhouse gas emissions of the
previous year have been recalculated for a fair comparison.

5 The main objective of Kyoto Protocol (Kyoto Protocol to the United Nations
Framework Convention on Climate Change) is to “stabilize greenhouse
gas levels in the atmosphere at an appropriate level”, and the specified
greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide (CO2), methane (CHa), nitrous
oxide (N20), hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs), perfluorocarbons (PFCs), and sulfur
hexafluoride (SFe).

The Company has included greenhouse gas emissions from business travel
in the calculation of Scope Il during the year.

7 Notice on the 2018 Carbon Emission Report, Verification and Emissions
Monitoring Planning

—HitmES
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Compared with 2018, the total greenhouse gas emissions
and emission intensity during the year (based on revenue per
million Hong Kong dollars) increased by 31.1% and 30.1%
respectively, mainly due to an increase in Scope Il greenhouse
gas emissions of 30.8%. This was also related to increased
orders and capacity expansion. Regarding the main sources
of carbon emissions, the Group will continue to evaluate,
record and disclose its greenhouse gas emissions and
other environmental data every year, and use the data from
previous years as a benchmark to continuously review the
effectiveness of current measures, which will help to further
develop emission reduction targets in the future.

Exhaust emissions

The injection molding plants generate exhaust gas including
spraying exhaust gas, printing exhaust gas, injection molding
exhaust gas and dust during the daily production process.
In order to ensure that the emission of exhaust gas meets
the requirements of relevant national laws and regulations,
the Group has formulated the Environmental Monitoring and
Control Procedures to regulate the exhaust gas monitoring
procedures and record the monitoring results in the
Environmental Monitoring Record Form. For projects which
the Group is not capable of self-monitoring for the time being,
the state-approved environmental testing agencies will test
and keep reports.

The Group has invited third-party testing companies to
conduct organized exhaust gas tests this year. The detected
exhaust emissions are in compliance with relevant national
standards. At the same time, in order to further reduce
exhaust emissions, the Group also entrusted third-party
environmental protection agencies to propose a scheme for
the design of injection molding exhaust treatment facilities
in the workshop. Such scheme has been completed and put
into use in late 2019, and it is estimated that it can reduce the
organized non-methane hydrocarbon emissions.

Compared with 2018, the nitrogen oxides, sulfur oxides
and respirable suspended particulates emitted by fossil fuel
consumption from stationary and mobile sources this year
decreased by 18.5%, 8.3% and 18.1% respectively. The
main source of air pollutants from combustion fuel was diesel
combustion of forklift equipment in the production base.

M-Z—N\FEMEL - AFEHRERE
BAREMPERER (KRS B EBTRARERT)
DR EFT31.1%F30.1% - T2 RERE
B REREEHEMEINT30.8% ° EMIE
BN EREIETR AR o STEIPFMA E B R
R AEBEBEETG  LEREBFRER
BEREBHMEEMRREHIE - WAEFH
BURIEESE - FHEMIRAIRITHERY - B
B RRE—FFIERBEBIR -

BESRIE I

EEBERAFEEBREPELERER -
ENRIEESR - B ERNMMEZERNER
RERBERNPFRTEBFERERERE
ko REEC HIFTCRIZEAIESIZF )RS &
RERESRIREFF - 3% BRI AE RAC SR CIRIR
EARER) - HNAKEER/ENBITE
BAIEIER - Rl B AR AT RO IR BB AR
TTIROBAERF RS -
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Emission quantity in the
current year (kg)

Emission quantity in 2018 (kg)

REEHHE “E-N\FHHE
Emission i) (F3%) (F%=)
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) @EAt41 (NOx) 103.9 127.5
Sulfur oxides (SOx) Fis{E¥) (SOx) 3.3 3.6
Respirable suspended particulates (PM) 6.8 8.3

ARABFHRF (PM)

Waste

The Logistics Department is responsible for the centralised
collection and disposal of the waste. General waste will be
handed over to the environmental health stations for further
treatment, and the hazardous waste will be transferred and
reported by qualified institutes designated by the Logistics
Department according to the Hazardous Waste Disposal
Regulations.

Total non-hazardous waste produced during the year
increased by 49.7% compared with that of 2018, mainly due
to approximately 500 tonnes of household waste included in
the calculation. Total hazardous waste produced during the
year decreased by 35.3% compared with that of 2018, mainly
due to the higher frequency of reuse of waste water for
painting booth in the factory.

Wastewater and liquid waste

During the year, the Group has spent a total of RMB200,000
to introduce the water-based cutting fluid filtration and
purification system, so as to reduce the liquid waste and save
water. After put into use, the system is expected to help to
reduce 60% of waste cutting fluid. Save for the liquid waste,
industrial wastewater and domestic wastewater produced
in the course of operation of the Group will be discharged
in separated pipelines as well to guarantee the effective
treatment of such wastewater.

In respect of emissions, the Group complies with relevant
laws and regulations such as the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’'s Republic of China, the Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China
and the Atmospheric Pollution Prevention Law of the People’s
Republic of China. The Group didn't have any violations related
to emissions during the year.

BEEY

BRYREHEEERYOG LU RIS -
—REZMRERRRAREFELE—T
BRI - felrEREMARR(ERERYRE
ME)BRBRGHMBES EREELETE
B -

AEENEEEMREN T — \FERL
BINTA9.7% - EEHNANFEIL T HE
SEBRIR R SEET 0 #1/25000F - BEBEEWH
B AFEMNERENBERL T —N\F
FERAT35.3% + B AREEZREEKIEN
TBIR{E FASERFTER -

BRI R BER

AEE  AEEARE_+ETARBSIE
IKMETIRIBBIBF L R G - OB BEREVE
ERIKERHER - ZEZRLAERR
FEEH R 2 60% BENHIR I EL - REER
Sh e REEMBRHEEEEMNTRERKRER
KT E BB TRE BN - BREIEX
BRIR o

B m - AREEST (R EARKM
BIRIRRE L) - (FEARKMBENGRED
) MR EARKMBARRISRPEE)
FREER - ARBEAFEL HEELEL
B RREHERERESR -

72

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019



4\4 { 14 S o 6 ® of L
- ; £

ik ‘%4’-““ v

In order to continuously enhance the resource utilization
efficiency, the Group has formulated various resources
management policies and reviewed the objectives and
measures for the resource utilization regularly. As illustrated
in the Resource and Energy Control Procedures, resources
management should be conducted based on the principle of
3R8. The statistics on resources and energy consumption of
the Group is prepared by the organization team; while the
statistics on water and power consumption of the Group
is prepared by the Facility Planning Department; and the
statistics on paper consumption is prepared by the general
manager's office. In addition, seminars are held by each
department within the Group on an irregular basis to raise
employees’ awareness of saving.

Total energy consumption of the Group amounted to 74,606.5
Mwh equivalent during the year, representing an increase
of 30.7% as compared with 2018. Consumption of direct
energy® and indirect energy'® increased by 11.9% and 30.8%
respectively as compared with 2018. Such increase in
power consumption was also related to the improvement of
production capacity.

B B REARS

AEBEBBHTRAEREERE - EHR
AEIREAN B RN BRI AER
WERERBRE - CEIRRERIZEHIRE R )P 3t
B AEBASRIRAIBEELETTEREE
ItE- AEETI2HBREREERERHE
FERAT - RIEREIMARGKAAKEKER
RENEERSIE  RAAKERARRRER
BB BURFET  WoHN - AEEERFITE
TEMBMEE  REETHOEM -

AEEBRAFENRIREFREE B74,606.5

KEBEE M-S N\EEMHLEMT

30.7% - EEfE R EREERERAM_Z

—N\FEERESBIEINT11.9%H30.8% °
EE RSN EERREAER -

Consumption for the year

Consumption in 2018

Energy use 8EJR{EA rEERAR —E-\FHRAR
Gasoline (GJ) B (HHEH) 520.5 420.9
Diesel (GJ) %h (HEH) 129.6 161.4
Liquefied petroleum gas (GJ) RILEBR(HFEE) 6.8 4.8
Electricity (Mwh) & 77 (JKELKF) 74,424.0 56,911.6
Total energy consumption (Mwh equivalent) 74.,606.5 57,074.7

fEREREE ERFSE)

Energy intensify (Mwh equivalent/million HKD revenue) 323 24.8
REREE(BABRETEEBEILRANEE)

8 3R refers to “Reuse, Recycle and Reduce Waste” s 3RENEEFIAEIR(Reuse) « EIUWE R (Recycle)
KR 2 (Reduce Waste) ©
9  Direct energy represents non-renewable fuel or renewable fuel such as o EERRERAHE - EHh - RAR - EEAGESE
gasoline, diesel, natural gas, coal and solar energy, etc. AR] BB S A B AR -
0 |ndirect energy represents purchased energy such as electric power, 0 REREREESN - BR - RRMEREHEERR -

heating, air conditioning and steam, etc.
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THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group has established the Emergency Preparation
and Response Procedures to ensure that correct response
measures will be adopted by the Group in case of
environmental emergency, and reduce the impacts on
surrounding environment. The Emergency Preparation and
Response Procedures requires that relevant departments
shall investigate reasons for the accident after the occurrence
of an accident according to the Reporting, Investigation and
Treatment Procedures for Accidents, and report the outcome
of investigation and treatment to the board of directors of the
Group and the competent authorities for review.

During the daily operation, each department shall organize
employees to have regular emergency drilling such as
chemical leakage drills and emergency evacuation drills, in
order to enhance employees’ emergency response capability.
Meanwhile, each department shall conduct regular inspection
on the usage and maintenance of emergency equipment.

RESPONSIBLE OPERATION

The Group strives to provide responsible products and
services by adhering to its business ethics, hence it has
developed a series of policies and measures in relation
to supply chain management, product liability and anti-
corruption, in efforts to safeguard the brand reputation
and market performance of the Group with sound and
comprehensive operation system.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

TK Group places high emphasis on managing environmental
and social risks of the supply chain and encourages
suppliers to take responsibilities for environment and
the society. Suppliers management systems such as the
Social Responsibility Management System and Supplier
Management Processes have been formulated by the

Group to select suppliers qualified for its requirements,
and all suppliers are required to sign the suppliers’ social
responsibility letter.

f&iﬁ.&%/ \,\/ﬁ
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The procurement department of the Group is responsible
for establishing social responsibility profiles for suppliers
and subcontractors and maintaining evaluation results and
improvement measures records of suppliers. Pursuant to the
Supplier Management Processes, the Group shall conduct on-
site audit of the suppliers to determine its compliance with the
Group's environmental and social requirements as detailed
below:

Risk Types & K35l

Selection Criterias &fZ X 8

AEERRBEHRRRLHER LD BEHT
EMER  YREHEAFGERLLE
E AL o R HIER B R RIZ)RRE -
AEBRYFRIREERNOHEEETTHT
i NEEANAAKRENREITER
Koo REERMT :

In case of any usage of child and forced labour or any non-compliance with other labour
related laws and regulations on the part of a supplier or subcontractor, the Group will

immediately cease its business relationship with such supplier or subcontractor;

EERRHERIOBRFEERET - aiS TRAMmEREDEMEREZRNEAR - LAE

e Suppliers should not act improperly against their employees due to races, religions,

HEBTEEER = BEEIMIRAERER - H$EETHRRD

R R

e Minimise health and safety related risks in workplace by adoption of appropriate measures
according to the laws and regulations in relation to health and safety.

BIIEMREFRREZZMNERER  KIEERE  BREIESHNERER2ER

Social o
HE
IER1ERIR
nationality or sexual orientation; and
Environmental .
RE

Suppliers undertake to adopt energy-saving and emission-reduction measures to mitigate
impacts caused by its operation on the environment; and

HIER E AR BE R PE Vi 3E - MO B BHARRRNTE &

e Hazardous substances which are possible to provoke detrimental harm to the environment,
should be inspected and treated timely.

HNTTREE RIFERBENAEWE - BRERAIRER -

* PRODUCT LIABILITY

As an enterprise which is principally engaged in the
manufacturing of molds and plastic components, the Group
highly recognizes the importance of product liability to the
its development. Hence, the Group has a series of policies
on product liability in place to standardize the management
process.

|
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Product Quality

In order to guarantee the product quality of the Group
comply with customer’s requirements and relevant laws and
regulations, the Group has developed a number of policies
such as Raw Material Quality Control Procedures, Processing
Quality Control Procedures, Finished Product Quality Control
Procedures and Non-conforming Product Control Procedures.
Any products which fail to pass four quality control procedures
stipulated in respective policies including raw material
inspection, initial product recognition and patrol inspection
when processing and inspection of finished products before
warehousing, should be disposed in accordance with the Non-
conforming Product Control Procedures. Any non-conforming
products, once found, shall be labeled and placed by the
person in charge of QC"" in the designated area for non-
conforming products. Besides, Feedback Sheet of Unqualified
Raw Material shall be completed by QC in QA" system and
submitted to the QC team leader for review.

The Group received four complaints related to product
quality from customers during the year, decreasing by three
compared with last year. The Group has implemented various
approaches to strengthen product quality control, such as on-
site inspection, product replacement and employee trainings.

Customer Privacy

The Group has established the Confidentiality Management
System to protect the customer data from leakage, so as to
realise sound corporate governance. The System stipulates
that confidential information of any business partners and
other connected persons shall be protected and all staff is
required to sign the Employee Confidentiality Agreement. The
Group will give a warning to, dismiss or take litigation actions
against the employees of failure to comply with relevant
requirements.

" Refers to Quality Control
2 Refers to Quality Assurance

EmEE
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Intellectual property

Attaching high attention on product design and manufacturing,
TK Group's part of focus is on the protection of intellectual
property owned by the Group and its business partners. It is
stipulated in the Intellectual Property Management System
that the Legal Department is mainly responsible for the
management of intellectual property and establishment of
employee incentive mechanism. Employees obtaining related
patent certificates will be granted awards of different degrees
by the Group depending on practical conditions. In addition,
the Group values intellectual property of any business
partners or other enterprises, and promises not to infringe
upon other’s patent right.

Our business doesn’t involve product advertisements
and labels currently. The Group will update its policies as
appropriate in line with its business development. The Group
abides by laws and regulations in relation to product liability
such as the Product Quality Law of the People's Republic of
China and the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China.
During the year, the Group didn’t have any violations of laws
and regulations related to product liability.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group understands that anti-corruption not only
represents the expectation of society as a whole for
corporates, but also is an important part of fulfilling
social responsibilities within the Company. The Group
has established relevant systems such as the Ethics and
Commercial Behavior Management System, Complaint
Management System and Internal Investigation Guide,
endeavoring to perform its commitment to anti-corruption.

It is stipulated in the Ethics and Commercial Behavior
Management System that any employees are prohibited
from offering improper benefits to third party units or
individuals including customers, government officials and
other stakeholders in the name of the Company or individuals.
Any third party units or individuals are encouraged to monitor
or make complaints on integrity of the Group’'s employees
according to the Complaint Management System. The Group
promises to keep all complaints record strictly confidential.
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In respect of anti-corruption, the Group complies with relevant
laws and regulations such as the Law of the People’'s Republic
of China Against Unfair Competition, Anti-Money Laundering
Law of the People's Republic of China. During the year, the
Group didn’'t have any violations of laws and regulations
related to anti-corruption, nor involved in any corruption
related litigation cases.

SUPPORTING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

The Group understands that enterprise development cannot
be separated from local community’'s support. Being a
responsible enterprise, the Group strives to reinforce the
communication with local community, and understand the
actual needs of communities where its operations are located.
In order to standardize the community investment, the Group
has formulated the Policy of Community Investment, Donation
and Sponsorship Management during the year.

The assessment and application of community investment
shall be conducted by the chairman’s office, and the related
community activities shall be organized and carried out by
the Trade Union. Areas of community investment which the
Group is primarily dedicated to include communication with
universities and public welfare activities.
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Areas of Concerns

BrER

Communication
with universities

HERZR

Public welfare
activities

NEEB

e
®

" wE .
EE -

Implementation Approaches
TR

Human Resource Department will visit
universities and develop training systems
with the selected qualified universities under
the cooperation mechanism established by
both parties, so as to facilitate students’

early adaption to the work requirements.
Furthermore, qualified students will be offered
scholarship and the outstanding ones can join
into the Group; and

ANERBEEZERSR  BEEESRELE
TEMH - HEMEREBR  EP24ERFHERE
THEFEK - AR REERBERHEZES £
FEMAIMAREEIE : &

Invited students in Guangdong, Hong Kong
and Macau to visit the Group, promoting the
cooperation and communication among youth
in such locations.

BHEEBREE2EAEE  HBEBREFHN
SRR

The Trade Union has organized employees

to participate related public welfare activities
initiated by social welfare organizations.
BIgMAME T2MRAT G RMEMEEERE
EH

During the year, the total community investment made by the
Group amounted to HKD3,849,000, representing an increase
of approximately 41.1% compared with last year.

Case Study For the Year
TEERFIDZE

Carried out communication and cooperation
with Guangdong Industry Polytechnic and
Hebei University of Technology, and granted
scholarship to outstanding students in these
universities.

B R AR TR S BT BB AR I T3 KRBT
EE RESBERBERBSURRINE
& o

Invited over 100 young Hong Kong students to
visit the Group, and valuable entrepreneurial
experience has been shared by the Chairman
of the Group with them.
BAEEI1008 BB FRIGREASE - AKX
SEIFEERRED ZEIEKE -

Donated books to Shenzhen Guangming
Dongzhou Primary School (%3177 ¢ BA 3 /& /s
E) and Guangming Foreign Language School
(SLEASMNEIFEEAR).

2 RIERINT KB R BN RSB INE B 2R

BEE-

Made donation to poverty alleviation projects
launched by the charity committee of
Shenzhen Guangming District.

BRIt RRESEHREERIER -

AEE  AEREGFHREERNEZEE

3,849,0007T © RIELIEINAI4T.1% ©




OVERVIEW OF KEY PERFORMANCE BRENIEEAE
INDICATORS

’ Environmental performance ’ IRIBERI

Key performance indicators of the

environment During the year

RERRERER REE

Type of emissions and relevant data JE Y EE R HBE R EE

Nitrogen oxides (NOx) @& ¥ (NOx) 103.9 127.5 Kg T%
Sulfur oxides (SOx) &% (SOx) 33 3.6 Kg 7=
Particulate matters (PM) 6.8 8.3 Kg 7%
AR A SOZ R (PM)

Benzene X (Benzene) 42.9 - Kg 7=
Toluene X (Toluene) 173.4 106.6 Kg T3
Xylene ZF X (Xylene) 105.6 15.6 Kg T3
Non-methane hydrocarbon (NMHC) 4,178.8 898.0 Kg F7
FEFRE 4 (NMHC)

Volatile organic compounds (VOC) 1,693.2 773.1 Kg F7
BEMEFHIEY (VOC)

Particulate matters (PM) 1,344.7 1,925.7 Kg T3
AIAR ASRZRLF (PM)

Scope | — Direct emission 347.2 365.9 tonnes of CO; equivalent

E - BRI WE—SbiE S

Scope Il — Indirect emission 45,406.1 34,721.8 tonnes of CO; equivalent

E2 - BN —EftirEE

Scope Il - Indirect emission 220.8 - tonnes of CO, equivalent

#HE3 - FEHEM WE—Aftirg S

Greenhouse gas emissions in total 45,9741 35,077.7 tonnes of CO; equivalent
RERBABINE WA tiRE S

Greenhouse gas intensity (as per revenue) 19.9 15.3 tonnes of CO, eqU|vaIent/m|Il|on HKD
BERBTE (UWRAGE) —EitiEE BEBE

Hazardous waste produced in total 269.2 415.9 tonnes ME
EEBEVEESES
Hazardous waste intensit *(gs per revenue) 0.12 0.18 tonnes/million HKD
BEBEEDEE CARAGE) WE, BB
3 Data calculation for 2019 is based on the test reports of production bases B R -NFHEFEENFIBBEESEN - FHN
in Shenzhen headquarter, Suzhou and Huizhou. Test data for 2018 excluded SEEMWREMNAEERMNRARE - —T—\F
production base in Huizhou. Besides, other air emissions increased in 2019 WASBETBEBMNEEEM - kI ZFT—NF

due to the capacity expansion. HARERBEAMEBEMERENELS -




B R RER

Key performance indicators of the
environment During the year

REREAENIER REE

Non-hazardous waste in total EEEEYEE

Non-hazardous waste produced in total 1,771.9 1,183.3 tonnes ME
BEBREVEELS

Non-hazardous waste intensity (as per revenue)  0.77 0.51 .

e e S e [ A tonnes/m|\l/l|on HKD
BEBRENEE ABRAGE W B

Energy consumption in total §£;F&EE

Direct energy E# 82K 656.9 587.1 GJHEFH

Indirect energy I 4ETR 74,424.0 56,911.6 Mwah JK FL B
Energy intensity @s per revenue) 32.3 24.8 Mwah/millign\ HKD
BEREE (ABMAGEHE) KEE, BB

Water consumption in total &3k &

Water consumption in total /K& 262,373 231,118 m?3 37 J73K
Water consumption intensity (as per revenue) 114 101 m?/million HKD
FREE (ARAGTE) SR BB

Packing materials used by finished products in total 8 R B EEMBNEE

Packing materials in total Bkl @& 2,794.1 2,269.7 tonnes M
Packing materials intensity (as per revenue) 1.2 1.0 tonnes/million HKD
BEYREE (UVBRAGHE WE, B &

Existing employees

distribution New employees Resigned employees
Category of employees ERET distribution™ distribution
BINE AE 2 HETAE D™ BBET AZS M/

Male 1% 2,647 653 459

Gender

5 R

KR Female &% 2,036 650 679
18-30 years old 18-305% 1,557 655 544

%gg% 31-45 years old 31-455% 2,864 633 576
Above 45 years old 4557 A £ 262 15 18

4 Including regular employees only. “ ERRFREXRBT -

T— —

FIEE (ZR) BERAR —T-hFFH O
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Occupational safety and health performance
BEZEEEEN Total #5t+

Number and percentage of work-related deaths for the past

three years

BE=FETEAEMILTHA ML E

Number of work-related injuries Bl T 15 A

Number of working days lost due to work-related injuries

ATBIBRTIERER

Days of absenteeism
L4

ERE A

15

0:0%

636.6

45,951.9

Percentage of

Average
training

Trained employees Total training hours’®
employee receiving (hours) (hours)
Category of employees distribution training™ 3T S AR R B 3952 3 s Y 0
BISE EINAE S o 3R &t pls (/NEF) (V)
Male S 1,668 63.0% 34,227.4 12.9
%Eender
14 Bl
KR Female %% 1,089 53.5% 13,482.5 6.6
18-30 years old 18-30%% 817 52.5% 14,4121 9.3
g%% 31-45 years old 31-455% 1,785 62.3% 31,000.5 10.8
Above 45 years old 4555 24 155 59.2% 2,297.3 8.8

Region where suppliers are located {fES friEitt & Number of suppliers £ EFEHE

Mainland China # B A & 1,622
Hong Kong & /& [& 177
Others Hfthi[@ 125
Total &5 1,924

Product quality EREE Total 45t

Percentage of products that shall be reclaimed due to safety 0%
and health reasons
Hza R REHARKNE DL

Number of complaints related to products or service 4

PR mn S RFS B B B

s Percentage of employees receiving training is calculated by dividing the 15
number of trained employees of specific category by the total number of
employees of such category.

EIPIFET RS EEIEEZIAR,ZHE
PR B 48 -

Average training hours is calculated by dividing the total training hours 6 FEIIEHNENHEARASETENEEMNAT

B/ BEEANESBAR -

received by employees of specific category by the total number of
employees of such category.
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e RE HERkEERS

CONTENT INDEX TO THE ESG REPORTING (BRE  -HERERREESN®KE
GUIDE A

Subject Areas Content Page
TEHE AE ER ]

A1 Emissions BE5 4

General Disclosure Information on: 68, 72

—RE BHBERREREHN  MKELHOEET  EEREETEEYNELSH

(a) the policies; and
(a) B &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

(o) BFHBTARERATZENARERRADNER

A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data 71-72, 80

BER Y TE SR AR B B R

A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity 70, 80
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)
RERBAYNE(UBAE) R(ER)BE(MUNEES SN - BIEREAE)

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) 80
FEEEEEEYHEE (AETE)

Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) 81
FEEREEZYHES (AETE)

A1.5 Description of measures to mjtigate emissions and results achieved 69, 71
FURE HE R BV B S PSR

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction 72
initiatives, and results achieved

MRRIERELETERZNMN L  REELENERLASKRR




Subject Areas
TEHE

General Disclosure

—RRIE

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw
materials.

BRERER(BEER  KREMEME)BOR -

Content Page
AR B %5

A2 Use of Resources &iR{E

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in
total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)
REABSNEER SEEER(WE - fReEh)@REUTETERTE) R
BE(MAGES SN - BHERBAE)

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility)
BFEKEREE(MANGES S - BERMEAE)

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved

Hes B IR R s w8 MRS AR

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency initiatives and results achieved

FSREUE FKOR ERI B ERE - LA RRA A K B R PR E R R

The Group has no
issue in sourcing
water

R B SKREUKR
e

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable,
with reference to per unit produced
R MATABEM BB E (AT E) R(ER) BEEBMEE

General Disclosure
—RE

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and
natural resources

MIEEITAMBRERRABEREREAZENBE

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them

HARGEDHRENANERNEAZENERNERFEZENTH

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Information on:
BEAFM R E - B
i fFdm BN

BT LIERE - BRE - TSK

g
W

Tt~ RIBAR AR

(a) the policies; and

(a) B &k

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

(b) BTHBETABEAZENEMERLRONER -

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group, and geographical
region

RUER - ERIRE - FRAEMN RS D HEEEH

Emplyee turnover rate by gender, age group, and geographical region

BRI FRARRMRE D HEBRALE




Subject Areas Content Page
TEHE AE ER ]

B2 Health and Safety f2EHEZ 2

General Disclosure Information on: 61, 64

—RE BRRHZ2 TERERREEBBEBELEED

(a) the policies; and
(a) B5R : &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

(b) BFHETABERFZENAMERZRRIINER -

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities 82

EI{EBEEMIE T AB R &

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury 82
ATEBARTIERE
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they 61-64

are implemented and monitored.
M PTIR MR B R RER 25 - DA RABREMIT REER L o

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties 65-66
— MR E at work. Description of training activities.
BRARTHE BT TIFRE A3 R R BUR - SRR -
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category 82
(e.g. senior management, middle management)
RS REEFHN(IERERE  PREEEZ)EI>NZIREED L

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and 82

employee category
ZMRIREBRERED - FREETHRZIINFIRE

D
o)

General Disclosure Information on: 68

—RE BRADT L& Takss |2 THy -

(a) the policies; and

(a) WK &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.
(b) BFHBEITABERTLENHBEERRONER -
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and 68
forced labour

fit i RIS B RO HE T AR R B T I 5a )85 T

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered 68
AL TE B BUE MRS B B RR B B 1S 00 BT ERER Y 22 B




Subject Areas Content Page
TEHE AE ER ]

B5 Supply Chain Management {tfE§i & 12

General Disclosure

—RRIE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain

EIRHE SR IR Rt g RBRBUR -

Number of suppliers by geographical region

ZiRE S HEREE

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers

where the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored.

BRI RMEREY - MENITERENNHERSE  ARBEBAEHMN
BITREERA -

General Disclosure

—RRIE

Information on:

BRMRHEERNMRBREHREELZE  BS  SBREIALBREEARBRITED

(a) the policies; and

(a) B &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact
on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.

(b) BFHBETABERFZENABERZERIINER -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons.
EEREEXEREHTEAL 2 BEREAMARKKN B DL

Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are
dealt with )
BN E MRS RAR SR BB A R B 5%

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property
rights.
e 3L 6 4 7 N ARPE AN EE W B RA D B ©

Description of quality assurance process
F Il E B E 81

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored

WU BEEEMRERILBERE  ARBERTRERTA




Subject Areas

ERER

Content
AR

B7 Anti-corruption RE’55

General Disclosure

—RRIE

Information on:

BRI IEEERR - B1R - EGGF RO REER) ¢
(a) the policies; and

(a) B &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

(o) BTHHETABERZENHBMERLROINES -

Page
BB &L

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against
the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of

the cases
RERAALETASEEEREWEELENE THFARGOEE RFRER

oH

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures,
how they are implemented and monitored

R B S R EBRIRT - URBBRITRER X

General Disclosure

—RIE

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

BHNAHR2ERTREEMEHBTENEREIEKZD S EELRFIEMBK -

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport) .
ErEREE(NHE  BEEE - SIHEK - BFE - b 8BE)

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area

EEIRBEMHAER(NEEREH)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHREE

The Board has pleasure in presenting the annual report and the
audited accounts of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding.
Principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 12 to the
financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis on revenue and operation of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 by principal activities and places of
operation is set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group's business review for the year ended 31 December
2019, which includes a discussion on principal risks and
uncertainties facing by the Group, an analysis of the Group's
performance using financial key performance indicators, particulars
of important events affecting the Group during the year, and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business
is set out in the sections headed “Financial Highlights” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.
In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on
the Group are also set out in the sections headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 116.
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It is the policy of the Board, in considering the payment of
dividends, to allow shareholders of the Company to participate
in the Company’s profits whilst retaining adequate reserves for
the Group's future growth. The Board shall consider the following
factors before declaring or recommending dividends:

the Group's actual and expected financial performance;

e retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;

e the Group's working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans;

e the Group’'s liquidity position;

e general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's
business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Company; and

e other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with
applicable laws and regulations including the laws of the Cayman
Islands and the Articles. The Board will continually review the said
dividend policy from time to time and there can be no assurance
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given
period.

After considering the above-mentioned factors, the Board has
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.09 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2019 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
at the close of business on Tuesday, 9 June 2020, amounting to a
total of approximately HK$74,993,000. The proposed final dividend
is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company (the “"AGM"). The final
dividend, if approved, is expected to be paid on Wednesday, 24
June 2020.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM
to be held on Monday, 1 June 2020, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 27 May 2020 to
Monday, 1 June 2020, both dates inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the AGM, unregistered shareholders of
the Company should ensure that all share transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 26 May 2020.

For determining the entitlement to the aforesaid proposed
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Friday, 5 June 2020 to Tuesday, 9 June 2020, both
dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to be qualified for the proposed final dividend,
unregistered holders of shares of the Company should ensure that
all share transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong at the above address for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 4 June 2020.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the past
five financial years is set out on page 212. The summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in the Group's property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in Note 13 to the financial
statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2019 are set out in Note 26 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the Company's share capital during the
year are set out in Note 21 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of
the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in Notes 21, 22, 23, 24
and Note 36(a) to the financial statements and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 192 to 193, page 209, and
pages 119 to 120 respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands amounted to approximately HK$498,718,000
(2018: HK$542,710,000), of which approximately HK$74,993,000
has been proposed as a final dividend for the year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2019 were around HK$3,849,000 (2018:
HK$2,728,000).
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DIRECTORS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:
Executive Directors

Mr. Li Pui Leung

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy

Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung
(appointed on 20 December 2019)

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung
(resigned on 20 December 2019)

Pursuant to the Articles, Mr. Li Pui Leung, Mr. Lee Leung Yiu and
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung will retire at the AGM and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

PARTICULARS OF BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of biographies of directors and senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 27 to 33 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of directors’ remuneration and those of the five highest
paid individuals in the Group are set out in Notes 37 and 8 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Each of the executive directors entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 20
December 2019, which may be terminated by either party giving
not less than three months’ notice in writing.
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The Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of the
independent non-executive directors for a term of three years
commencing from 20 December 2019, unless terminated by either
party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing.

No director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
agreement which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and Note 34 (Related Party Transactions) to the
financial statements, no director nor a connected entity of a
director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contract of significance in relation
to the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the Year
under Review.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Share Award Scheme"” below, at no time during the year
was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements and the objects
of or one of the objects of such arrangements is/are to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities, including debentures, of
the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests of the directors or chief
executive of the Company in the shares of the Company which
were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"),
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code (Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules),

were as follows:

Long position in the shares of the Company

Name of director

Capacity/Nature of interests

EERESTBRAERKRND - HER
PRESPHER

M2019F12A318 » ARREERHEEITH
/\EEAK RN PR A BREE SRS
EIEBI([FEH KB EIEF ) FE352{KFE 8 R
ZAEFTIRME LM AN - KBREIZE
SR E R BRI E%10) Z1€ AR R) M BT Al
REmT ¢

\ﬂﬂn

RAERBDRBHFR

Approximate

percentage of

shareholding in

Number of shares the Company*

RA&ABHNEER
EEgE B REEME KRG EE RET D EE*
Mr. Li Pui Leung (“Mr. Li") Interests in controlled corporations 425,054,000 51.01%
(Note 1)
PHRAE(TEHREE]) THEEE R (HAET)
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael Interests in controlled corporation 55,620,000 6.67%
(“Mr. Yung") (Note 2)
SEALE(HEE]D REGEEER(fE2)
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu Interests in controlled corporation 53,640,000 6.44%

(“Mr. Lee"”)
FTREBAE(ZRBEAE]D

(Note 3)
RIEGLEE R (A 73)
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Notes:

1. These shares were held by Eastern Mix Company Limited (“Eastern Mix") (for
335,654,000 shares) and Lead Smart Develooment Limited (“Lead Smart”)
(for 89,400,000 shares) respectively. The issued share capital of Eastern Mix is
owned as to 45%, 28% and 27% by Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, respectively;
and Lead Smart is wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Li. As Eastern Mix and
Lead Smart are controlled corporations of Mr. Li, he is deemed to be interested
in these shares held by these two corporations pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

2. These shares were held by Cheer Union Development Ltd. (“Cheer Union”), a
corporation wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Yung.

&, These shares were held by Normal Times International Limited (“Normal
Times”), a corporation wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Lee.

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares involved divided by the
number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
directors nor chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in shares or underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which has been recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

FERRRRG R HEE RS S

MR2019F12A318 » ARRIRIEFHFRHAE
GO IR ERBARAAFRFENERE
oM ATRe SRSk AR BIFTA - U TEBEHA
AR AI5%KIA R B HITAIRANAYRERS -

As at 31 December 2019, the following corporations had interests
in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company as
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as known by the

Company:

Long position in the shares of the Company

Name of shareholder

Capacity/Nature of interests

Number of shares

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company*

RARA TN
RERHE B EEHE g =] REBDLE*
Eastern Mix (Note 1) Beneficial owner 335,654,000 40.28%
ER(HMaET) EmEAA
Lead Smart (Note 1) Beneficial owner 89,400,000 10.73%
A1) EmEAA
Cheer Union (Note 2) Beneficial owner 55,620,000 6.67%
FF(Ftat2) EmEAA
Normal Times (Note 3) Beneficial owner 53,640,000 6.44%
T (f77E3) EmEAA
Value Partners Group Limited Interest in controlled corporations 65,302,000 7.84%
(Note 4)
BEEEBRAF (A1) REHAE S
Value Partners High-Dividend Beneficial owner 64,410,000 7.73%
Stocks Fund
Value Partners High-Dividend BEmiEA A
Stocks Fund
FMR LLC (Note 5) Interest in controlled corporations 59,403,690 7.13%

FMR LLC(ft:£5)

RS EEER

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019



Notes:

1.

The above interests of Eastern Mix and Lead Smart were also disclosed as the
interests of Mr. Li in the above section headed “Directors” and Chief Executive's
Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

The above interests of Cheer Union were also disclosed as the interests of Mr.
Yung in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

The above interests of Normal Times were also disclosed as the interests of Mr.
Lee in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

These 65,302,000 shares were held by Value Partners Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Value Partners Hong Kong Limited, which in turn was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Value Partners Group Limited. Accordingly, Value Partners
Hong Kong Limited and Value Partners Group Limited were deemed to be
interested in these shares pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

FMR LLC was deemed to be interested in these 59,403,690 shares through a
series of subsidiaries pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares involved divided by the
number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no person,
other than the directors and chief executive of the Company
whose interests are set out in the section headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive's Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” above, had any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO.
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The Company adopted a share option scheme on 29 November
2013 (the “Share Option Scheme") for the purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to eligible participants (including employees,
executives or officers, directors including non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors, advisers, consultants,
suppliers, customers and agents of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries) for their contribution to the long term growth of the
Group and to enable the Company to attract and retain high caliber
employees.

The Share Option Scheme became effective on the date of the
Company’s listing (20 December 2013) and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date.

The total number of securities of the Company available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme was 73,340,000 shares,
representing approximately 8.80% of the shares of the Company
in issue as at the date of this annual report. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options granted to each
eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme (including both
exercised and outstanding options) within any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any
grant or further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. A grant
of share options under the Share Option Scheme to a director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, is subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the Options). In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any
of their associates, which would result in the shares issued and to
be issued, upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding),
to such person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of the grant in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Company's shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.
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The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
30 days from the date of offer upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determined by the directors, save
that such a period shall not be more than 10 years from the date
of offer of the share options and subject to the provisions for early
termination as set out in the Share Option Scheme. There is no
requirement of a minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options shall be not less than the
highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's
shares on the date of offer of the share options, which must be a
date on which the Stock Exchange is open for business of dealing
in securities; (i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the
Company on the date of offer.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no outstanding
share option for the subscription of new shares held by any parties.

The Company adopted a share award scheme on 25 February
2019 (the “Share Award Scheme"”) as means to recognise the
contribution by the Group's personnel and to provide them
with incentives to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group. The shares of the Company to be
awarded under the Share Award Scheme will be purchased by
the trustee from the open market out of cash contributed by the
Group or subscribed by the trustee when allotted and issued by
the Company under a general mandate granted or to be granted by
the shareholders of the Company from time to time to allot, issue
or otherwise deal with the Company’s shares in accordance with
the Listing Rules for the purpose of the trust and be held on trust
for the Eligible Participants (as defined under the Share Award
Scheme) (other than Excluded Participants (as defined under the
Share Award Scheme)) until such shares are vested with the
relevant Selected Participants (as defined under the Share Award
Scheme) in accordance with the provisions of the Share Award
Scheme.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company through its
trustee, Bank of Communications Trustee Limited, acquired a total
of 1,154,000 of the Company's shares. Details of the Share Award
Scheme are set out in Note 25 to the financial statements.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Mr. Li, Lead Smart and Eastern Mix (collectively the
“Covenantors”) have entered into a Deed of Non-Competition in
favour of the Company (on behalf of itself and the Group) dated
29 November 2013 (the “Deed”). Pursuant to the Deed, each of
the Covenantors shall procure their respective associates not to
directly or indirectly engage in any business in competition with
the existing businesses of the Group. Relevant information on
the Deed was disclosed in the Prospectus in the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders”. The Company has
received confirmations from the Covenantors of their compliance
with the terms of the Deed. The Covenantors declared that they
have fully complied with the Deed for the year ended 31 December
2019. The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the
confirmations from the Covenantors and concluded that the Deed
has been complied with and enforced in an effective manner.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following continuing connected
transactions during the year. The directors confirmed that those
transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole. All applicable percentage ratios (other
than the profits ratio) as defined in Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules
in respect of the proposed annual caps for those transactions
are expected to be less than 5%. Those transactions are exempt
from shareholders’ approval under Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing
Rules and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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The table below sets out the annual caps and the actual transaction TRHBINZEHFEBEI SR 2019F 2 FE

amounts of those continuing connected transactions in 2019: IREERIFHEE :
No. Connected Transaction Connected Person Annual Cap Actual Transaction Amount
BY BERS BEAL EELR ERRAE

RMB'000 HK$'000  RMB'000 HK$'000
ARETT T ARMTR TR

1 Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement TK Technology Holdings Limited 146 168 146 168
("TK Technology Holdings")
B RINBEEERAF
(TRIREEE])
2 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 1 Lease Agreement  TK Technology (Shenzhen) 18,261 21,483 15,682 17,807
RYVER R 158 & ek ROTRHEE (R
3 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 2 Lease Agreement  TK Technology (Shenzhen) 30,213 35,544 28,965 32,889
MERBE2ERER S RIRH (R
4 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 3 Lease Agreement  TK Technology (Shenzhen) 6,510 7,663 6,109 6,934
MIERBEIRAERZ ROTRHEE (R
5 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 4 Lease Agreement  TK Technology (Shenzhen) 20 23 9 10
AERBEERER RLRHR AN
6 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Dormitory Block A Lease TK Technology (Shenzhen) 675 795 454 516
Agreement
RMIEZBEARESRERZ ROTRHEE(RYI)
7 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Parking Space Lease TK Technology (Shenzhen) 914 1,076 914 1,038
Agreement
RAIEZBE LA RS TR (R
8  Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Farm Land Lease TK Technology (Shenzhen) 557 655 557 632
Agreement
AEZRBE REEE S RIRB (R
9 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Football Field Lease TK Technology (Shenzhen) 264 311 264 300
Agreement
RIEFBE SRS EEHE RILRHR AN

Subtotal of lease agreements
REHZ Nt 57,560 67,718 53,100 60,294

RIEE (Zk) BRAR —T—LF4



(1) Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement

A tenancy agreement dated 27 December 2018 (the “Hong
Kong Tenancy Agreement”) was entered into between TK
Technology Holdings as landlord and TK Group International
(Hong Kong) Limited (“TK Group International (Hong Kong)”,
a subsidiary of the Company) as tenant in respect of the
premises located at Workshop No. 19 on 9th Floor, Block B, Hi-
Tech Industrial Centre, No. 491-501 Castle Peak Road, Tsuen
Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong (the “Hong Kong Premises”)
with an area of approximately 77.67 square metres for a term
of three years commencing on 1 January 2019 and expiring
on 31 December 2021 at a monthly rent of HK$14,000. The
property is used as the principal place of business for the
Group in Hong Kong. At any time during the term of the Hong
Kong Tenancy Agreement, TK Group International (Hong Kong)
may terminate the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement by giving
not less than one month’s prior written notice to the landlord or
by paying one month’s rent to the landlord.

TK Technology Holdings is a property holding company and
indirectly held as to 45.0% by Mr. Li, 28.0% by Mr. Yung
and 27.0% by Mr. Lee. According to the Listing Rules, TK
Technology Holdings is an associate of Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and
Mr. Lee, and is thus a connected person of the Company.

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement, the annual
rent of the Hong Kong Premises in 2019 amounted to
HK$168,000, payable by TK Group International (Hong Kong)
in advance on the first day of each calendar month. The annual
rent payable to TK Technology Holdings was determined at
after arm’s length negotiation between the parties to the Hong
Kong Tenancy Agreement. The independent property valuer
of the Company has also confirmed that the terms of the
Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement are fair and reasonable and
the rental payment under the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement
reflects the prevailing market rate.

(1) BEEEm=

IR EE(EA¥ ) B IEERH
B(EB)ARAR(RIEEHER(H
) KRRl ZKIBRAR) (EAEEA)
MR2018F 12 A27HEI Y ERHE([ B
HEWHH])  NAEHEBTETARZEES
W3BA91-5015% 5 h TE R ODBEIESE
19 M ME([EAWE]) - BHEL
77.67F 5K - FHEI=4F - 2019414
1H#BZE2021F12A318EH ° AR A
14,0008 7T - ZWEHEREASEESR
BRETEEEMD - REBHEHZH
RA - RIIEBEER(EE) TRERMRE
FEHETNIOR—EAELEmMABAN - =K
MEFTIN—EANESKEREEHEE

e

IR EEAYELERAR - AEM
REAE BARERTRBELED BIBE
HHA5.0% ~ 28.0% N27.0% - 12
MARE - FINBEEAZHR LA -
BEERTRERBEENBEA  BAX
RAEIMEEAL -
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ST REERRBREE - AR AIRNEL
YMEGEMMERREEHERZIK
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(2) Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements

The following lease agreements were entered into between
TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord and TK Mold
(Shenzhen) Limited (“TK Mold (Shenzhen)"”), TK Precision
Plastics (Shenzhen) Limited (“TK Precision Plastics”), YD
Mold (Shenzhen) Limited (“YD Mold"”) and TK Supply Chain
Management Services (Shenzhen) Limited (“TK Supply Chain”)
as tenants respectively:

Directors’ Report (continued)
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(2) FYIERBEEE =

ROIRHECRID (EREE)EBRITRA
CRIDBR 2R (TERITRECEIN ) »
RIBENTZ(FRYIDBERAR(IRT
BEDTZ]) - HREACRIDBRAF
(TMARRE ) RERT g &2 R OR
INBER AR (TR HRER ) (1FR%EHA
AP RIFTL NHIHE Wz

Agreement Parties to the Agreement Date of Agreement  Leased Property Term Monthly Rent
i R EELE] BENE 3 ik
(RMB)
(AE®)
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 1 TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2019 Workshop A, B, C, D, Eand F Phase 1 of 1 January 2019 to 1,306,864
Lease Agreement and TK Mold (Shenzhen] and TK Technology Park, Tangjia Community, 31 December 2021
YD Mold as tenants Fenghuang Sub-District Office,
Guangming District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
MIEFER RRERE RIHRR (feR%E)E 01951718 PRIt RERERERERILE N19F1810%
FIEA(MIN R RRA FINAISR(-4)ERA B C-D-E-FR  201%12A%1R
(fERAHEA)
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 2 TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2019 Workshop G and H Phase 2, Zone A Workshop J, 1 January 2019 to 2,413,744
Lease Agreement and TK Precision Plastics as tenant Phase 3, the 4th, 5th, and 6th floor of Zone B, 31 December 2021
Workshop J, Phase 3 of TK Technology Park,
Tangjia Community, Fenghuang Sub-District
Office, Guangming District, Shenzhen City,
the PRC
MIRFHR R R RIBROMI) (fep%+)E 01951718 hER TRk SR AR IR 019%1810%
RIRELTE(fERREA) FIMRIXE(ZH)ERG HE: WNF12A318
(CHRRJRAR  JEBRES 5 68
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 3 TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2019 The 1st, 2nd, 3rd, 8th, 9th and 10th floor of Zone B, 1 January 2019 to 508,827
Lease Agreement and TK Precision Plastics as tenant Workshop J, Phase 3 of TK Technology Park, 31 December 2021
Tangjia Community, Fenghuang Sub-District
Office, Guangming District, Shenzhen City,
the PRC
MIEZRRESHE R RIBROM) (fea%E)E 01951718 RERIMt AEEERERERILE 019%1810%
FIREITR(fEREEN) RIMKIZE (=8 HRJRBE 2021512A31R
$1:2:3:8:9°108
RIEE (R) BRAR —T—NF
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Agreement Parties to the Agreement Date of Agreement  Leased Property Term Monthly Rent
i BETHS EEL=E BENZ 3 ikl
(RMB)
(AE®)
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 4 TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 15 June 2019 Zone B Level 7 Workshop J, Phase 3 of TK 15 June 2019 to 1375
Lease Agreement and TK Supply Chain as tenant Technology Park, Tangjia Community, 31 December 2021
Fenghuang Sub-District Office,
Guangming District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
MIRFHRSERE R RIMR(A (AR E)E 2019567158 nERITE AEEE R ERERILE 0195641582
FIHER(FRAEA) FIMRIXE (=8 BRIRBESTE 021512A31A
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Dormitory ~ TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2019 Dormitory Block A of TK Technology Park, 1 January 2019 to 37,868
Block A Lease Agreement and TK Precision Plastics and Tangjia Community, Fenghuang Sub-District 31 December 2019
TK Mold (Shenzhen| as tenants Office, Guangming District, Shenzhen City,
the PRC
MIEFERARESRERE  RINROM)(ERXT)R 01951418 PRIt AERE R ERERILE N191710%
FIREIERRIRA(RI) FIMRIXEARES 20195124318
({EREEA)
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Parking  TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2019 Parking Space of TK Technology Park, 1 January 2019 to 76,200
Space Lease Agreement and TK Precision Plastics and Tangjia Community, Fenghuang Sub-District 31 December 2021
TK Mold (Shenzhen) as tenants Office, Guangming District, Shenzhen City,
the PRC
MIEFBREEE RS RIBROMI) (feR%+)E 201951518 RERIMt REEERERERIE 01918102
RIRETERRIEA(RI) RIMRIZEEN 0215128318
(fERAEA)
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Farm TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2019 Farm Land of TK Technology Park, Tangjia 1 January 2019 to 46,400
Land Lease Agreement and TK Precision Plastics as tenant Community, Fenghuang Sub-District Office, 31 December 2021
Guangming District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
MIEFRE RIS S RIMROMI)(fER%E)E 01951418 e Db ilEEr A Gl 01951A18%
RTREIT2(fERAEA) BINRIZEEE 021512A31A
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Football - TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2019 Football Field of TK Technology Park, Tangjia 1 January 2019 to 22,000
Field Lease Agreement and TK Precision Plastics as tenant Community, Fenghuang Sub-District Office, 31 December 2021
Guangming District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
MIERBERRESEE  RIMROMI)(EART)E WI9E1A18 PRI T REREREREFHE WI9F1A1AE
FIRETE(fERAEA) RIMRIZERR: 2021512A31R
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TK Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision Plastics, YD Mold and TK
Supply Chain are entitled to renew the Shenzhen Tangjia
Plants Lease Agreements by notifying the landlord one month
before the expiration of the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease
Agreements, and TK Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision Plastics,
YD Mold and TK Supply Chain are entitled to a right of first
refusal in the renewal. Moreover, in the event that the landlord
intends to sell the subject properties during the term of the
Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements, including any
renewal thereof, the landlord shall inform TK Mold (Shenzhen),
TK Precision Plastics, YD Mold and TK Supply Chain of the
intended sale in writing and TK Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision
Plastics, YD Mold and TK Supply Chain are entitled to a right
of first refusal to purchase, which is deemed to be waived
if TK Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision Plastics, YD Mold and
TK Supply Chain do not accept the offer within 30 days after
receiving such notice. TK Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision
Plastics, YD Mold and TK Supply Chain are further entitled to
terminate the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements by
giving one month’s notice to the landlord without cause. Mr.
Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, being the ultimate shareholders
of TK Technology (Shenzhen), undertake to use their best
endeavour to procure TK Technology (Shenzhen) to fulfil
its obligations under the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease
Agreements.

TK Technology (Shenzhen) is a company indirectly held as to
45.0% by Mr. Li, 28.0% by Mr. Yung and 27.0% by Mr. Lee.
According to the Listing Rules, TK Technology (Shenzhen) is
an associate of Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, and is thus a
connected person of the Company.

The annual rent payable to TK Technology (Shenzhen) was
determined at after arm’s length negotiation between the
parties to the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements.
The independent property valuer of the Company has also
confirmed that, having taken into account of, among other
things, the title defects of the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants, the
terms of the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements
(including the rental payable thereunder) are fair and
reasonable and the rental payable under the Shenzhen Tangjia
Plants Lease Agreements reflects the prevailing market rate.
Our directors consider that the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease
Agreements have been entered into on normal commercial
terms and in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group.
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Pursuant to Rules 14A.81, 14A.82 and 14A.83 of the Listing
Rules, the transactions under the Hong Kong Tenancy
Agreement and Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements
(collectively the “Connected Lease Agreements”) have been
aggregated for the purposes of determining the category of
continuing connected transaction that the Connected Lease
Agreements shall fall into under the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have, for the purpose of Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules,
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out
above and have confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions have been entered into by the Group (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of its business; (ii) on normal
commercial terms or better; and (iii) according to the
agreements governing such transactions on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company's
shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company's
auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued his unqualified letter in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in Note 34
to the financial statements.

The Company confirms that in relation to the related party
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2019, it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for 38.9% of the Group's total
sales and the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
was approximately 13.3% of the Group’s total sales. The aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
were approximately 13.6% of the Group's total purchases and
the purchase attributable to the Group’s largest supplier was
approximately 4.0% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had beneficial interests in the Group's top five suppliers or
customers referred to above.

COMPLIANCE OF RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, there was no material breach or non-compliance
with the applicable laws regulations by the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Share Award Scheme” in this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing shares entered into by the
Company during the Year under Review or subsisted at the end of
the year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance were entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries during the year.

Directors’ Report (continued)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEgWmEE(E)

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors as at the date of this
annual report, there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the Listing Rules.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to the shares of the Company,
they are advised to consult an expert.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and a resolution for their
re-appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
AGM.

By the order of the Board
Li Pui Leung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

_E
pwec

To the Shareholders of TK Group (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of TK Group (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 116 to 211, which comprise:

e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B 2B E (B)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment of
trade receivables.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019
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Key Audit Matter
BREENEE

Impairment of trade receivables

Refer to note 4.1(b) — Critical accounting estimates
and assumptions and note 18(c) — Trade and other
receivables to the consolidated financial statements.

We focused on this area because the allowance
for impairment of trade receivables is mainly
related to specific customers (HK$4.36 million
as at 31 December 2019) and has decreased by
approximately HK$1.89 million or 30.24% comparing
with that of last year.

In addition, the assessment for impairment of trade
receivables involves critical accounting estimates
and judgments relating to the extent and duration
that amount will be recovered.

B 5 W E R E

H2HE M BIRERMTE4.1(b) —FAR S TGt RERR
VAR B E18(c) —B 5 M E YRR -

A FHEBEDHRE S ERRBERERGEEHE
HEREAR (2019128318 5436 B8 BT)
BERFRDA.89FEBLE30.24%

SN FHEE S RBCGRIERE Y KRB TR &5
REEA BB S G R -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
AN BT NAEEEARETSE

In responding to this key audit matter, we performed
the following procedures:

(i)  We understood, evaluated and tested credit control
procedures of the trade receivables including the
monthly management review of ageing, repayment
and impairment assessment of trade receivables;

(i) For those items with impairment provision being
made, we reviewed the impairment calculations,
focusing on the estimated amount to be recovered
and timing of the recovery with reference to the
supporting documents, e.g. repayment schedules of
trade receivables;

(iii) We requested confirmations for major year end
balances. Where confirmations had not been
received or received with difference, we sought
explanation from management and checked to their
original sales contracts, delivery documents and
their subsequent settlement after year end date.

Based on the procedures performed and evidence
obtained, we found accounting estimates and
judgments in relation to the provision for impairment
of trade receivables as at 31 December 2019 was
supported by the evidence we obtained.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B 2B E (B)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

|f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheung Chin Hoo, Albert.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Bt ERER

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2019 2018
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HaF FHExT FHET
Revenue WA 5 2,310,842 2,298,609
Cost of sales HER A 7 (1,643,367) (1,574,191)
Gross profit EF 667,475 724,418
Other income E A 6 50,147 24,730
Other losses — net HipEsia— 258 6 (5,842) (2,739)
Selling expenses SHERM 7 (80,690) (88,341)
Administrative expenses THERSX 7 (269,567) (257,733)
Operating profit R R 361,523 400,335
Interest income FLEWA 9 20,220 9,965
Interest expenses B 9 (21,615) (3,166)
Finance (cost)/income — net BME(KA) MA—F5E 6,799
Share of net profit of an associate FREREARZ
accounted for using the equity i d=NG!
method il 12a —
Profit before income tax R Fi7 15 86 A 2 F 360,499 407,134
Income tax expense R 10 (58,696) (56,949)
Profit for the year attributable to AATEEAEML
owners of the Company FRRF 301,803 350,185
Other comprehensive income Hh4RE Wz
Item that may be reclassified to BER[REEFT T2
profit and loss: Bz 2 EH -
Currency translation differences bE 5 =58 (23,199) (36,258)
Total comprehensive income for FREZEWEHEEE
the year 313,927
Earnings per share for the year FAESREF
— basic and diluted (HK$ per share) —EBEARANEE(FRETT) 11 0.42

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income LA L& Bt A W es 3= e E R BE M i s — 6153
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. =
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

EHEERER

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2019 2018
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaE FHExT FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MR 13 592,278 516,190
Intangible assets EREE 15 13,831 11,693
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 14 142,530 —
Financial assets at fair value through L\ AR EBEITEAHE T
profit or loss FFABENSREE 19 33,621 23,621
Investment in an associate REERAZIRE 12a 15,526 =
Prepayments for property, plant and ME - BB N EEN
equipment SEENE 22,812 38,160
820,598 589,664
Current assets REBEE
Inventories =g 17 397,041 343,168
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E MW EIE 18 371,794 355,318
Deposits for bank borrowings RITEENIZS 26 134,594 84,975
Restricted cash RIS 20 17,638 36,553
Cash and cash equivalents B MREEEY 20 582,878 753,811
1,503,945 1,673,625
Total assets BEE 2,324,543 2,163,489
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of AAREEAELER
the Company
Share capital [N 21 83,326 83,326
Share premium f& 175 (B 27 251,293 251,293
Shares held for employee share MiEBRDETE
scheme BB ZK&H 22 (5,517) —
Other reserves H th #1 24 21,188 25,224
Retained earnings RE & Al 23 841,175 715,615
Total equity SR 1,191,465 1,075,458

RTIRE () BRLAR T NAFFR
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)
EHEEBER(E)

As at 31 December

M®12H318
2019 2018
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
it FET FHET
LIABILITIES 8&
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 26 75,911 235,014
Deferred income on government grants B 4 Bh IR ZE WA 27 36,442 23,793
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEAEHARE 29 43,737 21,928
Lease liabilities HEAE 14 92,671 =
248,761 280,735
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N EMENRIE 28 411,751 456,501
Contract liabilities AWEaE 226,663 198,911
Income tax liabilities et 8’ 21,299 44,666
Bank borrowings RITIEE 26 166,049 107,218
Lease liabilities HEEE 14 58,555 —
884,317 807,296
Total liabilities Feb =R 1,133,078 1,088,031
Total equity and liabilities EZRkEEAE 2,324,543 2,163,489

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in LA L& BFEE B E 7 FEE R BE M T & —
conjunction with the accompanying notes. PHEIE -

The financial statements on pages 116 to 211 were approved by
the Board of Directors on 27 March 2020 and were signed on its
behalf.

F116E211BEMP KR EK MK 2020F3 A
7HKESe A WHERREE -

Li Pui Leung Yung Kin Cheung Michael
R S23
Director Director
EE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FAN gk >-< 45k
SOfEREE R
QOther reserves
AfE
Shares
held for
employee Share-  Currency
Share Share share  Statutory based translation  Retained
capital  premium  scheme  reserves payments  reserve  eamings Total
HEER
LEE R HRAE
Br RbEE  2kh EEEE ERZNR ERRE  RERET )
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TER
Balance at 1 January 2018 R2018F1 1AM 83326 251,293 - 56,649 — (18183 538433 911518
Comprehensive income SENE
Profit for the year ERigH - - - - - — 350,185 350,185
Currency translation differences ERER = = - - - (3,258) - (3,268)
Total comprehensive income GakEes = = = = —  (36208) 350,185 313,927
Contributions by and distributionsto ~ AAFEEALER
owners of the Company EEAR
Dividends RE - - = = - —  (149,987)  (149,987)
Total contributions by ERRLAREALER
and distributions to owners of the ElEARAE
Company for the year — — — — — (36258 200,198 163,940
Transfer to statutory reserves ERTTTRE - - - 3086 = - (23006 =
Total transactions with HANTREAN
owners of the Company RA8E - - - 23016 — (36258 177182 163,940
Balance at 31 December 2018 R2018E12A31 A MLk 83326 251,293 — 79665 —  [54d41) 715615 1075458

RIKE (k) BRAR —F—AFFH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity (continued)
A OTERB BT (B)

Other reserves
Bttt
Shares
held for
employee Share-  Currency
Share Share share  Statutory based translation Retained
capital premium  scheme reserves payments  reserve  earnings Total
HEERR
FE J2E R A

Ba  BiaR B EREE BRZAK  EXGE  RERA #it
Note HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
#i#  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn AR AT TEn  TEn

Balance at 1 January 2019 201951 B1B AL 83326 251,293 - (54,441) 715,615 1,075,458
Comprehensive income GelE
Profit for the year ERiaf] - - 301,803 301,803
Currency translation differences EiEE 4 - (23199) - (23,199
Total comprehensive income BALRAE - (23199) 301,803 278,604

Contributions by and distributions to ~ AATEEALER

owners of the Company Ef Ak
Acquisition of shares under employee  BIEEERM:1E
share scheme D) 2 (5,517) (5,517)
Employee share schemes- EERME-
value of employee services ESRBER 2 = 1239
Dividends K& 30 (158,319)  (158,319)
Total contributions by and ERRDAEEALER
distributions to owners of EE A REH
the Company for the year 1,239 - (158319) (162,597)
Transfer to statutory reserves BEDETRE 2 - s =
Total transactions with BALNAREAN
owners of the Company RBEE (5,517) 17,924 1239 (23,199) 125560 116,007
Balance at 31 December 2019 R2019F12A31 AR 83326 251293  (5517) 97,589 1239 (77,640) 841175 1,191,465

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be A EE SR EERMEN M T — 3
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BHESRER

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A318LEE

2019
Note HK$'000
itz TR
Cash flows from operating activities RESEZHNHEERE
Cash generated from operations MEEENRS 31(a) 488,797
Interest received BUYH S 14,951
Income tax paid BERMEH (59,948)
Net cash generated from operating activities REFTYMEEMNREFE 443,800
Cash flows from investing activities REREEBNAERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipmentand ~ EEW¥ - BERREL
construction in progress rEIR (206,197)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEVEE (6,689)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME  BEKEREN
equipment FTg50A 31(b) 8,540
Additions of investment in an associate REREE DA ZRE 12a (15,155)
Additions of financial assets at fair value through /"ELA’A’A{ETEJ;E
profitorloss ~ Hg TABRNEREE (596,808)
Proceeds from financial assets at fair value M’Aﬁﬁfﬁ#zﬂﬁk@hﬂ\
through profit or loss BafemEEMSHE 592,063
Net cash used in investing activities RETHMAERLFE (224,246)
Cash flows from financing activities REMETHNELRE
Proceeds from bank borrowings %E{ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ?gfﬁk 369,489
Repayments of bank borrowings BEETEE (469,761)
Increase in deposits for bank borrowings RITEERSEM (49,619)
Interest paid BAIFIE (12,745)
Principal elements of lease payments HENFR RS S 31(c) (60,966)
Acquisition of shares for employee share scheme t{E 8 Bk 5+ 2|4 B 17 22 (5,517)
Dividends paid ERRE 30 (158,319)

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing REEE(FR),/ FELRSFRE

activities

(387,438)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%{'%
equivalents B/ BIFE

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the $%Dfﬁé&iﬁé—rf’f%
year

Currency translation losses on cash and cash BeRReEENELBE
equivalents

(167,884)

753,811

(3,049)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year EXRELRALEEY

582,878

Analysis of balances of cash and cash Be kR ZEMERLN
equivalents:
Cash and cash on hand RekFERS
Restricted cash XB R

600,516
(17,638)

582,878

2018
HK$'000
TR

512,174
4,673
(25,401)

491,446

(262,732)
(4,359)

1,812

(653,644)
535,349

(283,574)

370,966
(126,649)
(84,975)
(3,166)

(149,987)
6,189

214,061
540,815
(1,065)

753,811

790,364
(36,553)

753,811

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in A EEHBE S REREERPBENM s — 3

conjunction with the accompanying notes. iE o

RTRE () BRLAR =
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR ML

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 28
March 2013 as an exempted company with limited liability.
The address of the Company's registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company, an investment
holding company, and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing, sales,
subcontracting, fabrication and modification of molds and
plastic components in the People's Republic of China (the
"PRC"). As at 31 December 2019, the ultimate shareholders
of the Group are Mr. Li Pui Leung, Mr. Yung Kin Cheung
Michael and Mr. Lee Leung Yiu (collectively the “Ultimate
Shareholders”), each holding an effective equity interest of
28.86%, 17.95% and 17.31% in the Company, respectively.

On 20 December 2013, shares of the Company were listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 27 March
2020.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
and requirements of the Hong Kong Companies ordinance
Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss which are carried at fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgments in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgments or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 4.

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group
The Group has applied the following standards
and amendments for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2019:

HKFRS 16 Leases

e Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation —
Amendments to HKFRS 9

e [ong-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures —
Amendments to HKAS 28

e Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2015-2017
Cycle

e Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement —
Amendments to HKAS 19

e |nterpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments.

The Group had to change its accounting policies as
a result of adopting HKFRS 16. The Group elected to
adopt the new rules retrospectively but recognised the
cumulative effect of initially applying the new standard
on 1 January 2019. This is disclosed in note 2.2. Most
of the other amendments listed above did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and
are not expected to significantly affect the current or
future periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

15 R B e ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet

adopted

Standards, amendments and interpretations that have
been issued but not yet effective for the financial year
beginning 1January 2019 and not been early adopted
by the Group for the year are as follows:

2 FESHHEME@m)

2.1 IR E A (F)

(b) & RERANEOHTRT 2E AU R 5208

R2019%F1 A1 HBABNY BE
EEEGERNRERERAFEE
REALEIRATFMER - &
FIRBRENT

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after
RIATB#s 2 &R
FEHEER

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
BRMBREENE1TR RE4H

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material
AR RS IR RABSHEAES EANTR

SREVERT
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
BERBRERNEIFAERT EBHER
Conceptual Framework for Financial Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 Reporting

2018F B E B MER
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28 and its associate or joint venture
BEERBREEAE 105K REEREBENAHISELE RN
BB G RERE28KMERT BEHERIA

RETNRBREHER

Sales or contribution of assets between an investor ~ The effective date has

1 January 2021
2021F1A1R
1 January 2020
2020F1H18

1 January 2020
20201 A1R
1 January 2020

2020F1A1H

now been deferred

EMEHRETE

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of the new or revised standards that
have been issued but either not yet effective for the
financial period beginning 1 January 2019 or not been
early adopted by the Group which are relevant to
the Group’s operation. The Group believes that the
application of amendments to HKFRSs, amendments
to HKASs and the new interpretations is unlikely to
have a material impact on the Group’'s statement
of financial position and performance as well as
disclosure in the future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M et (48D

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FESTHEHME@E)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies e mEg

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
Leases on the Group’s financial statements.

As indicated in note 2.1 above, the Group has adopted
HKFRS 16 Leases retrospectively from 1 January 2019,
but has not restated comparatives for the 2018 reporting
period, as permitted under the specific transition
provisions in the standard. The reclassifications and
the adjustments arising from the new leasing rules are
therefore recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1
January 2019. The new accounting policies are disclosed in
note 2.27.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as ‘operating leases’ under the principles of
HKAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1
January 2019. The weighted average lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1 January
2019 were 4.76%.

(i) Practical expedients applied
In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has
used the following practical expedients permitted by
the standard:

e applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics

e relying on previous assessments on whether
leases are onerous as an alternative to performing
an impairment review — there were no onerous
contracts as at 1 January 2019

e accounting for operating leases with a remaining
lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 January
2019 as short-term leases
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHERME @)
POLICIES (cContinued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued) SETBCREE (&
(i) Practical expedients applied (Continued) (i) FIERAMNERERSEE)

e excluding initial direct costs for the measurement s RBEXEABHGFEFEARE
of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial BERMESR B EEKA
application, and &

e using hindsight in determining the lease term s EHEABELERFKRIEEE
where the contract contains options to extend or FEIERER - NERETEM
terminate the lease. B o

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether AEBTEERETEHTEELN

a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial RERERARESEHERE

application. Instead, for contracts entered into before EMHE - R - HRBEE R HA

the transition date the Group relied on its assessment FINEEY  REBKIEEER
made applying HKAS 17 and Interpretation 4 B ERE17R RERESS

Determining whether an Arrangement contains a RETLHEE RS HEMEL

Lease. BIAT AR o

(ii) Measurement of lease liabilities (ii) HEEEWTE
2019
HK$’000
FET

Operating lease commitments disclosed as 201812 431 B EH
at 31 December 2018 KT S R 232,641

Discounted using the lessee’s incremental {5 F&M AR & X FE R B 25

borrowing rate of at the date of initial 12 2 8RR R BL3R
application
(Less): short-term leases not recognised as () : WEERABENREHEE
a liability
(Less): low-value leases not recognised as (i) : WEERABEBEHNREEHAE
a liability
Lease liability recognised as at R2019F1 A 1B ERANEERE
1 January 2019 212,147
Of which are: Hep -
Current lease liabilities mEHEARE
Non-current lease liabilities EnBHEaR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M et (48D

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESTHEHME@E)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 222 BEREH (@)

(iii) EAEEENE

(iii) Measurement of right-of-use assets

The associated right-of-use assets for property leases
were measured on a retrospective basis as if the new
rules had always been applied. Other right-of use
assets were measured at the amount equal to the
lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to that lease
recognised in the balance sheet as at 31 December
2018.

(iv) Adjustments recognised in the balance sheet on 1

January 2019
The change in accounting policy affected the following
items in the balance sheet on 1 January 2019:

e right-of-use assets — increase by HK$212,147,000

e |ease liabilities — increase by HK$212,147,000

There was no impact on retained earnings on 1 January
2019.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

15 R B e ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

TK Group

2.3.1 Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group (refer
to note 2.4).

232 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting (see 2.3.3 below), after
initially being recognised at cost.

2.3.3 Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group's share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from associates are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

(Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(Continued)

2.3.3 Equity method (Continued)
Where the Group's share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity-accounted investees
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in note 2.12

2.4 Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation are measured at either
fair value or the present ownership interests’ proportionate
share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date
fair value, unless another measurement basis is required
by HKFRS.

B R R M et (48D
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

15 R B e ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cContinued)

2.4 Business combinations (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (note 2.9(c)).

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M et (48D

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FESTHEHME@E)

2.4 EXE0 @)

2.4 Business combinations (Continued)

Merger accounting

In preparing for the Company’s listing on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange in December 2013, the Group
underwent a reorganisation involving entities under the
same ownership of the ultimate shareholders.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the combining entities or
businesses as if they had been combined from the date
when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the common control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
combined using the existing carrying amounts from the
controlling parties’ perspective. No amount is recognised
for goodwill or excess of acquirers’ interest in the net
fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of
the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income
includes the results of each of the combining entities
or businesses from the earliest date presented or since
the date when the combining entities or businesses first
came under the common control, whichever is shorter,
regardless of the date of the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses
had been combined at the previous balance sheet date or
when they first came under common control, whichever is
shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by
those entities. All intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between combining
entities or businesses are eliminated on consolidation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

15 R B e ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Separate financial statements

2 FESHHEME@m)

2.5 BB ERK

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee's net
assets including goodwill.

2.6 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors who makes strategic
decisions.

2.7 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

I[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
Renminbi (“RMB") is the functional currency of
principal operating subsidiaries of the Group. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar, which is the presentation and
functional currency of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances

(c)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
within ‘Other losses — net’.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the statement of comprehensive income
within ‘Finance (cost)/income — net’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in statement
of comprehensive income within ‘Other losses — net’.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the rate on the dates of the transaction); and

(iii) all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

15 R B e ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies (Continued)
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising
are recognised as a separate component of equity in
other comprehensive income.

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Construction in progress is property, plant and equipment
on which construction work has not been completed and
stated at cost. Cost includes acquisition and construction
expenditure incurred, interest and other direct costs
attributable to the development. Depreciation is not
provided on construction in progress until the related asset
is completed for intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESTHEHME@E)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 2.8 9% - BERZME &)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Buildings 20 years
s 20%F

Leasehold improvements

WE - BERREBITEREMH
ERFEMAEREBERAD R
HFREEFENT

Over 5 years or the remaining term of the relevant lease,

whichever is shorter

HEMEERE

Plant and machinery 5-10 years
R K25 5E10%F
Furniture fixtures and computer equipment 3 years
RE - RERBEE 3%

Motor vehicles 5 years
E 54

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within ‘Other losses — net’ in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

BB FHRBRBONBRERAREERE)

é?ﬁ’]ﬂﬁ?{ﬁfﬁ&Tﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁé%

WMEBERETER HE
EH A% -
EEEFmESREGA T RO S

78 - H AR E BN R OB = AT e &
B e

Hj%%%%_iﬁtt?ﬁﬂ%ﬁléiﬁiﬂﬁﬁ

BEE  YRAHEERERA[H
@Eﬁ%ﬁ—@%ﬁj MFERR ©

ROI&HE (i) ARAR —T—NFFHR



136

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cContinued)

2.9 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

(c)

Computer software

Acquired software licenses are capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3
to 10 years.

Contractual customer relationships

Contractual customer relationships acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. The contractual customer
relations have a finite useful life and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method at 3 years
over the expected life of the customer relationship.

Goodwiill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
Groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or Group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the
lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as
an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10Research and development expenditure

Research expenditures is recognised as an expense as
incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating
to the design and testing of new and improved products)
are recognised as intangible assets when the following
criteria are met:

e it is technically feasible to complete the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use;

e management intends to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

e there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits;

e adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available; and

e the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development cost previously recognised as an expense
is not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.
Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible
assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is
ready for use on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

15 R B e ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11"lmpairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life or intangible assets not ready to use are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset'’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

2.12Investments and other financial assets

(i) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value
through profit or loss and,

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
be recorded in profit or loss.

The Group reclassifies equity investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M et (48D

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESTHEHME@E)

2.12Investments and other financial assets (Continued) LNREREMEMEE (8)

(ii) Recognition and derecognition

(i) BRRBUHRER

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are two measurement categories into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented
in other gains/(losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

15 R B e ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(iif) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

e FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost are measured at FVPL. A gain or
loss on a equity investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss
and presented net within other gains/(losses) in
the period in which it arises.

(iv) Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see note 18 for further
details.

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M et (48D

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESTHEHME@E)

2.14Inventories 214178

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads based on
normal operating capacity. It excluded borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.15Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold and service provided in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
See note 18 for further information about the Group's
accounting for trade receivables and note 3.71(c) for a
description of the Group’s impairment policies.

2.16Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investment with
original maturities of three months or less.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

15 R B e ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17Share capital and shares held for employee share

scheme

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the company's
equity instruments, for example as the result of a share
buy-back or a share-based payment plan, the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs
(net of income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable
to the owners of the company as treasury shares until the
shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary
shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration
received, net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs and the related income tax effects,
is included in equity attributable to the owners of the
company.

Shares held by the Bank Of Communications Trustee
Limited on behalf of the Group are disclosed as shares
held for employee share scheme and deducted from
contributed equity.

2.18 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M et (48D

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESTHEHME@E)

2.19Borrowings 219186 &

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

2.20Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

2.21Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

15 R B e ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cContinued)

2.21Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

(c)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements,
except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable to
control the reversal of the temporary difference for
associates. Only when there is an agreement in place
that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal
of the temporary difference in the foreseeable future,
deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary
differences arising from the associate’s undistributed
profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and
there is sufficient taxable profit available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

15 R B e ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22Employee benefits

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company's shareholders after certain adjustments. The
Group recognises a provision where contractually obliged
or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

2.23Share-based payments

The Group operates equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (award shares) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the grant
of the award shares is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the
fair value of the award shares granted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M et (48D

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FESTHEHME@E)

2.23Share-based payments (Continued) 23R HBER 2R E)

The grant by the Company of equity instruments over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiaries in the
Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value
of employee services received,measured by reference to
the grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting
period as an increase to investments in subsidiaries,
with a corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity
accounts.

2.24Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue
is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when control of the
products has transferred, and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities as described
below. The amount of revenue is not considered to be
reliably measurable until all contingencies relating to sale
have been resolved. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement. Revenue is recognised as follows:

(a) Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of good directly to the
customers is recognised at the point that the control
of the inventory have passed to the customers, which
is primarily upon the acceptance of the products by
the customers. The customers have full discretion
over the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customers’ acceptance of the
products. The Group collects cash or bank acceptance
notes from the customers before or upon deliveries
of products through banks. Cash or bank acceptance
notes collected from the customers before product
delivery is recognised as contract liabilities.
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15 R B e ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESHHEME@m)

2.24Revenue recognition (Continued) 2,208 NTRER ()

148

(b) Modification services income
Revenue from mold modification services is
recognised in the accounting period in which the
services are rendered.

(c) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basic using the effective interest method.

2.25Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred government grants and are credited to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M et (48D

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FESTHEHME@E)

2.27Leases 22178 &

As explained in note 2.2 above, the Group has changed its
accounting policy for leases where the Group is the lessee.
The new policy is described below and the impact of the
change in note 2.2.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership were not transferred to the Group
as lessee were classified as operating leases (note 14).
Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) were charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which
the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of
real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected
not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

15 R B e ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cContinued)

2.27 Leases (Continued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing, and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term,
country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on an index or rate, which
are not included in the lease liability until they take effect.
When adjustments to lease payments based on an index
or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and
adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M et (48D

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESTHEHME@E)

2.27 Leases (Continued) 227358 (&)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received

e any initial direct costs, and

e restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.
While the Group revalues its land and buildings that are
presented within property, plant and equipment, it has
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings held by
the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment
and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise IT
equipment and small items of office furniture.

2.28Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as
a liability in the financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

15 R B e ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (foreign exchange risk, price risk,
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance. Risk management
is carried out by the senior management of the Group and
approved by the Board of Directors.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC, and is exposed
to foreign currency risks, mainly with respect to HK
dollar (“"HK$"), US dollar ("USD") and Euro dollar
(“EUR"). Exchange rate fluctuations and market trends
have always been the concern of the Group. Foreign
currency hedging of the Group has been managed by
our chief financial officer, and overseen by the Group's
chief executive officer. In accordance with our hedging
needs and the then foreign exchange situation,
the Group's chief financial officer would gather
and analyse information regarding various hedging
instruments and determine stop-loss thresholds.
The Group's chief financial officer would then obtain
quotations from various banks as to the financial
instrument and present such quotations to the Group's
chief executive officer, who would then evaluate
and make a decision as to whether to enter into the
relevant hedging agreement. No hedging contract has
been entered into during the year. The conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated
by the PRC government.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI R (48)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MEKEKRERE@)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1 B iR R =& ()

(a) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (a) HPEERER ()

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities

REEEREBRAY  AEEMN
SMEHENEREERERAR

at the respective balance sheet dates are as follows: ZEEEmESEYT
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHxT FHET
Assets BE
HKS$ BIT 93,942 98,786
Usb ETT 501,450 823,191
EUR BT 30,021 25,480
Total st 625,413 947,457
Liabilities afE
HKS$ T 141,234 271,787
Usb ETT 20,575 50,960
EUR BT 108,939 77,823
Total 15 270,748 400,570

If RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% against
the relevant foreign currencies, with all other variable
held constant, the profit before income tax would have
been higher/(lower) as follows:

MARBEEBINETE T
B5% @ MAEREMEERS
A& - BIER AT 1S B AT & A
/OB A ) BRI :

2019 2018
higher/(lower) on profit higher/(lower) on profit
before income tax if before income tax if

exchanges rates change by exchanges rates change by

fERBEIT - BRETSBAT MEXZEMT - BRASHA

A, R ) smAE A, O )
+5% -5% +5% -5%
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiB% T8 T Tis

HK$
USD
EUR

7
x5
BT

2,365 (2,365) 8,650 (8,650)
(24,044) 24,044 (38,612) 38,612
3,946 (3,946) 2,617 (2,617)

RTIRE () BRLAR T NAFFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

15 R B e ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Price risk

(c)

The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk
or commodity price risk and the Group has not entered
into any long term contracts with the suppliers.
Fluctuations in the price of raw materials are usually
passed on to customers.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivable and equity investments that
are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(i) Risk management and Security
For cash and cash equivalents and deposits for
bank borrowings, the Group manages the credit
risk by placing all the bank deposits in state-owned
financial institutions or reputable banks which are
all high-credit-quality financial institutions.

To manage the credit risk in respect of trade and
other receivables, the Group performs ongoing
credit evaluations of its debtors’ financial condition
and does not require collateral from the debtors
on the outstanding balances. Based on the
expected recoverability and timing for collection
of the outstanding balances, the Group maintains
an allowance for doubtful accounts and actual
losses incurred have been within management’s
expectations.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group faced some
concentration of credit risk as the Group's five
largest customers accounted for approximately
44% (2018: 52%) of the total trade receivables.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M et (48D

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBRBEE@m

3.1 EREZE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets

(c) FERER(E)
(i) TREEZRE

The Group has one type of financial assets that is
subject to the expected credit loss model:

e trade and other receivables

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade and other receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade receivables.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has assessed
that the expected loss rate for other receivables
was immaterial. Thus, no loss allowance for other
receivables was recognised.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period of 36
month before 31 December 2019. The forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables. The Group has identified the GDP
and the unemployment rate of the countries in
which it sells its goods and services to be the most
relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the loss
rates based on expected changes in these factors.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBERBEE@m

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 EREE (&)
(¢) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade and other receivables (Continued)
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018 was
determined as follows for trade receivables:

(c) EERK(E)
(i) ZFEEHEE)
B 5 R H A e FRIA (&)
R E%E - B E 5 EGRIE
ETER2019F12A31H K&
2018412 A31 H #y 518 #
BT

More than More than
90 days 360 days

Current past due past due Total
BEER BB

BN 90H 360H E-H

31 December 2019 2019%12H31H
Expected loss rate FEHEEE 1.00% 1.38%

Gross carrying amount RAaE

— trade receivables —& 5 EW A 294,175 315,867
Loss allowance EERE 2,942 4,361

More than More than
90 days 360 days

Current  pastdue  past due Total
R 90H 360H BEt
31 December 2018 2018%12H31H
Expected loss rate TEHAE B X 1.38% 4.54%  100.00% 2.03%
Gross carrying amount RHEHAE
— trade receivables —Z WA 284,170 23,289 1,260 308,719
Loss allowance BRERE 3,933 1,057 1,260 6,250

156

Trade receivables is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery
include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to
engage in a repayment plan with the Group, and a
failure to make contractual payments for a period
of greater than 1 year.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against
the same line item.
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B R R M et (48D

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BXERERE@E
3.1 EREZE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) EERMR(E)

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group is also exposed to credit risk in relation
to equity investments that are measured at
fair value through profit or loss. The maximum
exposure at the end of the year is the carrying
amount of these investments HK$33,621,000
(2018 :HK$23,621,000).

(d) Liquidity risk

The Group exercises prudent liguidity risk
management by maintaining sufficient cash and bank
balances. The Group's liquidity risk is further mitigated
through the availability of financing through its own
cash resources and the availability of banking facilities
to meet its financial commitments. In the opinion of
the directors, the Group does not have any significant
liquidity risk.

The table below analyses the Group's financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows including interest elements computed using
contractual rates, or if floating based on rates at the
year-end date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R MR (48)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MKEREE@m
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 iRk EE (#)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) REVESEK(E)
On 3 months 3 months Over
demand orless to1year 1 year Total
=@A =@A
RER AT E-F5 HEB-fF @t

HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TERT TET TET TET TET

At 31 December 2019  A2019%12H31H
Bank borrowings RITHEE 119,307 249,005
Trade and other payables & 5 & E fth e <t 5008

(excluding non-financial ~ (FE&REERIN)

liabilities) 291,026 — 296,355
Lease liabilities HEEE 16,980 102,783 170,702
Total 1Bt 5,329 427,313 102,147 181,273 716,062

On 3 months 3 months Over
demand orless to1year 1 year Total
={EA =fEA
BREK FAT E—F HBR-F e

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TET TET TR TR

At 31 December 2018  #2018%F12H31H
Bank borrowings RITEE — 12,993 102,918 246,028 361,934
Trade and other payables &5 & H fth g {4 708

(excluding non-financial ~ (E£EIBERIN)

liabilities) 16,428 310,591 — — 327,019

Total

S
CR;
i

16,428 323,684 102,913 246,028 688,953
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest-rate risk arises from bank
borrowings. Bank borrowings at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk.
Bank borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest-rate risk. The Group currently
has not used any interest rate swap arrangements
but will consider hedging interest rate risk should
the needs arise. If interest rate for variable rate
borrowings had been 1% higher/lower for the year
ended 31 December 2019 with all other variables
held at constant, the Group’s profit before tax would
have been lower/higher by HK$2,420,000 (2018:
HK$3,422,000).

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, changes in interest
rates within an expected range had no material impact
on the interest income of cash and cash equivalents.

3.2 Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may vary the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by
total equity.
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BRI ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital management (Continued)

3

B EMEE @)

32 EAREE(#)

The gearing ratio is as follows: BEABBREENOT :
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Total borrowings BB 241,960 342,232
Total equity B m 1,075,458
Gearing ratio (%) BEEABREE(%) m

Gearing ratio has decreased to 20% as at 31 December
2019, which is due to increase in equity and decrease in
total borrowings.

3.3 Fair value estimation

The fair values of current financial assets, including cash
and cash equivalents, restricted cash, deposits for bank
borrowings and trade and other receivables, as well
as current financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and current bank borrowings approximate their
carrying amounts due to their short maturities as at 31
December 2019.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by the levels of inputs to valuation techniques.
The inputs to valuation techniques are categorized into
three levels within a fair value hierarchy, as follows:

e |level 1T — Quoted prices unadjusted in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

e |evel 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset.

e |evel 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not

based on observable market data that is,
unobservable inputs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgments and estimates
made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are recognised and measured at
fair value in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Group has classified its
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed
under the accounting standards. An explanation of
each level follows underneath the table.

B MR ()

3 MEKEKRERE@)

3.3 A ABEMS @)

(i)

DREEER

7 0 ) 20 2 T A S SRR P RE R
RERAABEFENEGBRTAR
REEMELOHERER - B
BLAEBREETAABEMRBA
BB AIFENER  AKRECR
S EAREREERT AN R
—EFR - EFRNTREA -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—IE EE E=[E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FTHT FET FEx
Recurring fair value ®2019%12831H
measurements at REMDNAEE
31 December 2019 &
Financial assets CREE
Financial assets at UKARBEFNER
fair value through HEBET ABEH
profit or loss — non current CHEE—IFRD
(note 19) (Hizt19)
Unlisted equity investments FE LR E
Total financial assets CREERRA m
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
H—I3 FE_E F=E BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHBIT FHIT T
Recurring fair value ®2018512831H
measurements at REMEAAEE
31 December 2018 TR
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at IAAREEFTER
fair value through HEB)T ABEN
profit or loss — non current CHEE—I R
Unlisted equity investments JEETAER B — — 23,621 23,621
Total financial assets CRHMEELE = = 23,621 23,621

RTIRE () BRLAR T NAFFR
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Note that all the resulting fair value estimates are
included in level 3 during the year. For transfers in
and out of level 3 measurements see (iii) below.
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end
of the reporting period.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is the
case for unlisted equity investments.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

e for unlisted equity investments — discounted cash
flow analysis.

All of the resulting fair value estimates are included
in level 3 where the fair values have been determined
based on present values and the discount rates used
were adjusted for counterparty or own credit risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(iii) Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)
The following table presents the changes in level 3
items for the year:

B MR ()

BEEREE @)
3.3 A REBEMLEF(E)

(iii) EREXRTATEERHABEND
REEFAE(E=E)
TRINRE=ZBRERAFEN

=

Unlisted
equity
investments

FLETRERE
HK$°000

FET

Closing balance as at 720185F12A31H
31 December 2018 WHAR ek

Additions in 2019 20195 R E

Closing balance as at M201912831H
31 December 2019 R 48

(iv) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
(FV)
The following table summarises the quantitative
information about the significant unobservable inputs
used in level 3 fair value measurements. See (ii) above
for the valuation techniques adopted.

(iv) hEBABBREQNAEBENED
%
TREAFE=FE R EBEFEMN
REBANAIE R A BB E(L
AR - BRAMRMOGHERM -
B2 LX)

RIEE (ZK) ERAF —T—-AFFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 5 SR MYt (A8

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(iv) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

(FV) (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Unobservable

Description Fair value at inputs*
RT5IREH 05 1
Bt MER BAER*
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20195 2018%
12A31H 124318
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAr
Unlisted equity 23,621 Discount rate for
investments discounting
— Precision estimated cash flows
Robotics BRMEREREL
FETRERE FRE
— Precision
Robotics Net profit rate
%

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019
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B 3% B B B 28 ()

3.3 A ABEME @)

(iv) EEBABBREQ AEENE

Range of inputs (probability-

weighted average)
BAERER
(TREMEMETS)

2019

19%-21%

15%-17%

2018

& ()

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
TARZBARER
MMEBENEE

19%-21%

20%-22%

Lower discount rate for discounting
estimated cash flows (-1%) and higher net
profit rate (+1%) would increase fair value
hy HK$6,091,000;

Higher discount rate for discounting
estimated cash flows (+1%) and lower net
profit rate (-1%) would decrease fair value
by HK$ 3,080,000.

MR RERBZHRETRA%)
RFFIE EF(+19%) B2 A% BEEM
6,091,000 7T :
HRETRERE L HRX L1 B RF
METR (1 %)< 27 BER 3,080,000
AT o

(2018: Lower discount rate for discounting
estimated cash flows (-1%) and higher net
profit rate (+1%) would increase fair value
by HK$8,604,000;

Higher discount rate for discounting
estimated cash flows (+1%) and lower net
profit rate (-1%) would decrease fair value
by HK$6,546,000.

20185 : MRAFHREHELHRETR
(1 %) RFFIE EFH+1 %)% 2 BEEM
8,604,000/ 7T :
HREHRERBZHRE FA(+1%) RF
METR-1%)8 < 24 BIEA 26,546,000
AT °)




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI o ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MEKEKRERE@)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 A REBEMLEF(E)

(iv) hEBABRBREQAAEENET
& (&)

(iv) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
(FV) (Continued)

Unobservable Range of inputs (probability-

Relationship of unobservable

Description Fair value at inputs* weighted average) inputs to fair value
RT5IREH 0L 1 BAERER TARZBAER
g AER BAER* (TRt mETH) MMEBENEE
31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 20185
12A31H 12A318
HK$000 HK$'000
AR TAL
Unlisted equity —  discount rate for 19%-21% —  Lower discount rate for discounting
investments discounting estimated cash flows (-1%) and higher net
—Intelligent estimated cash flows profit rate (+1%) would increase fair value
Precision Micro- BRMERENEL by HK$2,893,000;
systems i Higher discount rate for discounting
FEmRERE estimated cash flows (+1%) and lower net
—REAHZER Net profit rate 15%-17% —  profit rate (-1%) would decrease fair value
Rk by HKS 240,000,

BRRHBEREZHRE TR %)
REFZ EF+1%)85 DA BEEN
2,893,000 -
BRERSRE L BRE L1 % RTF
FETRE(1%) 82 B 2 BIERD240,000%
o

* There were no significant inter-relationships between

*

unobservable inputs that materially affect fair values.

N R] BLER B N\ B 2 B A A R
FEAABENEANMBERE -

RIKE (ZR) ARAR —F-NFFR
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15 R B e ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(v) Valuation processes

The finance department of the Group includes a team
that performs the valuations of non-property items
required for financial reporting purposes, including
level 3 fair values. This team reports directly to the
chief financial officer (CFO) and the audit committee
(AC). Discussions of valuation processes and results
are held between the CFO, AC and the valuation team
at least once every six months, in line with the Group's
half-yearly reporting periods.

The main level 3 inputs used by the Group are derived
and evaluated as follows:

e Discount rates for financial assets are determined
using a capital asset pricing model to calculate
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risk specific to the asset.

e Net profit rate for unlisted equity investments are
estimated based on market information for similar
types of companies.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’'s management determines the estimated
useful lives of its property, plant and equipment and
consequently the related depreciation charges. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, or it will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes allowance for impairment of trade
receivables based on an assessment about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgment in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Group’s past history, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and
inputs used are disclosed in the tables in note 3.1(c).

Allowance for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group
would evaluate customers’ orders, ageing analysis
of inventories and compare the carrying amount of
inventories to their respective net realisable value.
A considerable amount of judgments is required in
determining such allowances. If conditions which
have impact on the net realisable value of inventories
deteriorate, additional allowances may be required.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(d) Income taxes and deferred taxation

(e)

Significant judgments is required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be recognised.
The outcome of their actual recognition may be
different.

Estimation of the fair value of certain financial
assets

The fair value of FVPL that is not traded in an active
market is determined using valuation techniques. The
Group uses its judgment to select a variety of methods
and make assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period. For details of the key assumptions used and
the impact of changes to these assumptions see note
3.3,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGMENTS (Continued)
4.2 Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

With effect from 1 January 2008, companies within the
PRC are required to withhold income tax at 10% of the
amount of dividend declared to their immediate holding
companies outside the PRC when their PRC subsidiaries
declare dividend out of profits earned after 1 January
2008. A lower 5% withholding income tax rate is applied
when the immediate holding companies of the PRC
subsidiaries are established in Hong Kong and fulfil certain
requirements under the tax treaty arrangements between
the PRC and Hong Kong. During the year, the directors
reassessed the cash requirement of the Group and the
dividend policy of its major subsidiaries established in
the PRC, namely TK Mold (Shenzhen) Limited, YD Mold
(Shenzhen) limited, TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen)
Limited and TK Plastic Products (Suzhou) Limited, based
on the Group's current business plan and financial position.
The profit generated by these subsidiaries for the year
amounting to HK$214,886,000 would be distributed and
deferred tax liability was accrued accordingly. This involves
critical judgments by the directors.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the executive directors of the Group. The executive directors
review the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources and have determined
the operating segments based on the internal reports that
are used to make strategic decisions. During the year, the
Group has 21 operating segments, out of which 11 operating
segments relating to the mold business are aggregated into
‘mold fabrication’ operating segment as they have similar
economic characteristics and satisfy all conditions and meet all
the aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8; the remaining 10 operating
segments relating to the plastic business are aggregated
into ‘plastic components manufacturing’ operating segment
as they have similar economic characteristics and satisfy all
conditions and meet all the aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8.
Accordingly, the executive directors considered the nature of
the Group's business and determined that the Group has two
reportable segments as follows: (i) mold fabrication and (ii)
plastic components manufacturing.
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BRI ()

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The executive directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on their revenue and gross profit
and do not assess the assets and liabilities of the operating
segments.

Segment information for consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

(a) The following table presents information on revenue of the
Group by geographical segments for the year.

Revenue from external customers

5

o EE R ()
HMITEBRBLL D B RA K EF T

EOMRE  BUEFEHELEDHNE
ERAE -

BOHEE W RN BE

B

(@) T&E2IIAEERENLIHES 5
215 MU A B R -

IREBFBA
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT

PRC ==

South East Asia and Hong Kong R MES
Europe BOM

USA EH

Mexico =Paaf
Others )

1,084,315 889,601
339,995 600,010
385,965 398,137
480,057 364,785

6,384 19,306
14,126 26,770

2,310,842 2,298,609

The revenue information above is based on delivery
location of the customers.

Non-current assets, other than financial instruments and
deferred income tax assets, by country:

ERBABERTIERE PR
b o

EERE DM ERBEE(SRTA
MEEPTISHEERIN)

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TAT

PRC M
Germany ==

760,163 557,426
11,288 8,617

771,451 566,043
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment information for consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (Continued)

(b) The segment information for the reportable segments is

set out as below:

Mold fabrication

RERE

2019
HK$'000
TER

743,804
(153,018)

590,786

590,786

Revenue 'ON
Segment revenue AEBA
Inter-segment revenue elimination 93B3 A I 4
Revenue from external customers — SMREPUA
Timing of revenue recognition WA AR
At a point in time REE R
Segment results NEEE
Other income and other losses Hip AR EfE5E
— net —F3
Selling expenses HERE
Administrative expenses THFX
Finance (costl/income — net BE(KA) WA—F8
Share of net profit of an associate  {EBEREARZ

accounted for using the equity
method

FEAEBEE RRMA

207,667

Profit before income tax

R FR {551 AR R

B R Y ot (A8

o EE R ()
EHEERBRNDBER (&)

(bl AR HHOHH BARBIIMT -

Plastic components

manufacturing Total

TRANRE ast
2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000

TAr TER  TEx  TER

783,399 NAFINIIN 1,606,197 PRLERCIM 2,389,596

ol (153,018) EEOEERR]

692,412 EEPAKNLIE 1,606,197 pRIOELYAR 2,798,609

(WPIKLT 1,606,197 ARV 2,298,609

CLERN 465,670 WYKL 724,418
44,305 21,991
(CILEN  (88,341)
(P EITN (257,733)

(1,395) 6,799

<LlERE 407,134

RIKE (ZR) ARAR —F-NFFR
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BRI ()

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 ZEER @)
Segment information for consolidated statement of SR EZERTERND BER (&)

comprehensive income (Continued)

(c) Information regarding the Group’s revenue by nature: (c) BEAAEBEZMEEI S HWAEZR :
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Sales of goods HEM M 2,251,875 2,239,258
Modification service income 1SR RS U 2 58,967 59,351
2,310,842 2,298,609
(d) Revenues of approximately HK$307,965,000 (2018: (d) # 307'965'0\0077% 7 (2018 &
HK$302,719,000) were derived from a single external 302,719,0007?%)3"]”51)\73\5?\55$
customer. These revenues are attributable to the plastic _9|\7E?‘§‘j5 c RFWAREEEME
components manufacturing segment. HRUEDE -
6 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER LOSSES — NET 6 HWARHEMER—FE
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Other income HAp A
Sales of scrap and surplus materials SHE R K TR F R 18,918 13,921
Government subsidies R f B 30,301 10,121
Others HAh 928 688
24,730
Other losses — net Hitg5ie —F58
Net foreign exchange loss b 5 E5 18 F 7R (3,142)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BEREHEDN
equipment (note 31(b)) Weas (H17231(b) 403
(2,739)
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7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B MR ()

7 BEMHEETHAX

2019
HK$°000
TET

Changes in inventories of finished goods
and work in progress

Raw materials and consumables used

Employee benefit expenses (note 8)

Subcontracting expenses

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment and amortization of
intangible assets

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Water and electricity expenditures

Transportation and travelling expenses

Commission expenses

Other taxes and levies

Advisory and legal service expenses

Maintenance expenses

Security and estate management expenses

Advertising and promotion fees
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) for
impairment of inventories
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance for
receivables
Utilities and postage fees
Donations
Auditors’ remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit services
Custom declaration charges
Recruitment expenses
Operating lease payments
Bank charges and handling fees
Other expenses

BRARERAFEED

JRFF B

RERMA (AiEs)

RIEA

ME - BEREEITEAR
BB EHEH

FREEENE
KEEH
B AR
meER
Hibfi &
BHRREERREAX
HIEER
RERMEERE
BEREEER
FERERE
(BERD)
FE U R IE (B R )~
s
B
1% BB 22 M
— R ARTS
— I B RIS
REAE
RIEE A
TR E IR
RITHERFES
HithFA

(49,916)
835,686
622,739
182,474

134,597
66,874
52,856
48,303
16,060
13,280
11,369
10,010

6,993
6,329

5,848

(1,759)
4,084
3,849

3,747
501
2,503
2,417
1,587
1,476
11,717

Total cost of sales, selling expenses
and administrative expenses

HERAS - HERMXK
THRAXAE

1,993,624

RTIRE () BRLAR T NAFFR

2018
HK$'000
TAT

(32,461)
820,698
585,866
191,257

103,322
41,716
56,605

8,491
18,478
13,771
13,641

6,601

4,938

(917)

408
4,228
2,728

4,581
D7/
2,584
3,285
58,075
1,221
10,574

1,920,265

173



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI ()

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE (continued) 7 BRMEESHEX @
Research and development expenses represented: s ARE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Raw materials and consumables used R R R FEM 31,813 27,437
Employee benefit expenses EERHEX 33,798 27,162
54,599
8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8 EEEFABMX
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Wages and bonuses T&RIEAL 530,298
Pension costs — defined contribution R A —E B R
plans (a) =T El(a) 18,320
Other social security costs E A AL R A 22,850
Other allowances and benefits HAth 2B AR T 14,398
Share award scheme (note 25) A& 15 B2 BT &I (H1aF25) =
622,739 585,866
(a) Employees in the Group's PRC subsidiaries are required (a) AEEHENBARNEE ASHE
to participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme A5 Th BN B 1R I B /B HY e BE 1
administrated and operated by the local municipal SGRIRETEl - AEEHF KB A
government. The Group’'s PRC subsidiaries contributes AR T TR 1% 8 B B AT
funds which are calculated as 10%-20% (2018: 10%— BEFHEH10%220% (20184 :10%
20%) of the average employee salary for the year as £20%) st E BRI ZET B8R -
agreed by local municipal government to the scheme to LREEBRARBFRHEESD -

fund the retirement benefits of the employees.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B MR ()

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 8 EETFBX @)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEBREHMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest BHZE2019F12A31HILFE - A%
in the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 EREmEmTMAT2ENA (2018
include four (2018: three) directors whose emoluments F:=ZR)FF - A HNM T
are reflected in the analysis shown in note 37. The ITFAFIREIDHIT « FR - Efr— &
emoluments paid to the remaining one (2018: two) (20184 : WA )&= HMALHE
individual during year are as follows: BT -
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Wages, salaries, allowance and IE  #He 2K
other benefits HEiEF 2,536
Bonus TE4T 8,702
Contributions to pension plans RIREET IR 36
Share award scheme B 15 52 BT & =
11,274
The emoluments paid to this individual fell within the HAZATZMEMENF 587 :
following bands:
2019 2018
Emolument bands B <> 48 51
HK$3,500,001-HK$4,000,000 3,600,0018 75 £4,000,00075 7T o
HK$4,500,001-HK$5,000,000 4,500,0018 75 25,000,00075 7T 1
HK$6,500,001-HK$7,000,000 6,500,001 727,000,000/ 7T 1
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R MR (48)

9 FINANCE (COST)/INCOME — NET 9 BME(RK) WA—FE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHxT FHET
Interest income: FEUTA -
— Interest income on bank deposits —RITE AT B A 4,639
— Interest income from financial assets  —A AR EBEEEBHE S
at fair value through profit or loss FFABERNEREEN
FEUA 5,326
9,965
Interest expense: FBAX :
— Bank borrowings —iRITIEE (12,745) (3,166)
— Lease liabilities (note 14) —HEBGEMZ14) (8,870) —
(21,615) (3,166)
Finance (cost)/income — net BB (BA) MWA—FEE (1,395) 6,799
10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10 FTEHBEX
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current income tax BNHAFT1S %X
— Hong Kong profits tax —EBFEH 10,579
— PRC corporate income tax —HR B EFREH 32,535
— Income tax under/(over)-provided in —BAFERETR
previous years (EBZRRE ) TS AL (495)
Total current tax expense BNHA TE B S A B 42,619
Deferred income tax IEIEPTIS R
Increase in deferred tax assets (note 29)  EIEFIIEE B hN(HfaE29) (12,515) (2,650)
Increase in deferred tax liabilities (note 29)  EEFIIE B & N(H:229) 34,630 16,980
Total deferred tax expense IEFER IH B R 458 14,330
Income tax expense FrisBip X 56,949
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

(a)

(b

-

(c)

(d)

Cayman Islands income tax

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and accordingly, is
exempted from Cayman Islands income tax.

Hong Kong profits tax

Under the current Hong Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance,
from the year of assessment 2018/2019 onwards, the
subsidiaries in Hong Kong are subject to profits tax at the
rate of 8.25% on assessable profits up to HK$2,000,000,
and 16.5% on any part of assessable profits over
HK$2,000,000. The payments of dividends by these
companies to their shareholders are not subject to any
Hong Kong withholding tax.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")

CIT is provided on the assessable income of entities
within the Group incorporated in the PRC, calculated in
accordance with the relevant regulations of the PRC after
considering the available tax benefits. The applicable CIT
rate is 256% (2018: 25%). TK Mold (Shenzhen) Limited,
TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen) Limited and TK Plastic
Products (Suzhou) Limited, subsidiaries of the Group, were
recognised as “New and High Technology Enterprise”
and thus enjoy a preferential CIT rate of 15% from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2019, 1 January 2018 to 31
December 2020 and 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021
respectively.

PRC withholding income tax

According to the CIT Law, starting from 1 January 2008,
a withholding income tax of 10% will be levied on the
immediate holding companies outside the PRC when
their PRC subsidiaries declare dividend out of profits
earned after 1 January 2008. A lower 5% withholding
income tax rate is applied when the immediate holding
companies of the PRC subsidiaries are established in Hong
Kong and fulfil certain requirements under the tax treaty
arrangements between the PRC and Hong Kong.

B R R M et (48D

10 FTSFHBE X (®)

(a) RS BER

ARARRASHEEMKILA—ME
EREERDA - Bt - KRAE
REBMHASEEMENR

(b) BEBREH

(c)

BREEMNESRBIKEN - 8
2018/2019 A FE R - BHEW B
A &) 2,000,000 7T A T & FE RR B
A 8.25% Bl KN F G - M
2,000,000/ 7T JA _E A9 (E{a] FE SR B S
FIHZ16.5% M EHMAFNEE - %5
AR MER RIS R EEBBNT
RAIEBBINE

REIREAER ([REMEHR])

EMERIIEAEBE TR E
AR EBEANERT WA
EHBE - Rt R ESOHRIEE
BEBBEPEMEBERGTE - @
ARSI R £25% (20184 :
25%) c AREB B ARRIE
BOFRIDBRAR - RITIHEEES
CRIDBRA R RFTERBE M (5
M)BRDRWRES [ =i
¥ HoRE2017F1A1HE
201912 A31HEM ~ 201841 A1
HZ=202012 831 HHIM KX20194
1A1EE2021F12A31 B M ZA
15% M EFTEFB BT XK o

(d) REIFEHIFTEH

BECEMBEHE - B20085% 1A
1THRE  EHRERIINEZZRAA
7 AR BB B A &) 52200841 A1 H &
FLATERELA & A R SR AR B - R
ZEEEERAFEKI10% /A
Fiie% - BB RRNEREE
BABREBKILLFEFPEES
BRI BB IENZ NS TR
7E v AR5 % MBI R AR TE 0 AT
155 -

FOLEE (k) ARAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI ()

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 10 FrB8 8B X (@)
(e) The British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) income tax (e) ABERLZBE([HRBELEE ]
8%t

No provision for income tax in BVI has been made as the
Group has no income assessable for income tax in BVI
during the year (2018: nil).

(f) Taxation on the Group’s profit (f)

The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would have arisen
using the main statutory tax rate applicable to profit of the
Group due to the following:

HRARERNFAERBERES
I EERFABHUNA - A EEHR
HREREZAESMWMEHEE (2018
FE) e

N &R B A

L 7N 5% [ BR P 15 35 A1 48 B A0AA B 71
TR AT 51) & TR i B2 3R A 7S 5% g A
EREEAEMEFENEREE
FHEER:

2019 2018
HK$"000 HK$'000
TR TAET

Profit before income tax b TS M AT K

360,499 407,134

Tax calculated at corporate income tax 1525 % 1b ¥ FRS R i X

rate of 26% FFERIE
Effects of: Ty EIBEHFE
— Different tax rates applied —ERA TR E
— Income not subject to tax — B AR A

— Accelerated deduction of research  —#F2£E Nzt
and development expenses

— Tax losses not recognised —RHERTIBEE
— Expenses not deductible for tax — AT A
— Under/(over) provision in prior years —i@EEEREERE
(EBREHE)
— Withholding income tax on profit —BEAREEFBRARDIKZ
to be distributed from the Group i 1 K TR0 FTIS R

companies in the PRC

90,124 101,784

(38,089) (39,808)
(3,363) (176)

(13,036) (6,588)
3,475 1,526
8,383 706

921 (495)

58,696 56,949
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B MR ()

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 SRER
(a) Basic (a) A

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue for the year excluding shares held for
employee share scheme (note 22).

1508 2 2 B T DA 2K 9F S R X
AFEEBTHBR (TR EHEA
Bt B B A 2 AR5 (R EE22)) B
BT -

Profit attributable to owners of the ZAN/NIE 2SNyl
Company (HK$'000) (F#7T)

2019 2018
301,803 350,185

Weighted average number of ordinary = %17 & i@ IR &9 h1HE 5 81

832,972 833,260

0.42

shares issued (thousands) (F8%)
Basic earnings per share (HK$) BIREARZF (BIT)
(b) Diluted (b

Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings
per share due to the absence of dilutive ordinary shares at
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Diluted earnings
per share is the same as basic earnings per share due to
the absence of dilutive ordinary shares).

) BF

HREE2019F12A31BILEEN
EBETEE  WERESRF SR
FREARBFER(20184F : AR
EEMEELBER  WEREER
FIRGRERBFAER) -

RIEE (ZK) ERAF —T—-AFFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

15 R B e ()

12 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2019, all of which are limited liability companies:

12 Mf B A &)

TXAR2019F12A31HH T EMEB A
AI(BAEARAR)IE

Place of Principal activities Particulars of Interest
Company name incorporation and place of operation issued share capital held
AR BB MR TRERRRE Y BRITRAFE PR
TK Group International BVI Trading of plastic products 50,000 ordinary shares of *100%
(Hong Kong) Limited and molds/HK 1 USD each
RISEBER(BER)ERRR RBREAHS BRAMKER 50,000fR SR EE1ETH *100%
B5/8B% LEk
TK Plastic Products (Suzhou) PRC Manufacture of plastic Paid in capital of HK$10,000,000 100%
Limited products/PRC
RIZBRHmENARAR  E HEvRHR/ TR B4 710,000,00075 T 100%
TK Mold (Shenzhen) Limited PRC Fabrication of mold/PRC  Paid in capital of HK$132,000,000 100%
RIBACRINBRAR HE BARME /HE B4 7132,000,0007% 7T 100%
YD Mold (Shenzhen) Limited PRC Fabrication of mold/PRC  Paid in capital of HK$10,000,000 100%
RREACRINAERAF HE BARYE/hE E4&710,000,0007 T 100%
TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen) PRC Manufacture of plastic Paid in capital of HK$166,000,000 100%
Limited products/PRC
RIBENTZORINERRR  HE HEERR,/ T H EH&7166,000,000% T 100%
TK Mold Germany GmbH Germany Fabrication of mold/ Paid in capital of EUR25,600 100%
Germany
TK Mold Germany GmbH gz IRABIE /26 BHEAR25,60080 T 100%

* Shares held directly by the Company.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019

* ARREEFERD -



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B MR ()

12 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 12 Mi B2 =] (@)
(a) Investments accounted for using the equity (a) FHAERZEARZIKRE
method
Immaterial associate FEXRBENT

Place of business/

country of % of ownership Nature of Measurement
Name of entity incorporation interest 2019 relationship method Carrying amount
BEY TR FEEER BEE
EREH BIBER BA2019 BEME HEAE 2019
% HK$'000
FEx
Motlles i Matrius Fisas  Spain 43.01 Associate* Equity method 15,526
Navarro, S.L.
Motlles i Matrius Fisas FRITF 43.01 BERF* ERE 15,526
Navarro, S.L.
¥ Motlles i Matrius Fisas Navarro, S.L. is a private company incorporated *  Motlles i Matrius Fisas Navarro, S.L. A
in Spain. Its principal activities are the provision of mold after-sales ROERT MK IOFLERT - HFEZ
services in Eurpoe. BARBUNREEAEERY -
2019
HK$°000
FHET
At the beginning of the year REFE]
Addition in 2019 R2019FRNE
Profit for the year F % T
Other comprehensive income H bR S W
At the end of the year RER

RIEE (ZK) ERAF —T—-AFFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B 5 SR MYt (A8

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 ¥ - BMERRKRE

Furniture,
fixture and
Leasehold Plant and computer Motor  Construction
Improvements machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
HE B
RENEEE BERHE REMRE RE EEIR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tir Tz Tz THx TR Tix
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ2018F12A31H IHEE
Opening net book amount FNEEEE 56,665 331,489 8,837 2,747 16,959 415,697
Currency translation differences  [EXZ% (1,147) (8,660 (152) 8) (494) (10,461)
Additions NE — — 6,353 27 204,528 211,152
Transfer ot 27,452 129,606 — — (157,058) —
Disposals HE — (1,408) (1) — — (1,409)
Depreciation ik (21,952) (71,133) (4,527) (1,177) — (98,789)
Closing net book amount EXREMFE 60,018 379,894 10,510 1,833 63,935 516,190
At 31 December 2018 72018%12R318
Cost AR 140,449 769,531 40,879 5,965 63,935 1,020,759
Accumulated depreciation ZiTTE (80,431) (389,637) (30,369) (4,132) = (504,569)
Net book amount FmFE 60,018 379,894 10,510 1,833 63,935 516,190
Year ended 31 December 2019 EZ2019512A318 LERE
Opening net book amount ENEEFE 60,018 379,894 10,510 63,935 516,190
Currency translation differences &% =5 (675) (5,825) (131) (1,214) (7,847)
Additions AE = - 3,403 218,137 221,545
Transfer B 53,407 191,205 - (244,612) -
Disposals (note 31(b)) L& (HzE31(b)) (1) (6,227) (819) - (7,057)
Depreciation ik} (31,921) (92,492) (4,735) (1,054) (130,202)
Impairment loss REEE - (324) (27) = (351)
Closing net book amount FRREEFE 80,818 466,231 782 36,246 592,278
At 31 December 2019 20195127318
Cost A 179,745 911,739 39,569 5,935 36,246 1,173,234
Accumulated depreciationand ~ EiHER
impairment RE (98,927) (445,508) (31,368) (5,153) (580,956)
Net book amount REFE 80,818 466,231 8,201 782 36,246 592,278
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R Y ot (A8

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13 M%¥ - BERRE @)

Depreciation charges were included in the following categories TEYHFABENTYIER -

in the profit or loss:

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHExT FAT
Cost of sales THE KA 107,515 75,062
Administrative expenses THAX 22,516 23,457
Selling expenses HERX 171 270
130,202 98,789
=3
14 LEASE 14 HE
(a) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet (a) REEABERERZEH

31 December 1 January
2019 2019
20194 20194
12A31H 1H1H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FET

Right-of-use assets FREEE
Properties LY/ E3 142,530 212,147

Lease liabilities HEEE
Current mE 58,039
Non-current JEm B 154,108
151,226 212,147
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2019 R0 B EBEAREBTRAEERE

financial year were HK$45,000.

45,0008 7T °

RIKE (ZR) ARAR —F-NFFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI ()

14 LEASES (Continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive

(c)

income

14 FHE (@)
(b) ARENBRERAZLEE

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31HILLFE
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT TAT

Depreciation charge of right-of-use FREEENES T

assets — Properties (note 7) —ME(KE7)

Interest expense (included in finance R B (Gt AR EKA)

cost) (note 9) (Het9)

Expense relating to short-term leases  El45 HAH SRR =
(included in cost of goods sold and (FFAESEMKR AR

administrative expenses) (note 7) TBRZ) (MEE7) —
Expense relating to leases of low-value HZ3t3E it 5] A48 HAFE & &)

assets that are not shown above KEEEEAEHRBENMAS

as short-term leases (included in (FEATTERF ) (Hfa7)

administrative expenses) (note 7)

The total cash outflow for leases in 2019 was HK$71,423,000.

The Group's leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various offices, warehouses, equipment
and vehicles. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 6 months to 8 years, but may have extension
options as described in (d) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019
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14 LEASES (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(d) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a
number of property and equipment leases across the
Group. These are used to maximise operational flexibility
in terms of managing the assets used in the Group's
operations. The majority of extension and termination
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by

the respective lessor.

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

14 FHE (@)

(d) ERR A ILEERE

B R Y ot (A8

AEBZEYENZEEREDRES
REREIEERE LEEAEE

LEMMAEEMS @ WEEKFKIA

NEEIRMEERN - KA D AHE
BREREREKIDEERENTHAS
B7T{E - ERR LA EEITRE

15 B EE

Contractual
Computer customer
software  relationships Goodwill Total
=)
ERAH EFB% mE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr AT 5T TExT
Year ended HZ2018F12831H
31 December 2018 LEE
Opening net book amount FUREHE 11,250 — 874 12,124
Currency translation differences BN ZH (228) — (29) (257)
Additions NE 4,359 — —_ 4,359
Amortisation charge B (4,533) — = (4,533)
Closing net book amount FEREEEE 10,848 — 845 11,693
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12A31H
Cost 5% 29,300 913 845 31,058
Accumulated amortisation 2t (18,452) (913) — (19,365)
Net book amount REFE 10,848 — 845 11,693
Year ended HZ2019F12A31H
31 December 2019 EEE
Opening net book amount FREEE 10,848 11,693
Currency translation differences ~ [EX =% (132) (156)
Additions NE 6,689 6,689
Amortisation charge BT (4,395) (4,395)
Closing net book amount FEREERE 13,010 13,831
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A31H
Cost AR 35,431 887 37,139
Accumulated amortisation ZEtE (22,421) (887) (23,308)
Net book amount BREFE 13,010 13,831
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI ()

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Amortisation charges were included in the following categories
in profit or loss:

15 | EE (@)

B BT ABREN TR

2019 2018
HK$"000 HK$'000
THET THET

TR

Administrative expenses

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of 100% equity interest in
TK Mold Germany GmbH in 2014.

The recoverable amount of the CGU related to TK Mold
Germany GmbH is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. The calculation uses pre-tax cash flow projections
based on financial forecasts prepared by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates
stated below.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation are as
follows:

72 2014 F W HE TK Mold Germany
GmMbH#) 100 % IR A4 25 T ZE 4 ©

EBTK Mold Germany GmbHEIE & &E
A BT 2 AW Bl & 58 TR IR 6 (B E T
BEORET - ZAtEREEEBMEL
RERFHMMOIETER - FRKEATR
SRERAEL - BBAFTHHENIERS
B TIER T AT A (AR IE R R -

RARAEEREENTIERRMOT :

2019 2018

Net book value (HK$'000) BREFE(TET)
Net profit margin (%) R ZE(%)
Revenue growth rate (%) IR AR (%)
Discount rate (%) BRER (%)

845
7%
2%
16%

The directors of the Company consider that no impairment
charge was required after performing the impairment
assessment for the year (2018: nil).

If the estimated future cash flows had been 10% lower
than management’s estimates as at 31 December 2019, the
Group would still have recognised no impairment loss on the
goodwill.

If the discount rate had increased 2% as at 31 December 2019,
the Group would still have recognised no impairment loss on
the goodwill.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R Y ot (A8

16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 16 BREFE SNSRI A
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Assets as per balance sheet EEABRRNEE
Loans and receivables: B EWNOR
— Trade and other receivables (excluding —&5 R EMEWRIE(TEIE
prepayments and tax recoverable) TERTFRIE K AT B 1E ) 317,552 308,344
— Restricted cash —ZRHEE 17,638 36,553
— Deposits for bank borrowings —RITEENZS 134,594 84,975
— Cash and cash equivalents —RERFASEED 582,878 753,811
Financial assets at fair value through profit LA AR EEEEBEEBEA
or loss BENEmEE 33,621 23,621
1,086,283 1,207,304
Liabilities as per balance sheet EEAGBRRARE
Liabilities measured at amortised cost: BB HEKATTEZBE
Trade and other payables B N HMEMNFRIE
(excluding non-financial liabilities) (TREFTREE) 296,355 327,019
Bank borrowings RITIEE 241,960 342,232
Lease liabilities HEAE 151,226 —
689,541 669,251
17 INVENTORIES 17 78
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Raw materials FERE 38,352 28,648
Work in progress ES T 302,565 248,300
Finished goods RUEY ok 64,312 68,661
405,229 345,609
Less: allowance for impairment B RE RS (8,188) (2,4471)

343,168
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI ()

17 INVENTORIES (Continued) 17 #E ®)
The movements of allowance for impairment are analysed as BERGBESSTAOT
follows:

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

At beginning of the year F) 3,395
Currency translation difference fEH =% (37)

Allowance/(reversal of allowance) for FERERE (BERD)

impairment of inventories (917)

At end of the year FR 2,441
The cost of inventories included in cost of sales for the year FAFRBEBERRNZEFERRKN A
was HK$1,630,088,000 (2018: HK$1,555,713,000). 1,630,088,00078 (20184 : 1,555,713,000

BIT) °
18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 E5 Rk HME WA

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

F&ET TFET

Trade receivables =) & /e 315,867 308,719
Less: allowance for impairment W R E R (4,361) (6,250)

Trade receivables, net B 5 N IEFRE 311,506 302,469

Export tax refund receivables H O R R E W IR 21,051 10,568

Prepayments and deposits FENRIERES 31,270 27,827

Value-added tax recoverable A] Uiz [B] 3% (F Fi 1,921 8,679

Advances to employees BlEEER 4,037 4,510

Others HAith 2,009 1,365

371,794 355,318
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B MR ()

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18 B 5 K H th FE U X IE (@)
(a) The carrying amounts of the trade receivables are (a) BEZEWEHBEEEMEN T &K
denominated in the following currencies: =HE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
uUSsb ET 221,181 229,559
RMB AR 78,782 60,749
EUR BT 12,006 7,811
HKD BIT 3,898 10,561
GBP RS - 39
315,867 308,719
(b) The credit period granted to customers is generally (b) BFEFPMEEHEENF30E0
between 30 and 90 days. The ageing analysis of the trade HoME - BZERFTIEAEE HE
receivables from the date of sales is as follows: BEEBRS T :
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT TAT
Less than 3 months =EARRA 294,175 284,170
More than 3 months but not exceeding B8 =1#& A B T #8i@m—F
1 year 21,692 23,289
More than 1 year —E P - 1,260
315,867 308,719
The Group's sales are made to various customers. While RNEBHEENRTRZRPEL °
there is concentration of credit risk within a few major HACERBETHREFIER
customers, these customers are reputable and with good P BERERXERCEBEVEAR
track record. TR AE S8R o
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BRI ()

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(c) Movements for the Group's allowance for impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:

18 EF R EMEWRKIE#)

(c) REEE 5 R IR IA K 6 (B B i &
E) N

2019 2018

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHExT FAT

At beginning of the year FH) 5,922
Allowance for impairment BB 13,487
Reversal of allowance for impairment  SE/{E & 5O (13,079)
Currency translation differences PE 3 =R (80)
At end of the year FR 6,250

The creation and release of allowance for impairment
have been included in administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

(d) Fair values of trade receivables

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables,
their carrying amount is considered to be approximate as
their fair value.

19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVPL include the
following:

#ig k@O 2 BEREE ARG
RARBRRANZITHAX -
(d) EZRWFENQAEE

HRIRARW KRN DA &E -
HEEERRERERABEES -

19 URAREEFEEHESEH AR

HNEMEE

(a) BHE AR R BEFEREEEHTA
Rase S BAE B THIEE -

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Unlisted equity investments e ETRERE 23,621
Current assets RBEE
Wealth management products MEEEEM
— Beginning of the year — 4] = )
— Additions —NE 586,808 530,023
— Disposals —HE (586,808) (530,023)
End of the year FR —
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B R R M et (48D

19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 19 LA REBEFEEEZEHT AR

PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) HHNSEEE @)

(a) Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVPL include the (a) gl AR AR BEFTEEHEFH T A
following: (Continued) BEaNeREERETIEEA

(&)

The wealth management products managed by high credit VEEEER I BATBRSEEER
quality commercial banks in the PRC with expected return BERITER  BHFLUFENT
range from 3.0% to 3.9% (2018: 3.0% to 4.4%) per annum 3.0% £3.9% (2018 4F : 3.0% =
and will mature within one year. 4.4%) - WK —FRE|E -

(b) Amounts recognised in profit or loss (b) RERTPERNERE
During the year, the following gains were recognised in FR - REZFPERHBENOT

profit or loss:

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Interest income on wealth REERA—FEERK
management products recognised in B EEIBERHFERA
finance income—net (note 9) (2 H15%9) 5,326
(c) Fair value measurements (c) AAEMEFE
For information about the methods and assumptions used BRAEBET AR BEMREARTEAR
in determining fair value, please refer to note 3.3. HEER - F2HMFEI3
20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 RERBFESEEY
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Cash and bank balances B4 RIRTHER 600,516 790,364
Restricted cash ZRHRE (17,638) (36,553)
582,878 753,811
As at 31 December 2019, restricted cash mainly represented MN2019FE12 8318 » SR4IBL T T
restricted deposits held at bank as reserve for issuance of SO BEM B IEREMRETEA
guarantee letter for the import of raw materials. VERE B 2R HITE 2k -
The fair values of cash and cash equivalents approximate to B4 RESEEYHN AR BEELER
their carrying amount and represent maximum exposure to ERE  BASAEERS -
credit risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI ()

21 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

21 RARRDEE

Number of
ordinary shares Share capital Share premium Total
EBRYA R& R A5 (E EoHY
(thousands) (HK$'000) (HK$'000) (HK$'000)
(F&) (F&) (FB) (T

As at 1 January 2018, #2018 1A18 »
31 December 2018 and 2018F12A31H

31 December 2019 MR2019%12A31R 833,260 83,326 251,293 334,619

(a) All shares issued rank pari passu with each other.

22 SHARES HELD FOR EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME

(a) FFEEBETROBILFER S -

22 B E RGBT EFHEHRG

Shares held for employee share scheme

i 18 8 B in 7 8135 A R

The Group through its trustee, Bank of Communications
Trustee Limited, acquired a total of 1,154,000 of the
Company's shares during 2019. The total consideration paid
to acquisition of these shares was HK$5,517,000, which has
been presented as a deduction from equity attributable to
owners of the Company. These shares are held by the trustee
for the purpose of granting share award under the Company's
employee share award scheme (see note 2.17).

B

Details

2019 2019
Total
shares consideration
B& 13 HRE
(thousands) (HK$'000)
(FH) (F#&xT)
AEER2019F B BEZ AR BIRT

EEERARIBES 1,154,000 A~ A
ARG  BEZSERONENERESR
5,517,000/ 7 - E2% A8 AR A %
BABGEEZTRHR - ZERMDBXT
AREAR AlE B ik 2B ET 21 (R M E
217 REBROMR BEE -

Number Total

of shares consideration
[idvig 4= BRE
(thousands) (HK$'000)
(FR) (F#&x)

Opening balance 1 January 2019

Acquisition of shares by the trustee ZEABERSG

R201951 A1 B ER 94564

Balance 31 December 2019

MN2019%12 31 B & &
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23 RETAINED EARNINGS

B MR ()

23 REREF

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT TAT

715,615 538,433
301,803 350,185
(158,319) (149,987)
(17,924) (23,016)

At 1 January ®1A1R

Profit for the year FRmF
Dividends paid BRI E
Transfer to statutory reserves B L TFRE
At 31 December M12A31H

841,175 715,615

24 OTHER RESERVES

24 HitvfEfe

Currency

Statutory Shares-based translation
reserves payments reserve Total

LARR 3 5
EERE B2 4R E X fF%E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET FET FET
At 1 January 2018 #2018F181H 56,649 = (18,183) 38,466
Transfer to statutory reserves (a) B ZE % F R (a) 23,016 — — 23,016
Currency translation differences [E} =% = — (36,258) (36,258)
At 31 December 2018 #2018%F12831H 79,665 = (54,441) 25,224
At 1 January 2019 ®2019%1A1A8 (54,441) 25,224
Share-based payment expenses  PARR{n AER 2

TRAX - 1,239

Transfer to statutory reserves (a) B ZE % F ()
Currency translation differences [E{ =%

At 31 December 2019 72019%12831H 97,589

(a) Statutory reserves

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Group should make
appropriation of not less than 10% of its net income after
taxes to legal reserve. Further appropriation is optional
when the accumulated statutory reserve is 50% or more
of its registered capital. Upon approval from the board of
directors, the statutory reserves can be used to offset
accumulated losses of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group.

= 17,924
(23,199) (23,199)

1,239 (77,640) 21,188

(a) SEEME

RETERBERZLEASR - A5HE
#) BB B B FE R EL B AR F IR
RORI10% BIEEERE - B Rt
EERFBEDEEMEAR0% K
LR ATETTRAERGE &
e REZGHER  EERET
AREEAEENTEMBRRZ
REEBR -

RTIRE () BRLAR T NAFFR
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BRI ()

25 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME

The share-based compensation expense recognised during the
year are as follows:

25 EER G E

FARBHARND SERBEFROT

2019 2018
HK$"000 HK$'000
THET THET

Share award scheme f& 10 2T &l

o [

The Company adopted a share award scheme on 25 February
2019 (the “Share Award Scheme"”) as means to recognise the
contribution by the Group’s personnel and to provide them
with incentives to retain them for the continual operation
and development of the Group. Pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme, the vesting period of the awarded shares is 5 years
from their respective grant dates.

The Group planned to use shares held for employee share
scheme to award the grantees of the Share Award Scheme.
The awarded shares are held by Bank Of Communications
Trustee Limited. This Trust is consolidated in accordance with
note 2.3.

Movements in the number of Awarded Shares are as follows:

ARARAR20194F 2 A 25 H A% 1D 128
HEI(iRD RENETE]) - (ERRAASE
BABFMMEERMUARREREERBES
BEAAEENLERERELTRN
B o RIER M EBEEE - RERMDH
FEBHATERL ARG E -

AEEGEERREERNDEFEDN
P tn 22D A% 0 2 BT Bl M9 A - 22
BT BEXBRITEXERABRFA
ZEFERBME2.3TIAGH ©

SEHROBELHWT -

1,154,000

At 1 January ®1A1R8
Granted [mEs4u
Lapsed B R

At 31 December M12A318

1,154,000

The Group has to estimate the expected retention rate of the
share award scheme in order to determine the amount of
share-based compensation expenses charged to profit or loss.
As at 31 December 2019, the expected retention rate was
assessed to be 100%.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B MR ()

26 BORROWINGS 26 B&
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Non-current JEENHER
Bank borrowings RITEE
— unsecured — R 134,950 265,262
Less: current portion of non-current B SERVEBfE R 2 mBE
borrowings (59,039) (30,248)
235,014
Current EnER
Bank borrowings RITIEE
— secured (a) —HF & () 107,010 76,970
Current portion of non-current borrowings JEENHA{E & 2~ R BN E D 59,039 30,248
166,049 107,218
Total borrowings BEEH8E 241,960 342,232
(a) As at 31 December 2019, bank borrowings amounting to (a) 2019 F 12 A31 B » B &
HK$107,010,000 as at 31 December 2019 were secured by 107,010,000 % T W R 1T &8 B Tb
the bank deposits of HK$134,594,000 (As at 31 December LA 3B 97 77 7 134,594,000 i JT 1F
2018: bank borrowings amounting to HK$76,970,000 were K (R2018F 12 A31H : AH
secured by bank deposits of HK$84,975,000). 76,970,000/ TTRISRITIEE AIRITF
484,975,000/ TL/EHE ) o
(b) The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated (b) EERREEZR FHIEBE :

in the following currencies:

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TET

HK$ BT 134,950 265,262
EUR BT 107,010 76,970

342,232
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI ()

26 BORROWINGS (continued)

(c) The exposure of the borrowings to interest-rate changes
and the contractual repricing dates at the balance sheet
dates are as follows:

26 B E @)

) REERBEXRAY HEEEHH
NMEZHREBRERANEFREE RN

FEMREE
618 A AR

Borrowings at floating rates
6 months or less

(d) The borrowings are repayable as follows:

Within 1 year 1F R
Between 1 and 2 years 1Z=24E
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F

LU

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TAT
241,960 342,232

(d) EEARATHRAEE :
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT
166,049 107,218
75,911 99,103
— 123,811
342,232

(e) The effective weighted average interest rates at the
balance sheet dates are as follows:

(6) REERBERAMNERMEFS
KT

2019 2018

Bank borrowings denominated in:

HK$ BT
EUR BT

AT EEFHEMRITEES

2.45%
0.50%

(f) The carrying amounts and fair value of non-current
borrowings are as follows:

(f) FEENHEENREENA R BEW

Carrying amounts BREE

Fair value (level 2) AREE(FE2E)

Weighted average discount rate used 25 {BER MNHE
for fair value (%) FHEEIRE (%)

T
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
75,911 235,014
74,390 231,223
2.72% 2.45%
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

27 DEFERRED INCOME ON GOVERNMENT

GRANTS

The amount represented various subsidies granted by and
received from local government authorities in the PRC. The
movements in deferred income on government grants are as

follows:

B MR ()

27 B FEBIIREE WA

BHESHEETREMBT#ER BT A
FHZIEME) o BUT BRI AR E
)N

Opening balance as at 1 January
Receipt of grants

Recognised in the profit or loss
Currency translation differences

1A B R ER R AE BR

WEIwB &
KB R
PE = HE

Closing balance as at 31 December

W12 831 BWERAR&EeR

28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables
Wages and staff welfare benefits payable

Accrual for expenses and other payables (a)

Other taxes payable

B 5N TR

ENTEREERH
FEET S K H b e 5K (a)

H it R IR

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiB FET
11,443

16,894

(3,742)

(802)

36,442 23,793

28 E5 RHMENKE

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FiBR FHT
273,906 307,774
108,981 121,906
22,449 19,245
6,415 7,576
411,751 456,501

(@) The amount mainly represented accruals for commission

and professional service expenses.

(a) ZHBAETERMBEREEZRBHEX
FEETEA °

RTIRE () BRLAR T NAFFR
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B 5 SR MYt (A8
28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

28 E 5 Kk H M RIE (#)

(b) BHEMNRBATIERETHE

(b) Trade payables were denominated in the following

currencies:
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
RMB AR 245,118 242,898
UsD e 20,575 50,960
HK$ BT 6,284 6,525
EUR BT 1,929 853
JPY = — 6,538

273,906 307,774

The carrying amounts of accrued expenses and other
payables were primary denominated in RMB.

FEAt R R H Al B AR BRE (B
TEUAARKEE

() BHENREREY, MRBEEKA

(c) The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the goods/

198

services receipt date is as follows: HBRER D ATAO T -
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
0 - 90 days 0%90H 206,165 235,252
91 - 120 days 91%120H 42,799 41,388
121 — 365 days 121£365H 20,801 29,893
Over 365 days @365 H 4,141 1,241
307,774
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax
relates to the same taxation authority. The analysis of deferred
tax assets and liabilities is as follows:

B MR ()

IEFE PS8

s 0K TE R 17 (£ 4% I 5 B HA A TR e
B AREEE AR —HHEHEE
BB ZBEMEH - AEHELTHSHR
BERARBMAKE EXHBREER
BESMWT :

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
THxT FHET
Before offsetting EEH AT
Deferred income tax assets: BEFBHREE
— to be recovered after more than — SR EE1 248 B & Uk @
12 months 3,569
— to be recovered within 12 months —E 1218 A ke 1,769
16,790 5,338
Deferred income tax liabilities: FEIEMSHEE
— to be settled after more than 12 — B REBE12E A BEE
months (42,855) (16,776)
— to be settled within 12 months —BR12B A AEE (17,672) (10,490)
(60,527) (27,266)
After offsetting KB
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFTERBE (43,737) (21,928)

As at 31 December 2019, deferred income tax assets and
deferred income tax liabilities were offset, where they are in
the same entity, to the extent of HK$16,790,000 (31 December
2018: HK$5,338,000).

R2019F12 A31H » RIEREERELT
FSHEERBEMGHAGBERER
§416,790,000/8 L (2018412 318
5,338,000/ 7T) °

RTIRE () BRLAR T NAFFR
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29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI ()

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities

are as follows:

29 IEEFRS

B

BEFREHREERABNESNT :

Deferred
Accelerated income on
tax Accrued government
Deferred income tax assets depreciation expenses grants Total
BUR# B
ELREHEE MEB AT FEsTBE X EZEWRA et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FET FHET
As at 1 January 2018 ®201851 1R 313 767 1,716 2,796
Currency translation differences  [E i, Z%8 — (31) (77) (108)
Recognised in profit or loss PIESHER (313) 1,033 1,930 2,650
As at 31 December 2018 7201812 A31H — 1,769 3,569 5,338

As at 1 January 2019 20191 A1H 5,338
Currency translation differences  [E i, Z%8 (1,063)
Recognised in profit or loss RNIERER 12,515
As at 31 December 2019 R20196128318 11,324 5,466 16,790

Revaluation

surplus in

Accelerated related to

tax Withholding business
Deferred income tax liabilities depreciation income tax combination Total

B

EOtHEREZ
ELMEHEE MEBIETE BHFEH BEfEH Hat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TR TET THET
As at 1 January 2018 72018%F1H1H — (10,490) — (10,490)
Currency translation differences [E} =% 195 — 9 204
Recognised in profit or loss RIERTER (16,980) — — (16,980)
As at 31 December 2018 12018512318 (16,785) (10,490) 9 (27,266)
As at 1 January 2019 20191 A1H (16,785) (10,490) (27,266)
Currency translation differences & ¥ Z=%8 1,361 - 1,369
Recognised in profit or loss RIERTER (27,448) (7,182) (34,630)
As at 31 December 2019 120196128318 (42,872) (17,672) (60,527)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carry-forward to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefits through the future taxable profits is probable.
As at 31 December 2019, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the unused tax losses amounting to
HK$33,389,000 (31 December 2018: HK$19,499,000) as its
realisation is uncertain. Such tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

30 DIVIDENDS

B R R M et (48D

29 EFE P15 B (@)

EEFEREETIABBEREERNE
BARRERB M EIRMEE 2 B
BIERAIR - R20194F12A31H » K&
] I K mh oK 55 A3 B4 18 BT 18 133,389,000 %
7£(20185%12 A31H : 19,499,000/ 7T )
WRIECHIBEE  DHREERFHE
THEEM - BEMIBEEBRS EREAL
E

30 Ik=

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000

FTERT THET

Interim dividend paid of HK$0.05
(2018 Interim: HK$0.06) per ordinary

R BA%0.058 7T
(2018F " Hj : 0.06757T)

share AT HARR S 49,996
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.09 REREBIR0.098 T
(2018: HK$0.14) per ordinary share (20184 : 0.14%7T)
A 2 S R HARR B 74,993 116,656

166,652

The dividends paid in 2019 and 2018 were HK$158,319,000
(HK$0.19 per share) and HK$149,987,000 (HK$0.18 per share)
respectively. A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2019 of HK$0.09 per share, amounting to a total
of approximately HK$74,993,000, is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

R 20194 K 20184 R M A% B % Bl &
158,319,000 ;t (A% 5 0.197 T )
149,987,000 % 7t ( & i % 15 0.18 7%
) c AAFRBREERFTBEF RS L
ERRNEZE2019F 128318 IEEE
2 REAPE B ER%0.09/8 7T - I B AEEEL
74,993,000/ 7T ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BRI ()

31 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31 Gt REREBRME

CASH FLOWS
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash (a) RETIS BRI R F| L EFISIRE 2
generated from operations: HER -
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Profit before income tax & BT 15 554 Bl Vs 7 360,499 407,134
Adjustments for: FEE -
Finance expenses (note 9) BB R (A7E9) 12,745 3,166
Interest income (note 9) FEWA (B17E9) (20,220) (9,965)
Depreciation of property, plant and W BELRRETE
equipment (note 13) (Ba£13) 130,202 98,789
Impairment of property, Wz - BB REFERE
plant and equipment (note 13) (H1e£13) 351 —
Depreciation of right-of-use EREEENE(ME7)
assets (note 7) 66,874 —
Amortisation of intangible BB EME(ME15)
assets (note 15) 4,395 4,533
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BE K& ERE
plant and equipment (note 6) (Hizz6) (1,483) (403)
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) for  F&REEE, (B EELD)
impairment of inventories (note 7) (KiaE7) 5,848 (917)
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance for & 5 EWERZRIE
impairment of trade (B ERE),BEH27)
receivables (note 7) (1,759) 408
Share based payments VARR 1 A ERE 2 3K
(note 25) (H1:t25) 1,239 —
Share of net profit of an associate FEAG B2 N R AL F
(note 12a) (Htet12a) (371) —
Changes in working capital: LIBESEE
Inventories FE (59,620) (36,746)
Restricted cash PR HIER & 18,915 (27,141)
Trade and other receivables B 5 K EH fth fE U FR IR (14,573) (8,462)
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAMEN B (14,245) 81,778
Cash generated from operations BEMERE 488,797 512,174
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B MR ()

31 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31 6 RERERMET @
CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds (b) REHBEERERAN HEWE -
from disposals of property, plant and equipment comprise: W= N REFTSHIERLE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Net book amount disposed BEHEREFE 1,409
Gain on disposal (note 6) s W (HiEe) 403
Proceeds from disposal B FTSIE 1,812
(c) Net assets reconciliation (c) EEFEHE
This section sets out an analysis of net asset and the REEFE 2T AFAEEFEEE
movements in net asset for each of the periods presented. EFEEEH 2 °
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Cash and cash equivalents HehReFEY 582,878 753,811
Borrowings — repayable within EE—EAR—FRNEE
one year (166,049) (107,218)
Borrowings — repayable after one year {&E—BR—E&EE (75,911) (235,014)
Lease liabilities HEEE (151,226) =
Net assets BEFE 189,692 411,579
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEEY 582,878 753,811
Gross debt — fixed interest rates 48 (5 15 —[E T FE (151,226) =
Gross debt — variable interest rates A EE—Z B =
(note 26) (H17£26) (241,960) (342,232)
Net assets BERE 189,692 411,579
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B R MR (48)

31 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31 G EERERMET @
CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(c) Net assets reconciliation (Continued) (c) EEFEHER®E)
Other assets Liabilities from
financing activities
HitgE RERMETHNEE
Borrowings Borrowings
Cash and cash due within due after
Net assets equivalents Leases 1 year 1year Total
RER MERTS  MERIH
BERE ReZEN HE HEE W& @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TR TET TR TR
As at 1 January 2018 ®2018F1A1R 540,815 = (32,705) (65,210 442,900
Cash flows Heme 214,061 - (74,513) (169,804) (30,256)
Foreign exchange INERE
adjustments (1,085) = = — (1,065)
As at 31 December 2018 R2018%12A31H 753,811 - (107,218) (235,014) 411,679

Recognised on adoption RAFAFHUBRE

of HKFRS 16 ERIE165 R RED
(see note 2.2) (B8KE2.2) 753,811 (VAPALY)] (107,218) (235,014) 199,432
Cash flows RenE (167,884) 60,966 (55,450) 159,103 (3,265)
Acquisition - leases NE-HE = (45) = = (45)
Foreign exchange INE R
adjustments (3,049) (3,381) (6,430)
As at 31 December 2019  #2019%12831H 582,878 (151,226) (166,049) (75,911) 189,692
32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32 HAREE
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no significant M2019F12 A31H » REE W E T M=
contingent liabilities (31 December 2018: nil). AR EE(2018F 1284318 : &) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

33 COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

The Group had the following capital commitments:

B R Y ot (A8

Acquisitions of plant and equipment:
— Contracted but not provided for

BERELRE
—BATAEREE

33 &I
(a) EAREYE
REBA L TE A -
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET
86,925

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases premises under non-cancellable
operating lease agreements. The Group had future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

(b) E&EHERRE

AEERETAHHEECEHEHZ
HEME - AKERTAIBHEE
HER TR RKERERRA

operating leases as follows: Py (U
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Not later than one year —FR
— to related companies ) NG 60,432
— to third parties —F= 7,042
67,474
Later than one year and not later than —&F&ERER
five years
— to related companies — A5~ 7] 134,852
— to third parties —%E=h 18,241
153,093
More than five years AFEE
— to third parties =FE=75 12,074
232,641

RIKE (ZR) ARAR —F-NFFR
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BRI ()

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) Names and relationship

The following companies and individuals were related
parties of the Group that had transactions or balances with

34 BELRS

(a) BRERER

UTREMERMALTAEREZE2019
F1I2ANBEFEEAERER S

the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019: AR AN EERET
Name of the related party Relationship with the Group
BELFER HEASEZBE
TK Technology Holdings Ltd. An entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
RIMKEEARAA BRERREHNER
TK Technology (Shenzhen) Ltd. An entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
BRI ORINBRAE RERREHOE R

(b) Transactions with related parties during the year

Other than the related party transactions disclosed in note
37, the following transactions with related parties were

(b) FRHEBEL 25

BRETEES7TA BN BEET RS
AEERFREBETETONRS

undertaken by the Group during the year. R e

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T

Addition of right-of-use assets RNEEREEE m——
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEAGBHNEMAX 7,455 —
Repayment of lease liabilities (i) EEBEEEEN) 52,668 —
Operating lease expenses paid B EEHEERS 171 50,004

60,294 50,004

(i)  The amounts mainly represented rental expenses for land and
buildings for factory and office purposes paid to TK Technology
Holdings Ltd. and TK Technology (Shenzhen) Ltd, and capitalised
as right-of-use assets. All rental expenses were determined with
reference to independent property valuation.
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B R R M et (48D

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34 BBEL XS (|)

(c) Key management personnel compensation

The compensations paid or payable to key management
personnel for employee services are shown below:

(c) EEEBAEFHM

BEEBRBENIEBNETEZEEA
BZFHMEINMT

Wages, salaries and bonuses I&  FekEa

Share award scheme A& 15 52 BT &

Pension costs — defined contribution RS 5k A—E 284K
plans A&l

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TAT
49,988

256

50,244

(d) Indemnity

Each of Ultimate Shareholders jointly and severally has
undertaken to indemnify and keep each of the Group’'s
companies fully indemnified against all claims and losses
suffered or incurred by any company of the Group as a
result of or in connection with, amongst others, the use of
the land and buildings owned by certain related companies
by any company of the Group as tenants, as these related
companies have not obtained the approval from the
relevant authorities in relation to the lease arrangements of
such land and buildings.

BEREBRE B C KR RE R AH
MRS R(EFEE)ERAKE
EAARNETHEAREREZL
whEF(ERER)MTAEEE
MARRIKELNAARERE
RAAEEZKERARRERBER
EREFE2ERE RASZEH
BRARYARESEBBBENLZFTL
wRETHHEELZBEZHE

35 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 35 Hi&EE

Since early 2020, the epidemic of Coronavirus Disease 2019
("the COVID-19 outbreak”) has spread across China and other
countries, and it has affected business and economic activities
to some extent. The Group has already assessed the overall
impact of the situation on the operation of the Group and taken
all possible effective measures to limit and keep the impact in
control in the future. The Group will pay close attention to the
development of the COVID-19 outbreak and its impact, and will
continue to perform relevant assessments and take proactive
measures in the future.

The Group does not have other significant subsequent events.

H2020 5 %) - #HEE KBS M A &R
BUFEMREE ) FETFEREM
BZR  SEBREERBEKR —ERE
VEHE - AKRECHREEAEEHAR
BEENBETEL RN —YIRAIENE
MRS MIEHEROTE - AEH
RENBIHEMRRENERRER
& BRBFEETTERE NG RIRIE
1R o

AEEYEEMEARER -
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BRI ()

36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 36 AAREEEBRERAEESH
OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2019 2018
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
&t FHxT FHET
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB RAZ®RE 222,294 221,055
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS BT /B~ B FRIAR 355,397 404,547
Other receivables Hith e U B = 409
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEZED 211 177
Total current assets MENVE EARTE 355,608 405,128
Total assets BEE 577,902 626,183
Equity and liabilities EakEE

Equity attributable to owners of 772 T#EHA AE(LER
the company

Share capital A& A 83,326 83,326
Share premium & 75 (B 425,815 425,815
Shares held for employee share mEER M EEENRKR D

scheme (5,517) —
Other reserves E b (a) 1,239 —
Retained earnings IREE 5 A (a) 72,903 116,895
Total equity R 577,766 626,036
Liabilities =k
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables HAth fE S FRIE 147
Total liabilities wWeE 147
Total equity and liabilities BERkEEEE 577,902 626,183
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B R Y ot (A8

36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(a) Reserve movement of the Company

36 ARFEERBRRFEHEEDH W0

(a) RABMEEZE

Retained Other

earnings reserves

HRE &R Hihf#E

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

At 1 January 2018 MR2018F1A1H 102,344 —
Profit for the year F R F 164,538 —
Dividends % & (149,987) —
At 31 December 2018 2018%12H31H 116,895 —

At 1 January 2019
Profit for the year
Employee share schemes
— Value of employee services
Dividends

7R2019%F1 /11

F A

E BRI ETE
—(EERBEE

35N

116,895
114,327

(158,319)

At 31 December 2019

R20195%12H831H
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B 5 SR MYt (A8

37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 37 EE/ANER

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(a) EEREETHRAEME

210

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive

is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2019:

ERERTEATHRA DM HHI
o

HZ2019F12A31ALFE :
Employer's

contribution
Discretionary  to retirement

Name Fees Salary bonus benefit scheme Total
BENER
#% ik Hé BERAL  BAGEMR Foh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEn TEn TAn TER Thn
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Pui Leung EMRKE
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael (i SEALEN
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TRIBEE
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa KRERE
Independent non-executive BUFHTER
Directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy ETTRL
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung (i) AR E A i)
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong BEREE
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung (il 222 i)
9,507 72
(i)  Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael is also the chief executive officer. (i) BEAFEEDREREHITE °
(i) Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung was resigned on 20 December 2019. (i) IRLESEEBR2019% 12520 H BHE -
(ii) Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung was appointed on 20 December (iii) REHZEER2019F12H20H#Z

2019.

Fo
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37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018:

B R R M et (48D

37 EER/A R ER #)

(a) EBRFBITHAEME (#)

HE2018F12A31BILFE -

Employer's
contribution
Discretionary ~ to retirement
Name Fees Salary bonus  benefit scheme Total
EEMEAR
4 e i BiERL  BHFEER aif
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAL i AL AT
Executive Directors HiEs
Mr. Li Pui Leung EMRRE - 2,671 6,392 18 9,081
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael SEMLE - 2,385 4710 18 7113
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu FREBRE - 1772 2,691 18 4,481
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa RRELE - 1922 3222 18 5,162
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy EHTHEL 290 = = - 290
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung BB ELE 290 = = S 290
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong BEN AL 290 2 - Z 9290
870 8,750 17,015 72 26,707

(b) There was no directors’ retirement benefits, directors’
termination benefits, consideration provided to third
parties for making available directors’ services and no
loans, quasi-loans or other dealings entered into by
the Group in favour of any directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such directors

during the year (2018 : Nil).

(c) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

Saved for contracts amongst Group companies and as
disclosed in note 34, there was no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company was a party and in which

(b) £ - BIEREHEZRBM A E

SHEHRERNESRAGH - £5
RIERIEEF RAAB AR AERE
= EBEENZEHEAEREEER
ASBEANER  EEFKAEEH
FRET s 2 AR 5 (20184 : #) -

(c) EBERRE - ZHASHNERX

BREE AR RES L KM E34 PR
BEN  RERKFAEMER -
BEFEEASEXKEAER  BX
RABEERETERIBMEERE

a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

REZHRF  RHFHEK -

RISE (FER)

BRAR ZZE—NEFFH
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LEMBHRE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12831HILEE

2015 2016
HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT

2017 2018 2019
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT T

Revenue A 1,606,205 1,626,611

1,860,900 2,298,609 [ =kl

Net profit for the Year KABHEB A

attributable to the FE{EFR
owners of the Company  #fi | 187,088 205,698 301,833 350,185 301,803
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET TET FET FHT FHEx
Total assets wEE 1,300,219 1,402,093 1,638,607 2,163,489 | “Jcpllik
Total liabilities wafE 694,718 717,083 727,089 1,088,031 | (il
Total equity R BRE 605,501 685,010 911,518 1,075,458 m
Notes: HaE -
1. The consolidated results of the Group for each of the year ended 31 December 1. ANEBEHZF2018F K2019F 12831 H I FEEFa

2018 and 2019 and the consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2018 and 2019 are set out on pages 116 to 118 of this annual report.

2. The consolidated results of the Group for each of the year ended 31 December e
2015, 2016 and 2017 and the consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group as
at 31 December 2015, 2016 and 2017 are set out in the 2015, 2016 and 2017
annual report of the Group.

3. The above summary was prepared as if the current structure of the Group had 3.
been in existence throughout these financial years.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019

BOFEAE A RN EER 20184 2019412 531 HaY
EHEBERBEHRAFIREII6AZTI8H °

NEFE F2015% ~ 20164F K 20171231 H 1F
FREEFME HFREEURAEBR2015F - 2016F
K2017F12A31 HA9A HEER B EEHRAEE
20159 ~ 2016F K2017FF#A °
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